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November 15, 1877. 



THE Committee appointed to consider whether it is desirable to amend " The Main Line Railway 
.Act," and if so in what respect, with power to send for persons and papers, have the honor to report 
that they have taken the evidence of-Mr. Grant, Manager and Engineer-in-Chief to the Main 
Line Railway; Mr. Fincham, the Government Engineer-in-Chief; Mr. Lord, Manager of the 
Launceston and Western Railway; Mr. Johnston, Accountant to the Launceston and Wei:;tern 
Railway; Mr. Batchelor, Locomotive Superintendent to the Launceston and Western ·Railway; 
and· Mr. Leonard Dowling, Inspecting Surveyor to the Launceston and Western Railway ; Mr. 
Barclay, Manager of the Commercial Bank.; and Mr. ~olly, the Assistant Colonial Secretary. 
They also summoned Mr. Midelton, Engineer and Locomotive Superintendent to the Main Line 
Railway. 

The evidence and papers are annexed. 

The Committee are of opinion that an Inspection Act, and the certificate of an Inspector 
appointed under such Act, are necessary preliminaries to the sanction of Bye-laws;· and also, that the 
evidence discloses a state of things which demands the immediate attention of the Executive 
Government during this present Session of Parliament, with a view to anf additional measures 
which it may be found expedient to propose for the sanction and approval o( Parliament. . 

Committee Room, November 15tli, 1877. ·· 
THOS. D. CHAPMAN, Chairman. 
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MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS. 

THUR:-DAY, 1 NOVEMBER, 1877. 

Committee met at 11 •30. 
Present-Messrs. Chapman, Grnbb; Dodery, 
Mr. Chapman wa~ elected Chairman. 
OrderPd, That Mr. C. H. Grant be snn~monl'cl, November 2ml, at 12 o'clock; and to produce copies of any 

correspondence he hns bad between hirnsPlf and GovPrmncnt, or tlJat the Solicitors of the Company have ·had with 
the Government. tlm·ing the presrnt year, wi1h rf'ference to the introduction. of" A Bill to furthrr amend the Mnin 
Line Railwny Act;" also to produc;e to the C1•mmi1tee tlw printed Beport ;ind Evidence taken IJefore a Committee 
of the Hous1J of Com in ons in Englund in rpfpr1•nce to 1he Main Line Haihrny Company; also to produce copies 
of all corrr.~pondcnce that may have pa~scd betwePn himsrlf and Government, or between the Solicitors of the 
Company and the Goverument, in rPforence to any application for pecuniury assistance to work llnd maii,tain and 
keep open the Main Line Railway for traffic. • 

The Chairman lair.I the following Papers on the Table:-
33 Viet. No. 1. Main Line Railway Bill. · · 
34 Viet. No. 13. Main Line Huilway Amendment Bill, No. I. 
36 Vi,:t. No. 19 .. Mui11 Li11e Hail way .Amendment Bill, No. 2. 
37 V_it:t. No. 20. Lau11ces1on a11il Western.Railwa.l' Act. 
21 Viet. No. l I. .Lands Cla11sPs Act. 

Drafr' 39 ,Viet. No .. 6. Ir.spection iind Supcrvi,ion of Bailways Bill. 
Draft 40 Viet. No. 30. Inspection ot' Main Line ll.ailway. 

Also B)•e-Law, of the Launci'slon and WestPrn Railway; Paper 3·?, Session ·187.6.; H.'A. Pap.er 2~, 187.2 ;. 
H,A. -Paper 84; 1875; -Board-of Trade Regulations in regard to Railwu_ys. . 

FRIDAY, 2 NOVEMBER, 1877. 

()ommittee Ip.et .at 11 ·50 • 
.P.resent-MP$S~s .. -c"hapman, Dod_e~y. Grul;>b, Gellibrand,. oncl Inne~. 

· Mr. C; H. Gra11t' 11xaminecJ. 
The Committe'e 'adjournecl at l P.]II,•Until 11 ·30 A :r.r, ·on Saturday next. 

I' .. 
··'t .t .{;; :·:· 

MONDAY, 5 NOVEMBE~, 1877. 

Committee met at 12. 
Present-Messrs. Chapman, Gellibrand, Innes. 
Mr. C. H. Grant examined. 

The Committee adjourned at l ·25 r.nr. until 11·30 A.11r. on Tuesday next. 

'l'UESDAY, 6 NOVEMBER, 1877. 

Committee met. at 12. . ... 
Present-Messrs. Chnpm~n, Dodrry, Innes, Moore, Gellibrand, Grnbb, Aikenhead. 
Mr. C. H. Grant examined. 
Mr. C. H. Grant attendee! anrl handed in Minutes of Evidence taken bt•fore a Select Committee of the House 

of Commons in Eugland, dutt•d 22nd June, 1877. 
Mr. C. H. Grant al;o handed in n protest. 
Mr. C. H. Grant also hnnded in to ,the Committee certain Returns-Traffic Returns (A), Expenses (D), 

Expenditnrc on Capital and Construction Acc,,unt (C) .. 
The Committee decided to receive th" evidence. 
The Committee adjourned at I P.M, until 2 r.;u:. 
The Com111ittt•e met at 2·15. 

Pres,mt-MPssrs. Chapman, Dodery, Ailwnhead, Grnbb, Innes, Moore. 
Mr. C. 1-1, Grant exnwinetl. 

Mr. J. Fincham summoned for w·cunesday, 7th November, at 10 o'c'o~k. 
The Committee adjourned at3·45 P.sr. until ·wednesday, 7th NoYembor, at 10 A ~c. 



WEDNESDAY; 7 NOVEMBER, ,187.7. 

The Committee met at 10·15 A,M. 

Present-Messrs. Grubb, M·oore, Dodery, Aikenhead, Innes, and Gellibrand._ 
J. Fincliam, Engineer-in-Chief, examined. 
The Chairman ordered that Mr. Lord and Mr. Johnston be -summoned: to :attend the,Qo.mrnitt~e .!'t; ~Q 4,111. 

Thursday, November 8th. 
Committee adjourned at 12·45 until 2·30 P.M. 

Al!T:E.',\.~O.(,J?j' S~T'lj'I~W: 

Present-Messrs. Chapman, Gellibrand, Aikenhead, Dodery, Grubb, ·Innes~ 
Mr, B. '!'ravers Solly examined. 
The Committee adjourned at 3·35 P.M. until Thursday, November 8th, at 10 A.H. 

THURSDAY, 8 NOVEMBER, 1877. 

The Committee met at .10·20 A,M. 

Present-l\Iessrs. Clrnpman, Gellibrand, Innes, Aikenheacl, Moore, Dodery, Grubb, 
Richard ,v. Lord, Manager of Launceston and Western Railway, examined. 

-The Committee adjourned at 1 P,M, until 2·15 P.M. 

AFTERNOON SITTING, 
Committee met at 2·30 P,M, 

Present-Messrs. Chapman, Innes, Gellibrnnd, Dodery, Ai_kenhead, Grubb, Moore. 
Robert Mackenzie Johnston,• Accountant to the Launceston aud Western Railway, examined. 
The Chairman orrl~red that Mr. Batchelor (Launceston and Western Raihvay) be summoned for •ruesdayt, 

November 13th, at 11 A.M. 

The Committee adjourned at 3·30 P,M, until Tues:Iay, November 13th. 

TUESDAY, 13 NOVEMBER, 1877. 

The Committee met at 11 ·15 A,M. 

Present-Messrs. Chapman, Moore, Dodery, Aikenltead, Grubb, Innes. 
Mr. Batch,·lor examined. 
The Committee adjourned at l P.:r.t. until 2 P.M. 

AFTERNOON SITTING. 

The Committee met at 2·15 P.:llt, 

Present-Messrs. Chapman, Dodery, Aikenhead, Innes. 
Mr. Batchelor's examination continued. 
The Chairman ordered that Mr. C . .J. Barclay, Commercial flank, be summoned Wednesday, 14th, at 2·30 P,l!il, 

and Mr. Midelton, Superintendent of Locomotive of the Tasmanian Main Line Railway, at 11 A,M. on Wednes• 
day, 14th. 

The Committee adjourned at 3·45 P,M, until Wednesday at 11 A,M. 

WEDNESDAY, 14 NOVEMBER, 1877. 

Present-Messr,. Chapmnn, Dorlery, Gellibrand, Innes, Aikenhead, Grubb, Moore. 
The Committee met at 11 ·15 A.M. 

The Chaiz-man ordered that Mr. Dowling be summoned for 11 A.M. to-morrow (Thursday). 
The Committee adjourned at I P.M. until 2 P.M. 

AFTERNOON SITTING, 

The Committee met at '2:25 P.M, 

Present-Messrs. Chapman, Do<lery, Grubb, Innes, Aikenhead, Gellibrand. 
The Chairmnn proposP.d, and it was ciarrierl unanim'.111s!y,-" That this Committee is of opinion that a Blll to 

provide for an Inspection of Railways ~hould be iwme tiateiy introtJucecl by the Government for the eonsideratio'i'­
of Parliament." 

The Committee "1djourned at 4 P,M, until 11 A,111. Thursday. 



THURSDAY, 15 ·NOVEMBEH, .1877. 

The Committee met at 11 ·15 A.M. 

Present-Messrs. Chapman, Gellibrand, Aikenhead, Dodery, Grubb, Moore, Innes. 
Mr. Leonard Dowling examined. 
The Committee adjourned at I P,M.-until 2·30 P.:r.r. 

AFTERNOON SITTING. 

'fhe Committee met at 2•25 P.M. 

Present-Messrs. Chapman, Dodery, Gellibrend, Innes, Aikenhead, Grubb. 
The Committee adjourned at 3·55'P,M. 
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EVIDENCE. 

FRIDAY, 2 NOVEMBER; J 877. 

C. H. GRANT, E.~q., examined. 

By the Ghairn1an.-l. Your name is Charles Henry Grant, Manager and Engineer-in-Chief to the 
Tasmanian Main Line Railway? Yes. 

2. Have you a copy of the Bye-laws you propose submitting to the Governor in Council for approval 
in event of this Bill passing the Legislature, and if so can you p1·oduce them to the Committee? No; 
because they would be discretionary to -the Executive Government; but I meutioned to the Hon. 
Mr. Giblin, when in a former Administration, that the _Company would Le fully satisfied with the same, 
Bye-laws as granted to the Launceston and Western Railway. _ 

3. Have you made any application to the prei'ent Go_vernment for the introduction of the pi;esent 
Bill during the present Session of Parliament? · Not personally, but through the Company's Solicitors in 
verbal communications to the Attorney-General. 

4. You have not communicated personally to any Member of the present Government regarding this 
matter? No; I have considered this unnecessm·y, because this is the thir_d Session of Parliament a similar 
Bjll has been before them. 
, 5. Can you produce tlie papers you 1Yere asked for in your summons relating to this Bill, viz., 
copies of any correspondence you have had, or that the Solicitors of the Company have had, with the 
Government dui·ing the present year with reference to the introduction of "A Bill to further amend·the 
Main Line Railway Act?"_ I }iave had no correspondence, and the Solicitors inform me they have 
had none; and I am therefore unable to produce any. 

6. Can you produce the printed report and evidence taken before a Committee of the House 
9f- Commons, in England, in reference to the Main Line Railway Company? I am unable to produce 
them now, since both my copies are unavailable. I had two copies, one of which I forwarded to the 
Governor, who still retains possession of the sarne, and has not finished with: the other copy I gave to 
Mr'., Reibey about three weeks ago. I called on Mr. Reibey this morning and requested him to lend it to 
me to produce to the Committee in compliance to the summons I had received to produce the same,_ 
Mr.- ReiLey replied he could not spare it, as he required it to make use of it this evening in the House 
of Assembly. 

7. You had these two copies some seven or eight weeks ago? One of them I did, but the other· 
about three weeks later. I handed one to Mr. Giblin within two or three days of its arrival. 
_ 8. Have you handed it to several Members of Parliament? No; but I have been urgently applied 

to by three Members of Parliament, to whom I lent it; viz., the Hon. F. M. Innes, the Hon. W. L. 
Crowther, and the Hon. W.R. Giblin. · 
\ _- 9. Have you received any application, either verbally or in writing, from tlie Government or any of 
its mem hers to allow one of these copies to be laid on the table of ParliamPnt with a view to its being 
printed for the use and information of members ofthe Legislature? I do not remember any such applica­
t_ion, certainly not in writing; but the Colonial Treasurer in one letter, returning the evidence, expressed: 
th_e opinion that it should be printed. 

l 0. Do you concur with the Colonial Treasurer's opinion? I did not reply to the Colonial Treasurer's 
Ietter because I did not-wish to have it printed. 

ll. Was it an ordinary Parliamentary Pa.per? No, I think not: I think it was printed for the use· 
of the Committee by the Promoters of the Bill: that is, I believe, the invariable custom in such cases. 

· 12. You did not deem it of sufficient interest to the public of Tasmania to forward it to the colonial 
press for publication for general information? No: and it was far too lengthy a document for publication 
in such a manner. 

... . .. 
.13. An abridgement might have been published for general information ? Yes; but I did not know _ 

any thoroughly impartial person who could make an abridgement; and, after all,- it is more a record of 
~trife between the contending interests ·of the Company in the Bill than a matter of general interest. 

_ 14. Then, in yom opinion, you do not think it necessary that the document should be printed for the 
informafon of the Legislature and the public? My only objection to this is, that certain portions would 
most certainly give a misleading opinio"n of the views of the reconstituted Company. -

15. When tr;ansmitting the copy of the repMt and evidence of the House of Coinmons to the Coloniaf 
Treasurer, did you at the same time forward him a copy of the Bill or Act of the Impel'ial Parliament?_ 
This Bill ,vas attached to the evidence. No permission was asked of me to print this Bill ; I presume, 
therefore, the Government received a copy themselves. - . . _ 

16. When trnnsmitting the Bill- did you address any letter to him on the subject? I am not cei·tain, 
but think there was a short private note.- I did not send the document to the. Colonial Treasurer in his 
official capacity as Colonial Treasurer, but privately for his own information, and at his urgent request. 

17. Is Mr. Gibli~ standing counsel f~>i- Urn Company? Yes, except in matters in which the Govern­
ment are interested, which are exempt from his retainer. 
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. 18. Is he your ger,eral counsel and adviser in all matters in which the Government are not specially 
mterested? In all matters of law. 

19. In transmitting the documents piivately to hini do I understand that you simply sent them to hini 
as your legal adviser? Not in any degree. I sent them to him at his urgent request, as a matter of 
courtesy; I also explained to him the nature of the do·cunients; 

By .11:Ir. Glwpman.-20. I place in your hands a, copy of the J.lfercury newspaper, September 29, 
contain in~ a report of a speech made" by· Mr. Giblin as Colonial Treasurer in the House of Assembly on 
the preceding evening, in which you will see that Mr. Giblin quoted pretty freely from the report of the 
Committee of the House of Commons and tl~e evidenc·e· taken· thereon. Do you consider he was not 
justified in making the_ use he did of that document? I felt very indignant on first reading the report of 
·his speech, but on farther corisicl1fration think this was moi·e from the manrie1· of the quotation, and that 
had he used other quotations I could have selected for him, I should not have c'omplain'ed; · 

MONDAY, 5 ·NOVEMBER,· 1877. 
C. H. GRANT, Esq., 1vianage1· ancl Engineer-in-Chief to the T . .11i.' L. R~ilway,· re-exa;iined. 
By t!te Ohairman.-21. Can you now produce the ·printed report'and evidence taken b_efo1·e th~ 

Committee of the House of Commons in England'? Mr~ Rei_bey has kindly returned · th~ copy give,n 
him; but I must ask the Committee not to press for its presentation, ,on the ground, as I am legally 
informed, that it is not relevant to the subject of the enquiry before the Committee: 

22. You are aware that the Bill referred to this Committee is "A Bill to further amend the Main 
Line Railway Act," apd ~herefore all questions relating t_o the_ Main Line_ Raihvay are no,y open fo1; 
consid'eration by ·this Committee?_ I am legally advised that the scope of the: Committee is limited 'to the 
matters in some way connected with _the exp1'ess object of the Bill, which siinply contemplates giving the 
Govei·nment powedo allolv Bye~laws for the· protectibn of the travelling public. · 

23. Are you aware that this Bill has been refei·red to. tl1is Committee by· order of tlw Legislative 
Council, to consider whether it is des_irable to amend _the said Act; and if so, __ in what. respect, and to 
report thereon, with power to send fo1· persons and papers ? I was not aware that any lm'ger powers were 
given to the Committee in respect to the Act than .could be inferred frorri the Bill itself; but' I have 
·another ground of protest against the production· of'the document, which is-that in this enquiry before the, 
House·of Commons in England, in which 'the Government of Tasniania were in no· respect whatever 
leg·ally interested, certain .bondholders ·reprC'senting their own intere~ts only, and not the general body of 
bondholders, still less· the general undei-taking for which I have now the hcinor to appear, made, 
without having ·any accurate knowledge of the subject,· as freely confessed by themselves in thefr 
evidence, certain statements which, if quoted ,~ ithout the context, might be injurious to the trtie 
interests of the ·company; including the bondholders; _ 

24. Can you produce· copies of all correspondence in the present year that may have passed between 
yourself and the Government,· or the Solicitors of the Company have had with the Government, in reference 
to any application for pecuniary assistance to work and maintain and keep open the Main Line Railway 
for traffic? I produce copies of all correspondence on that subject during the present year, viz., a letter to 
Colonial Secretary (M1·. Heibey), 4th August, 1877; a letter to Hon. Colonial Treasurer (Mr. Giblin), 
231:d August, and his reply of the 31st August. 

25. Can you furnish the Committee with traffic receipts fro in 1st N oveinber, 1876, to the 31st October, 
1877, both .days inclusive? I should not be able to do so 'without"great corisumption of tima and labour, 
because our accounts are made up to the usual quarterly pe1·iods only, but I shall shortly be able to produce 
the detailed accounts to the 30th September._ 

26. Can you furnish the Committee with an estimate of the traffic receipts from 1st of January to tlie 
31 st December for the_ present year? Yes; I shall be happy to do so forthwith. I will furnish rntnrns 
showing the expenditure for the first three quarters, and the approximate amount for the fourth quarter. 

27. Can you also furnish the Committee with the amount expended on the works and stations during 
the present year? I shall be happy to do so. 

28. I place in your hands a copy of the Launcestirn and Western Railway Bye-laws,_ dated 5th April, 
1875, do [ understand yo11 to_ say that you will be satisfied with authority to make Bye-laws similar to 
those? Yes~ these appear to comprise all I desire. 

By 1111·. Innes.-29. · Do you know the names of the Directors in Erigland at the 'date of the Contract, 
Murch, 1872, and at the present time, and will you furnish them to the Committee ? I shall be happy to 
give the Committee all the information I have. · 

By .1lir. Ghapman.-30. Now you knov.- that this Bill-referred to the· Committee is a general Bill to 
amend the Main Line Railway Ac_t, are you prepared to hand to the Committee the printed Report and 
Evidence taken before the House of Comi:nons in Englan_d? . I shall be happy to do so, under protest, on 
the understanding that the Committee will give the same publicity to the protest as given to the evidence. 

31. Will you be prepared to attend the Committee to-morrow morning at 12, and produce the· 
Minutes and Evidence taken before.the Select.Committee of the House of Commons in England? I shall 
be happy to attend and comply with the request of the Committee. 
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C. ,H. GRANT, Esq., 1·e7erc.amin?d. 
By -Mr. Chaprnan.-32. -The document you have handed in to the Committee purports to be the 

:p;i_in ~tei,_ 9f i')y~clenGe". tak.en".1:tefore .a Sele~t . Committee. of the H.ouse .of Commons, .anrl il.ot ,the Report : 
have you any other document? I have no other document in my possession except an English newspaper 
Fhiq~, ,in !;h,e Parliam.entary tntell_igel/-ce, .\:>tates th_aU,l:il) .Report _:was ,1;>.rpuglit :up and _received by the 
Hcntse of Commons:, .. •·' .. ,. '.,, .,.,, .I .• , " . '·" " . ' . '· . • ' • ' - . 

'!·,,·»: .. -· 1 ;,,, J 'f'-.1 

... ,?3. ;Qid_y~-~~-- recriive _ the Gopy of .. tJw .Euglish Act .. 1".it.h. the do_cument? Yes,; ;I handed .it .to .the 
C,olq11iaI. 'l'rea!;,µ1'.er (¥~- .Giblin). . 

34. Under the Imperial Act.the Company are authorised to raise a further capital of £100,000 for the 
purpose of completing the Main Line Railway and works and its equipment. -Have you received any 
in.~i.m~t~qn of :the,jntel)tiq_n of;the .Company to raise. the :whole or any portion of that money? I am 
iiiformed,,bi?th offida:Uy Ji,p.d j)l'i:vately, .th_at it is .the ear,ne&t .desixe .of the Company .to immediately 
secure the subscription of the whole sum of £100,000; but I am also privately informed th~t it ;would be 
utterly Iwpel_ess, in fa.Qt (\ie _extrerpe .of folly ,to _atte!llpt t9 pla'.!e thi_s c_apit\l,l m;itil some arrangement lu1-d· __ been 
made ,vith ··the Tasma_riian.- Goverm;nent ri)"idei· ·~vhich 'the· £5000 _1:eqriired · am:iually · foi·· ~n-terest · c·ould be 
ieiarded by :capifalists _as effectually SE:i°curedi . . . . . .• . . . . . . .. 

.. , .?P• "'Y~-~Qr':th~ ja!~ -~f,you~ )a~t ~dvip~s 7 _The 3l~t of.A 11gt1st, I believe. 
36. The Chairman of the Company, Mr. Sheward, represented to the Shareholders .that y,o.u ,hacl 

!llti~a_ted t~ ,1?,jqi_the ,urge_nt 1;1eces,sity of ne~v additionµ! rolling stock. :R.ave you received any intim_ation 
9,f.t~e"in_t~ntiqp)?fJhe -~°'1?p~11y t? supply ~!~_at ,sjnce 21st J 1;1-lJ:, _1877? The Chairqian must, I think, h_ave 
1·eferred· solely to duplicate parts of the rollrng stock for .maintenance .purp()ses, and to t_wo new locomot1veiS 
wJ:iich thl) Boar,d a_ppear extremely de_sirous to sen_d o,~1t, but whiclil"ani. by no m·eans so 3<nxious· to receive until 
thy best cla,ss of engine fo_r the'Jine can· be·. fiilally and defiqitely decided upon. 'l'wo new engines may b,e 
at the pi·eseni moment mider ·cimsfruction; but I am not certn:in that they are. Sever,al profes_sional 
locomotive engineers have been consulted, and the latest authorities support niy views against those of 
c~rtain members of the Boa1'd, and I hope the matter is· still.further beiri_g enqufred into. · 

37. Have you an ample supply of engines and rolling stock to perform the existing traffic on the 
line J I· ha".e a veiy ample· supply of ro1lirig stock for all ordinary requirements; and as we have eleven 
tirst-class engines on the line for only five under steam daily, the supply of engines would be largely in 
excess ·but for om· difficulties in adapting them to the line. 

38. Are these eleven engines all in good and efficient stat~ of repair, and in thorough working order? 
I regret to say not, but on the arrival of duplicates ,now on board the Wagoola I trust we shall be able to 
P.:!?:ke them ,so. 

· 39. Ho~, ~any engines at the present time ,ha:ve you in .thorough working order? I believ_e that 
there is only one that is thoroughly diRabledfor want of duplicates; all the others are in working· order, or 
could be made so in the course of a few days. 

40. Two of these engines, then, are only suitable for the express _trnin service ? Two are the most 
suitable, but any of our engines will, op emergeil.cy, perfoqn the service. 

41. But in event of one of tl10s~ _t}vo coming to grief could you continue the fast train for a month 
with safety to the passengers? Yes, p_erfectly so with one engine only, but we have also all the others in 
reserve. 

42. The distance from Hobart 'l'own to Launceston and back to Hobart Town is 266 miles, is. it not? 
Jes. 
· " 43. You have been performing the fast train service with one engine, No. 9, for the last six weeks? 

"Not _quite so long as that, I think: previously No. 8 ran for some weeks, but this is only for our convenience 
and not a matter of necessity. 

AfTERNOON SITTING. 

MR. GRANT'S examination continJted, 

JJy 1Wr. _Gru_'f?b.-4'/,. Are you aware of any Comp~my in Great Britain being empower(3d to mak~ 
:J3Y,e-law~ be~o~e th_eir Railway _lias beer_i ,inspe~ted by the ~?ard of Tr~.d~? I tl~ink tl,iat every Englisl~. 
Company has it~ Bye-laws certified by the necessa_l'y authorities before 1t 1s open for traffic; and as every 
Raihvay is op~i:i· for traffic im~ediately on the certificate of the Board o_f Trade being given, I presume that 
the Bye-laws 'would in all cases be ·antecedent to ~uch approval. · . · · · 

By•Jlfr. Jl'Ioo!;~·~15.· Are ~ye:]aws ~ot made under authority o_f ~:n A.et.of Parfotment? I do not 
tJ:ti_n"¼: as a special Act in e1:1cli CB;se; 9~it they are :).!ways certifie_d, I believe, by on_e or two of _the J udge.f 
···· ·46. IIave: y~~ known ,any' railway, qpen for traffi_e b~fore bei~g inspected by the :I3oard of Tr~de?­

Yes, in more than one instance, although in direct defian.ce of a special Act which confer~ on the Board of. 
'J_'rade the pow,er to inflic_t penalties for sq do_ing. 
'' . ~y lefr. f!!tapma_n.~41. ·can )'OU 11an1e any of tho~~ rail;vays? I eann9_t by nanJ.e, but there wa~ one_· 
in South Wales near Monmouth, and a short line in Central Ireland about !~,years ago. 

]Jy_ Mr, ]!:foqre-~8. Is the Mai_n Line Railway now running in accordance ;yith th_e rules and 
r'<gulat/ons of t)ie B_oard of Trad\)? '1.'he J3o~.rd of 'frade have I).qt, to my kno~vledge, any power or. 
iuthority wb'at!-)V\Jr over the runni;ng of Railways; nor hav_e they any rules gqverning tl}e. rµnning. 
'!f Railways, to the best of my belief.· 
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By Mr. Olw2rrnan.-49. Have you any signals on the Main Line Railway's semaphores, &c.? No: 

because this is totally unnecessary, and was so reported by the Indian Government; for all the lines 
under their control, being single lines of rail, worked by the telegraph. Moreover, signals are never used 
in America, where there is the greatest development of single lines of Railway in the whole world. 

By .Afr. llioore.-50. What system do you use in working the traffic? The staff system in 
connection with the telegraph. 

By Mr. G1·ubb. -51. In what way were you informed that the House of Assembly required that the 
Company's action against the Government should be discontinued before they would lend the necessary 
funds to keep the Railway open? By the advice of the Hon. Mr. Giblin to the House of Assembly in my 
hearing, which was evidently concurred in by the House; and upon it Mr. Reibey postponed the consider­
ation of giving aid to the Company until a correct legal notice had been given to the Law Officers of the 
Crown of the abandonment ofthe action. 

52. Was there any substantive motion submitted to the House to that effect? To th~ best of my 
memory there was not, but it was quite evident that the House agreed with Mr. Giblin and Mr. Reibey 
and at once gave way. · 

53. Do you know whether that appears on the Journals of the House of Assembly? I do not. 
B,1J .11:fr. O!taznnan.-54. In one of the accounts you have handed in, marked C, there is one showing 

expenditure of £13,548 as expended on construction account during_ 1877, is that in addition to the 
£58,426 shown in Account B, or is it included in that amount? It is in addition, and the two accounts 
are entirely distinct. 

55. What is the n:iture of that expenditure? Additional rolling stock, waggons, hors~-boxes in part 
only, new sidings and stations thereon, alterations of platforms, land purchases for contractors, &c. I do 
not think that this expenditure includes new ballast. 

56. Have you added any new ballast to the Line during the last 12 months? We have changed a 
quantity of ballast, replacing what became deteriorated either by atmospheric action or soft places in the 
bed of the road by better materials. 

57. Is that between Hobart Town and Brighton, or on the Midland side? Throughout the whole 
line more or less, wherever such change was found necessary. 

58. This new ballast must have cost a large amount, to what account has it l:>een charged, maintenance 
or construction of line? Latterly to maintenance; but I think that some little at first was charged to 
construction. 

59. Can you give the Committee any approximate idea of what has been expended on this new 
ballast? I am totally unable to say, it has the usual patchwork all through. 

60. There has been then no actual re-ballasting? Not any part of the line has been reballasted­
simply patchwork in repairs that will be always required. 

WEDNESDAY, 7 NovEMBER, 1877. 

JAM.ES FINCHAM, Esq., examined. 

By Mr. Grubb.-61. Your name? James Fincham. 
62. You hold the office of Engineer-in-Chief in Tasmania? I do. 
63. Can you inform the Committee as to the practiqe in England, whether it is usual for a Railway 

Company to have power to make bye-laws previous to their railway being inspected and passed by the 
Board of Trade? I believe the power to make bye-laws is given at the time the Bill for the constructiop. 
of such railways is passed in Parliament. 

By 11fr. ll:foore.-64. Have you known that power to be exercised before the line had been inspected 
and open for the purpose of traffic? No: I have not, I say that from my general knowledge of railways; 
but I have never been engaged in the management of railways, my whole life has been devoted to their 
construction. 
. 65. Do you think it desirable that all railways, before being open for traffic, should be inspected and 
passed in accordance with the Rules and Regulations of the Board of Trade ? Certainly; and in places 
on the Continent where similar Boards do not exist the works undertaken by Foreign Companies are 
generally inspected and passed by the Government Engineers. 

66. From your knowledge of railways in England have you ever known any railway open for 
passenger traffic before inspection? Never; I believe if it were so opened the Government would at once 
step in. In every case I can call to mind that I have ·been engaged in there has always been· a rigid 
inspection before the certificate has been given ; anrl I have known the opening of the lines delayed for 
weeks until the Board of Trade Engineer had made a second inspection to ascertain that the · defects 
complained of in the first inspection had been remedied. 

By llfr. Ailwnltead.-67. Can·you name any railways that have thus been delayed in opening? 
The Worcester and Hereford. !'have known the opening of a Railway delayed by a signal post being 
a short distance too near the line. 

By llfr. .Afom·e.-68. Do you think the usual system of transmitting signals by semaphore are 
essential to_ the safe working of railways? I think they are a security that should not be dispensed with, 
and certainly no railway in England could be opened without· them; even a single line for light traffic 
for either goods 01· passengers. 
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. '69. Are you aware if tlie semaphore system of transmitting signals is· in use in the -railways of the 
adjacent Colonies? I have no knowledge of the other Colonies, but have seen it in use near Melbourne. 
· 70. What system do you recommend for -the working of trains and the general conduct of traffic on 

;1,ingle lines of railway? -'I.'he train staff and ticket system assisted by telegraph. 
By JI.I?'. Chapman.-71. You have travelled on the Main Line Railway frequently? . Yes. 
72. Is t~at system in use on that Line of Railway?. I believe so. · 
73. Are the general arrangements for the conduct of ti·ain traffic on that line in your opinion satisfactory, 

and calculated to protect the travelling public? I don't know sufficiently well what those arrangements 
are to give an opinion. 

By Mr. Innes.-74. Is there any control or supervision of railways during the period of their con­
struction, under the authority of the Board of Trade, by Engineers responsible to the Board, in England? 
No; only after the works are completed and notice to that effect given is the inspertion made. · 

75. Is an inspection during construction not indispensable to qualify an ·Engineer to pronounce with 
confidence on the character of a railway when it is reported a§ complete? I think a ca,reful inspection 
after completion ought to be sufficient to enable any practical Engineer to judge of the character of a 
railway. · · 

. 76. What information is supplied by any company to the Board of Trade for the assistance of the 
Engineer before certifying to a rail way ? 'l'ables of the position and radius of every curve, and position and 
rate·of every gradient, position and size of all culverts and bridges, particulars 6fall earthworks, drawings 
-of permanent way, and all other works, and particulars and drawings for accommodation of 3rd cla~s 
passengers, and a Plan and Section of the whole Line as sanctioned with all deviations from such sanctioned 
Line marked thereon. · · 

, 77. In construction of railways by contract in England, are there Engineers respectively empl~yed by 
the Contractors for the works, and the Company for whom they are constructed ? Yes. . 
. 78. Are these respective Engineers parties to the furnishing to the Board of Trade of the details on 
which the Engineer of the Board of Trade bases his certificate? The information is supplied by the 
District Engineers to the Chief Engineer, and then to the Board of Trade by the Company. · 
. · 79. These District Engineers and the Chief Engineer, are they all Officers employed by the Company 
,only?. Yes; and act quite independently of the Contractors' Engineers. 

80. Do you know any railway that has been constrncted under similar conditions to the Main Line 
Rail way ? No, I do not. 
· · By. JI.fr. Dodery.-,-81. Is it not usual to have Bye-laws ready before the opening of the Line? It is 

:the usual practice I believe, so that the Bye-laws come into operation instantaneous]:}' with the opening of 
,the Line. 

82. Are Bye-laws made in accordance with the Rules and Regulations of the Board of Trade? I 
<think so. · · 

By .ilfr. Cltapman.-83. In your visits on the· Line you have observed the condition of the rolling 
,stock generally? I have. 

8_4. Can you give the Committee any idea of the present condition of that rolling ~tock? Not of the 
1present condition. 

85. ·when you observed th~ condition what was your opinion? I have only travelled between 
Hobart Town and Launceston three times since my return to the Colony in March last. · 

86. Were you thoroughly acquainted with the rolling stock previous to your leaving the Colony? 
y~ . 

87. What was your opinion of that rolling stock, at that period? It was quite unsuitable for the · 
·traffic, with the exception of the waggons. In my opinion the carriages were more unsuitable than the 
•engines. 

88. Are the same sort of carriages still in use on the line ? I believe so, 
89'. In what respect do you consider the carriages unsuitable? I consider them so· both in design and 

-construction for use on a railway running at the highest contract speed. 
90. More especially for sharp curves·! They are as unsuitabl_e for running 40 miles an hour on the 

~, straight" as they have to do occasionally, as they are for going round the sharp curves at 12 to .15 miles 
,an hour. 

AFTERNOON SITTING. 

BEN,TAMIN TRAVERS SOLLY, Esq., examined. 
By 11:fr. Chapman.-91. Your name is Benjamin Travers Solly and you are Assistant Colonial 

·Secretary? · Yes. 

92. It has be~n sta'ted in Parliament that Mr. Mason, an Engineer of the Gover~ment of New So~th 
Wales, when inspecting the Main Line Railway, in the month of June; 1876, furnished the Government 
with a report, showing in detail what was necessary to be done at that time to complete the rnilway and 
works in accordance with the contract. Was such a report furnished to you, or to any member of the 
Government as far as you are aware? No; but I lay before the Committee a Correspondence that took 
place between the late Government (Mr .. Reibey's) and .. Mr. Mason on the.subject, during the months of 
May and June, 1877. (See Appendix A 1.) 

93. Was there any Memo. relating to the Main Line Railway handed in to the Government by Mr. 
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Mason separate from the repor~ ma<le_ by _Messrs. Mais, Mason, and Stanley_? Mr. l\f ason sent_ in a, 
statemr,nt· of what' in l1is opinion it' would ccist"to 'effecbmch' repairs fo the Main Liiie Railway·as would 
put it'in running order,: ai ·any rate for b. time; ·but'tli'e Government of ·the day having'sought from Mr. 
~ason an ·estimate· of the eost of such repairs and ·alterations; &c. as would. fulfil the conditions' of the­
contract, and the information furi:iished by Mr. l\fason not 1i1eeting these requfrements on the part of tl1e­
Government, the document was withdrawn, and was never recognised as an official report from that. 
gentleman·. ·Mr. Mason informed 'mEdhat to prepare' Stich a l;eport and estimate of 'cost, as'_ihe Govern-
ment required, would occupy an extended period, and that he ,v~uld need.a staff of_ assistants. · . 

. rHURSDAY, _8· ,~qVEM~ER, 1877_-

RICHARD vVIL~IA:\'-{ LOJ{D, Jj}sq., J.1:Ianager of Launceston a;1-rl Western Railway, examined .. 
l3y Mr. Innes.--:-94. Your name is ~ichar_d William Lorp.,? Yes. 
95. You are Manager ofthe Lauiicey3tori and Western Rail way? Yes. 
96: What le~gth ~f firrie h~ve you been officially connected with the Launceston and Western 

Railway? Eight years; 3 years as Accountant, 5 as Manager. · 
· 97. Pre~ions ·t0 yo~tr app~intment in ~orinectiori with that rail:way; _w~rnt opport~nities had you 0£· 

acquiring a knowledge of En'glish ·railway management? I was engaged for 10 years in three large 
'.Eno-lish railways, 'ofre of the lattei· of which I was private secretary to the General Manager of the Great 
'\V eitern, froin whose office all the leadin'g communications were made, and also all communications --ivith 
the Board of Trade in reference to the opening'of branch- lines and ·accidents.· All the d(!tails' connected 
with working the line came under my immediate notice. · · 
- · · 98. Engli~h i;ap,v~ys ~i·e ~ot·· suffe;~_d to run for traffic ,vithou_t previous ~anctio~ fr?m the Board of· 
Trade? Only at the mk of a defined· penalty. · · · · · · · 

· 9~. Will you iiifo1-'~ the. C~m~ittee what i_s the course of proceeding . between a railway companY, 
and the Board of Trade 'befoi·e obtaining its sanction·to a railway being opened for' traffic? For the -com­
pletion of the raihvay· a form'•of notice, which is si1pplied by the Board of Trade to aJ!'Companies, is filled 
up by ortler'ofthe Directors of'the' Company, and fransmitfed by the Secretary to tile' Board of' Trade­
Railway Department, together .with plans, information in reference to the 'line soiight to be· opened, and 
sections and detail engineering schedules required by the.Board ()f Trade, forms for which are also supplied 
by the Board of Trade; aftei· which an inspection is made by an officer deputed for that purpo_se by the Board 
of Trade, to whom is generaUy submitted the proposed time-table of trains to be run, which time­
table is operated upon 'after the receipt of the certificate from the Board of Trade sanctioning the line 
for traffic: Shoitlcl, · however, the 'certificate ·not be granted, in co1'isequence of certain reqnire:nents. 
of the inspecting officer not being fulfilled, the opening of the line .is postponed until such works are 
executed. In the- case of'the ·b1;anch line belonging to the Great Western Railway Company, termed the­
Aberdare Extension, the inspecting officer required the alteration of points and signals at Pontypool 
J"~nction, which ·delayed t_he ·opening for a fortnight;· and I could mention two similar cases where delay 
occurred. · · · · 

100. Could yon inform us of the nature of tlie inspection made by the Engineer on the part 
of tl1e Board of Trade? The Inspecting Officer generally visits the whole of the works, accompanied· 
by the Company's Engineer and ~Ianager. His particular attention is generally-directed to the station 
accommodation and 'signal ·ari"angeruents, 'i·elyin•g upoh the certifi'cates of the·· Company's Engineer for the-
other works. · '· · · '' ,,,, .. '·'• · ' · ·' · · · · · · · 

101. Does he test the bridges? In some instances; not invariably. 
102. Is that inspection merely a superficial examination? With exception of station and traffic· 

arrangements comprisin•g the system of signalling to· be adopted; it is superficial. The Company's Engineer· 
,vho certifies to'the detailed schedules ·of the works having been duly executed is, I believe, held responsible 
by the Board of Trade, and is punishable for any misrepresentation in such schedule, in accordance with 
" The Railway Regulation Act, 1866." " ' · · · · ·· · · · · · · .. · ·, · · 

103. Is ihe Company's Engineer entirely responsible to and paid by the Company? Certainly; and. 
l1as the whole control of the works during consfrnctioll'. 'And this- Officer· is the Officer referred to 
previously as c~rtifying to the Board of Trade requirements. · · 

104. Usually· the co~sfruction of railways for companies is carried out by contractors for the 
execution of the work? Almost invariably. 

105. Under what check during the progress of construction? Supervision of the Company's Engineer 
and Staff. 

106. What do you mean by the Staff? Professional i\.ss,is_tants of the Chief Engineer. 
W?'- You are acquainted with t_he Main Line Qoriti-act? Yes.· 
108. Yo~ know ·:t~lly 'the conti~genfinte{·ests ~n'ci. li~bilitie~ of the Government of Tasma_nia under· 

that contract? I do. 
'· ·: 109. Especially that the liabilities of the Government would be affectl:ld by the fidelity of the works: 
according to con'tract'?" Yes·. ' · · · ·' · · · ·· .. , · · · · · 

:.····· lJO.· What I. ~ean if ·construction were faulty, the cost of maintenance would be increased, and con­
sequently the liability of the· Colony would be affected? Iftlie construction was faulty the expenses of· 
maintenance w~ulQ. · n~cessarily pe increased, and co?sequently thr probability of reducing the subsidy 
made more remote. · 



lll. Having such an interest, a pecuni~i·y inte~est,'· izf the proper construction of the Main Line 
~'.1ilway .an4 its wor~s,_ a,:e. you. of opil)io_n that it :w_as desirable -that :.the Government should hay!' 
-provided for the supervision· of the rail way during ccin~t~·uctiori ? . No; because according to my reading­
,.of the contract such an officer would have had no power to order any alteration, or to interfere in any 
way. 

ll2. Would it have been .of _no con~equence to the Government to :have had. competent evidence from 
-:an ,9ffic,er e.mr,~oyecl ,by th_e Cipv~rnmen,t as to.whe~Jier details specifically ,contra,cted,foi: were execut~d 01· 

riot execiited 'iri' acccn:dance with definite tehns of confrad?. I cari~ot see.that it\vould. l~~ve been. of any 
,assistance. . · 

. By '1JI1·'. .1Woore.-ii8.' I~ there ahythirig i~ th~ 'co~tr~c(iric~~piLAbi~' ~itftl~~ iue iul:fil~ent h~, tq~:: 
Qompany of tl~~ conclitio1,1s _insis_ted upon by tj1~. :Poard ?f Trade be[ore _the ~ail way _wa~ _opened, for tn1.ffic? 
·Only the quest10n of gauge, which1 unless specially' leg1slated for, 1s determrned accordmg to the Board of 
'Trade at 4 feet 8½ inches and 5 feet 3 inches for England and Ireland respectively. · 

. By' ffir. C!taj~man.-114.· For tµe· l~st 12·monihs the· traffic. oi" the. Main Li'~e· Ifaihv~l h~s- been 
,passing over a Sec~ion of the Launce13ton arid W:estern. Railway between Evandale. Junction and the Maiii:' 
Line Railways Station in Launceston? Yes~ from 1st November, 1876. . 
· · 115. Js that thir<fline of rail no~ in,' good order'? It is iri°faii; oi·der now

1

; it'has never b;en actually 
in good order in consequence of the design. 
~ · 116'. You )iave ~ g6_9d opportµr:iity qf ·ol/sei:ving -t~e epgines. an.d cari·iag~s. pii-ssin'g over that line? 

Not sn1?-ciently iritimate, :from· observing 'passage ·of trains ·only, to offer an opinion as to the condition of 
the rolling stock. . 

117. You are unable to give us any opinion of the· cari·iages'·? No. 
ll8. Neither as to the ·engines·? No. , . . 
Jl9. C_an_yougiye the Committee any information as to wh~thJr the·· station a~~bri-iri.{~a~ti~~ .. ofthe,Mai~: 

Line-Railway at Launceston is ·sufficient or· otherwise? I have not sufficient knowledg~ ·ofthe Main Line 
Railway traffic to say. . 

. : . 1~0;' 'Fi:om:, )'.OU!' 0 bseJ'Vflti9n : c:in '.you give th~' ,dpmmi ttee any .othei· 
0

irif~pnation:respe9ting the··. s.tatio~ ; 
,accoinmodat10n at Evandale J,unction and, other stations, say Corners, Campb_eHT01Vn, .Ro~s.? .The only,_. 
,stations I am: sufficie11tly familiai· with to offer an opinion . upon are the Evan.dale Junction and the 
.Evandale Station, the accommodation of both these stations is not adequate for either passengers or goods, 
,particularly the latter. · · 

121. Is there ample shelter for passengers. frqrn the weathe1· at either or both those stations? Tbe 
shelter is very limited, but probably ·sufficient for existing passenger traffic, which is very light. 

122. In the ·accounts submitted to this Committee by the' Manager of the Main .Line Railway, he, 
states that the Company's liability to the G_overnment for the use of th.e Launceston ,and Western Railway 
ds £250 a _quarter: have you made any estimate.of the demand the Government should mak.e against,.the 
Main Line Rail way Company in accordance with the conditions of the Contract ancl the provisions of the 
.Act of Parliament for the Ufle of that section of the Railway during the past year? •.·I have estimated the 
v_alue of. this portion of the Line to the Main Line Railway Company at about £7000 a year. In reference 
to the estim'lte of the Manager of the Main Line Railway of the sum of £1000 per annum for the right 
-of exereising·mnning ·powers between Evandale Junction and l,aunceston, the statements of working;' 
expenses of the Main Line Railway submitted by the Manager of the _Main_ Line Railway show the 
.actual cost of working such a length of Line, viz. 11¼ miles, excluding-'locomotive power and carriages and 
waggons, as closely approaching £2800 per annum. 

123. The Company are using this Line under ar1;angements with the G~vernment that the. _amount, . 
-the Company shall pay the Government for the use of the section of the Launceston and Western Railway, ' 
failing mutual agreement, shall be settled by arbitration in one month from the 1st November instant. 
Have any steps been taken to proceed to this arbitration? I believe the Government are taking steps to 
Tefer to arbitration, . . . . . . 

•. 124. ·Th~ Company then are now using the Launceston and Western Railway for run~ing their trains . 
between Evanclale -Junction and Launceston without having. arranged with. the Government the terms or , 
:atnqunt they shall _pay for the same 'l Yes ; I reported to the Minister of Lands on the subject in the 
first week of October. 

By .111r. Ailw_nhead.-125. Since which no.steps have been yet taken for a new agreement for the 
.seconcl year? No. 

126. Can you inform the Committee the cost of that section of the LaU:nc~ston and Western Railway 
-over ,~·hich the Main Line Railway mns, between _Evandale Junction and Launceston? Yes; the amount 
is £115,278 6s. 4d. . . . .. 

]~7. Cari yoii inform the Committee the cost per annum for mai,ntenance and all other cha1;ges of that', 
portion of the lin·e ? Yes ; I will furnish the particulars : rene wa!s, and ordinary working expenses, 
£14,679, including interest: . .. . 

By 1111·. · Chap11ia1i.-l28: I place in your ha~ds a copy or' the Launceston ·and W e~tern Railway ; 
Bye-laws, 5th April, 1875. Do you see any objectiop. to the Main . Line Railway (J.ompany being 
:authorised to es·tablish similar bye-laws for the use of the Main Line ·Railway? None whatever. If bye­
)a"'S are granted, I believe these t6 be best adapted. · 
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AFTERNOON SITTING. 

ROBERT MACKENZIE JOHNSTON, Accountant to tlte Launceston and Western Railn;ay, 
examined. 

By 11Ir. Cltapman.-129. Your name? Robert Mackenzie Johnston. 
130. And you are Accountant in the Launceston and Western Railway? I am. 
131. You are thoroughly acquainted with that portion of the Line between Evandale Junction and 

Launceston? In my_ capacity as Accountant and Storekeeper I am. 
132. Arc you acquainted with the condition of the engines, carriages, and rolling stock of the Main 

Lin_e Railway? Only as far as a passenger is concerned. 
133. During the past year how many times do you think you travelled on the Main Line Railway? 

·within twelve times. 
134. What was the condition of the carriages you rode in as to construction and condition? As 

regards condition, in very good order. As regards construction, so far as my opinion is valuable, I con- . 
sider for the character of stock they were in good order. My opinion is limited tu first-class carriages. 

135. Do you consider the carriages suitable for the traffic of the .M.ain Line Railway, bearing in mind 
the speed, gradients, and sharp curves ? I am not prepared to say. 

136. Have you in your ·experience ever seen the spiral springs used on passenger carriages, first and 
second class? I have heard of them being used and afterwards rejected because of defects. 

137. Do you think one of the Main Line Railway carriages would last as long as one of the Launces-
ton and W cstern Rail way carriages· would? Ccrtai_nly not. . 

138. Do you think one of the Main Line Railway carriages will last half as long as one of the 
Launceston and Western carriages? I think not. 

139. Have you made a calculation as to the demand that the Government would be justified in making 
on the Main Line Rail way Company for running powers over the section of the Launceston and ·w cstern 
Railway, between Evandale Junction and Launceston, in accordance with the conditions of the contract 
and the Act of Parliament, for tlie year ending 31st October? I have, and it justified a demand on the 
Main Line Railway Company by the Government for that service amounting to about £7000. 

TUESDAY, 13 NOVEMBER, 187-7. 

MR. W. E. BATCHELOR, Locomotii•e Supm-intendent to Launceston and lVestem Rail1Vay, examined. 

By 1llr. C!tapman.-140. Your name? William Eastgatc Batchelor. 
141. And you arc Locom·otive Superintendent on the Launceston and Western Railway? Yes. 
142. Will you be good enough to give the Committee your experience on railways? I have been 

connected with railways since 1856, in construction of railways, iron bridges, rolling stock, and fixed plant. 
143. In what part of the world? In England, Wales, Spain, Portugal, and the Colonies of Queens­

land and Tasmania. 
144. You were some time in Queensland? Four and a half years. 
145. And how were you engaged? I was engaged for the first two years under the Engineer-in-• 

Chief as Superintendent of iron bridges and fixed plant, the remainder of the time Locomotive Foreman 
at the Toowoomba Junction. 

146. Then you are thoroughly acquainted with the construction and working of the 3ft. Gin. narrow 
gauge railways in Queensland? I am. 

147. From your practical knowledge of locomotives and rolling stock on railways, what is your 
opinion of the engines used on the ]\fain Line Railway? I can only speak definitely upon the original 
6-wheel coupled engines, as I erected two of them for the lVIain Line Railway,-these engines are now 
used on the mail and ordinary trains: I consider them the most unsuitable engines'that could be designed• 
for use on such a railway, being at least 13 tons too heavy. 

J 48. These engines have .been at work for some time? It was 3 years last October since I put them 
together, but they have since been altered into 4-wheel coupled engines, and the tanks taken off; but they • 
arc still too heavy, and the rigid wheel base far too long to traverse the 5 chain c_urves with economy. 

149. Comparing these engines with those in use on the Queensland Lines, what is the difference?· 
The Tasmanian Main Li!!e Railway engines are of the following dimensions :-Total wheel base, 19 feet· 
] 0 inches ; rigid wheel base, measuring from the centre of the ·bogie to the centre of the trailing axle, 
17 feet 6 inches; coupled wheels, 7 feet 6 inches. The Queensland engines : the rigid wheel base, 7 feet 
2 inches; total wheel base, 10 feet 9 inches; 6 wheels coupled, 3 feet 3 inches-in diameter; Bissel truck 
in front, 2 feet diameter; total weight in steam, 20 tons; max.imum load up a bank of 1 in 50, exclusive of· 
engine and tender, 70 tons. 

150. Have you had an opportuni_ty of examining these locomotives lately? I have not. 
151. Do you consider the engines on the Main Line· Railway equal in finish, construction, and work-• 

manship to those on the Qucemland and Launceston and vV astern Railways? As regards the manu­
facture of the engines there is nothing to complain of,-thc error being in the design; the workmanship is. 
good, but an absence of finish. 
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152. When you saw those engines when they first came out, what did you consider their value? 

About £60 to £65 per ton, delivered alongsidte the ship in the docks in London, being from £1800 to 
£2000 each. 
. 153. At that time the cost of engines and rolling stock was very high? At the present time they 
·could be got from £5 to £10 less per ton. · 

154. Can you inform the Committee the cost of the last engine and tender sent out to the Launceston 
and Western Railway per ton, and gross in the docks ? £2395 free on board in London, or £65 per ton. 

155. You spoke of the rigid wheel base of the engine on the Main Line Railway being" longer than 
those on the Launceston and Western Railway? Yes, by 2ft. 6in.,, although the curves on the Laun­
ceston and Western Railway are 15 chains, and those on the Main Line Railway only 5 chains. The rigid 
wheel base on the Queensland Line is 7ft. 2in., with 5 chain curves. 

By 11:Ir. Grubb.-156. You have described that the rigid wheel base .is far too long to traverse the 
five-chain curves with economy, is it too long to traverse the same with safety? As long as the 
permanent way is strong enough to carry them within certain limits of speed they are safe enough. 

157. Is the permanent way of the Main Line Railway, with the 40lbs. rail, strong,enough in your 
opinion to carry the same? It is not: the simple rule, which is correct within certain limits for all 
practical purposes, is 15lbs. of metal per yard in rail, if supported at intervals, for each ton load on the 
wheel. By this calculation the rails should be at least 60lbs. per yard. 

158. Would there be any difficulty to construct engines to run on a 40lbs. rail calculated to do 
the work required on the Main Line Railway? None whatever. 

159. What lateral play was there in the bogies? ·3 inches on each side of the centre pin when I saw 
th~. . . 

160. Did you alter that? I did not alter them in any way. 
161. With such lateral play, are not engines more liable to run off the Line; and if so, what in your 

opinion should be the maximum lateral play? About l¼ inch lateral play is benefi_cial, if applied judi­
ciously; but the way the bogies run on the Main Line Railway, instead of putting the weight on the off­
rail, as it ought to do, it was just the reverse,-and the leading coupled-wheels having no flange the engine 
would not keep the road even on the straight; that is before they were altered .. 

By Mr. C!tapman.-162. You are acquaiU:ted with the carriages in use on the Main Line Railway? 
I have a general knpwledge of them~ but have never examined them. . 

163. Do you consider them safe for the traffic of the Main Line Railway, bearing in mind the speed, 
gradients, and sharp curves? I consider them a most unsuitable carriage for the requirements of the 
traffic, as they have a rigid wheel base of about 10 feet, which is far too long to traverse the 5-chain curves 
with safety, except at a very limited rate of speed; at present, instead of running round the curves they 
jerk round them; they are a very short-lived stock, some of the carriage bodies are now very loose on 
the under frames, and of very light construction, more fit to carry dolls than passengers_. 

By ]Jfr. Dodery.-164. Do you consider the single buffer to be equal to the double one? I do not; 
for if an engine-man was to see anything on the road in traversing a 5-chain curve and was to suddenly 
reverse his engine, it would have a tendency to throw the middle portion of the train off the road: it would 
be safer if the brake power were always applied from the tail end of the train : the system in use in Queens-
·land is the double buffer. ' . 

By Mr. Oltapman.-165. With regard to the brake power used on the Main Line Railway, what is 
'your opinion of it? The brake used on the Main Line Rail way is Clarktl's Friction Brake, which is a 
·very good brake, but is entirely dependent on the weakest link in the chain that applies it; if that should 
break, the brake cannot he applied. It is the same kind of brake that is used in Queensland. I have 
not heard of any accidents with the passenger trains on the Main Line Railway, but I believe there have 
been accidents from the chain breaking to other trains. 
. B,1J Mr . .1Woore.-I66. It is specified in the Contract between the Main Line Railway Company and 
the Government of Tasmania that all stations, rolling stock, and all other works connected with the Main 
Line Railway shall be constructed of the best material and in a thoroughly substantial manner, has that 
condition of the Contract been carried out? As far as my general knowledge goes, most decidedly not. 

By .11:Ir. Cltapman.-167. Is there a sufficient supply of rolling stock,? If it had been a suitable 
design 10 engines would have been ample for the first 5 years, and then increased to 13 ; with regard to 
passenger carriages, I do not know the number on the Main Line Railway, but they are only· made to 
carry 20 passengers ; in Queensland the carriages will seat 16 first-class and 32 · second-class passengers, 
and they traverse the curves with remarkable ease and safety; some of them have 4-wheel bogies· at each 
end, and others with 6 wheels on Clarke's system. 

168. What is your opinion respecting the mileage an engine ought to travel every day? The engines 
at present running the Express have a 4 ft. 6in. driving wheel, the average mileage per annum should be 
about 22,000 miles, (running about 5 days a week). I consider an engine of that class should only run 
one trip per day of 133 miles, and to work the Express Line with economy there should be 3 engines at 
least to do the present work. 

169. If the Express Engine runs _for several weeks 6 days in the week, and 266 miles per day, what 
would.be the consequence? It does not give opportunity to clean the boiler of the engine and therefore 
shortens its life, but if the engine were new it could be done with safety for the firs,t 12 months.· · 

. 170 .. Can you inform the Committee the character of the waggons _used on the Main Line Railway 

.as to construction and suitability? I have not examined them as to construction, but they appear to b~ 
suitable. · 
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171. Do you consider that it is necessary for the safe working of single lines that signals sho.uld be 

used at stations? I do where there are points or other. obstructions. · · 
172. Did you notice any want of signals when approaching the bridge at "Bridgewater?· I noticed 

that there was only a hand signal' used; and, in my opinion, there imght to be a semaphore at the bridge, 
and two· distant signals placed 200 or 300 yards clear of the bridge, one on each side, all interlocked 
with the draw-bolts of the swing-bridge. Thts. prov~siQJl wou1d ef\able engine-meµ to pull up whe.n the 
line is obs.tructed. I consider thl) existing arrangement to be_mos.t dangerous,. and woul\l, certair1ly not be 
allowed by the Board of Trade. · 

_A,.FTERN:OON SITTING. 

MR. W. E. BATCHELOR'S exaniination continued. 
173. In your opinion the express train running without those precautions is highly dangerous to 

traffic, and sooner or· later· some serious accident will occur, and the train go into the Derwent? · That is 
my opinion. 

174'. Have. you had any opportunity of exalllining the permanent way? I ~iave wallrnd oyer some 
portion of it froin Evandale Junction to the township, and from the Corners station towards Campbell 
Towµ, and think it is very lightly constructed, and comparing it with the Queensland light railways, 
though of the same weight of rail, it is very inferior. 

175. Did you notice the condition of the ballasting on the Line as compared with the ballasting of 
the Launceston and Westem Railway? It is very inferior. 

176. How does it compare with the ballasting of the Queensiand Line? It is worse still. 
177. What was the character of the Main Line Railway ballast which you saw?· Fine sand, with a 

sprinkling of g_ravel on the top. · 
178. vVhat was the character of the Launceston and W ester:q Railway l;>aUast near the Evandale 

Junction ? Good grav:el, and plenty· of it. · · 
179. And would the Main Line Railway Company l,1ave h3:d any difficulty in getting balla,st of the 

same description for ballasting their line? I have heard that there was plent,Y. of good lllaterial for bal-
lasting the Main Line Railway, but there may be some distance to lead it. · 

18Q. What was the character of the ballast used on the Queensland Line?· Broken metal 3:ll over; 
9 feet 6 inches wide, and 8 inches unde~· the sleepers. 

181. You are well acquainted with the s.ection of the Launceston an.d Western Rai~way between 
Evandale Junction and Laun,ces,ton upon which a third line of rail has been laid for rum:1ing the M\J.~n 
Ljne trains; what is the l)ffect on the permanent way? It ten.cls to. destroy the on,e rail of tlrn La1~ncestol). 
and Western Railway, which i.s too strong for the M;3:i,n Line ra,il, and thefofo1:e the. engine has a tenden_yy 
to hug the Launceston and Western rail, and so destro:r _it. , · · 

182. You were requested by Mr. C. H. Grant, Manager of the Main J;.ine Railway, to inspect and 
repo1:t on the locom_o,tives sent out, to w9rk the traffic o~ the Main. J;.i~e? Yes. 

183. Have you got a copy ofthat:i;eport? Yes. Wil1 you furnish it to the Commit;tee ?: Yes. [Mr. 
Batchelor handed in the following letters :-Mr. Batchelor to Mr. Grant, 18th September, 18;74; Mr. 
Grant's answer, 15tl~ Oc~ober., 1874;, marked Y. and z .. in .i:\,ppendix.] In: handing the ·foregoing corre­
spondence to the Committee, Mr. Batchelor clesii:ed to. s11.y that, "to meet Mr. Grant's wishes, an.cl l).Ot to 
alter the original design more th_an cou.ld be l~elped, I recomwencled this plan,; but if I had been going t.o 
d_o them for my use, I wo,ul.d hav:e cut the boiler and brought the trailing wheels further forward, which 
would have bee11 a considerable exp.ens.e. Of cou~·se sµitable sto,ck could be made to wo.rk the line in 
safety. Any narrow gauge line will cost from 10 to,. 15, pei: cent. more for m·aintenan.ce and worki.ng 
expenses than the brol!-d gauge." 

184. From what you no:w know of the cons.t1:uction of th.e permanen,t ,vay and rolling stock of t~e 
MQ,in Line Railway, are you of _opinio;n that th.e work~ng expenses wi,11 be in excess of the working 
expenses and maintei:iance on the Queensland Line~ ~ a:rµ of opinion that i.t would cost fully 30 per cen.t. 
more to work and n;iaintain the Main .Line Railway as at pi;ese:rit laid dpwn and equipped as compared 
with the Queensland narrow gauge railway and: e4uipment , · 

185. You are aw:).re that many complaints have been m.a,cl.e by farmers and o,ther residents from fi~es 
having occurred caused by the engines in use. on the Main Line of Railway,-can yo_u account fo1: it? 
~pa.rk-arreste1:s Ii.ave b_een used, but on account of interfering with the ·draft they have been dispeI).se.d 
with on most Railways. With engines in good order and with careful stoking fire sho.uld not occ::ur, 
unless dry grass or other inflammable mate1:ial be in close proximi.ty to the Railway. 

WE_DN,ESDA~, 14 N:ovEMBJ):R, 1877. 
MR. THOMAS MIDELTON, Engineer and Locomoti'l:e Superintendent to tlte Tasmanian .1"Jilaiii 

Line Railway, examined. 
186. You.r name? T.homas M1deltol).; and I am Engineer and Locomotive Superintendent to the 

Tasmanian Main. Line Railway. · 

187. How long have you_ held your appointment_? I left England by appointment fi:om 1he Com­
pany in the month of May; 1876, and entered upon my duties in Tasmania in July, 1876; I am under 
an agreement to the Company for three years from 1st June, 1876. My salary is £500 per annum; and 
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I. w:a.s le.~ to be,lieve tha~ I sh.ould sucqeed Mr .. Grant with.iii six :r;n.onths, of landing here, :\\'.[y agre.e.:·' 
~ent to the Co:r;n.p,any under bond is tha.t I should n.9t disclose a.1;1ythjp.g :r:ela.ting to the affairs of the Com­
pany under pain of immediate dismissal and penalty of £5007 and forfeit the return passage to England.~ 
l;>y th,e Directors oi: Manager of the Corµpany. 

18.8 .. Under those cir~11rµst;J,nce.s ;i,m ·1 t~ unders.t;i,n.d· that JO\l do n:qt fee.I at. liberty to answer· .~ny 
q~estions relating tq the affairs, qf the Company 1 Not with~rqt the. protection qf the Goyernme.nt;, 
b.e.qa1lse if I anfiwer a:q.y q11es,tions it might le11d t.o IllY dismif:ls.al, · · 

By M1, Inne,.-,-189. With w:hon:i .. did you ente.r int9_ y<;ng a.gre.e,:g;ieµq With the. Chairill\l'!l. :i,n!l 
full Board of Directors. 

AFTERN()ON SITTING. 

C. J. BARCLAY~- E.sq, erpam,i,ned. 

By Mr. Chapman.-,-,-190. Yom name is Charles James I}arc.la.y ~ Yes;· a11d J aIIl :).\'Iana~g 
Director of the Commercial Bank. 

By Mr. Innes.-191. Does the Main Line Railway Company do its business with you? Yes. 
192. You are aware of differences pending between the Main Line Railway Company and the 

Government on pecuniary matters.?: Yes ... 
193. By the' withholding of the. interest g1,1aranteed by the Goyernment, the Main Line Railway 

Company have to resort to the Oommercial Bank? Yes. · · 
Hl4. To. what extent at the p1;esent moment do you render assistance to the Main Line Railway 

Company? At present to £10,000, upon the promise ·made by Mr. Giblin and Mr. Fysh that they 
would bring in a vote to lend them assistance. : the Qqm:r;n.ercial Bank prev:i.ously ref11sed to aqcoJ1].modate 
the:pi so la1•gely. 

195. There was no engagement to continue this ass.istanc.e? No, certainly not,-,,-the Bank having 
the power to call in the advance at any mome.nt, 

196. At. what rate. of interest? 10 :per cent. 
197 .. U.nde,· any engageni,ent to keep 011 the Railway by the Corq.pany? No, there is no engagemen..t 

on either ~ide,--,-sirµply an overdraft on the usual termf:l, We refused .to rµake any concession in the rate 
of intere.s,t, on ac.count' of the adyance he.ing out of the usual_ course. · 

By Jl;J;r. Ohapmqn. ,-,-198. Are. yo.u in corre[:lpond,i;mce with the _ Chahwan or Secretary of th.e 
Company in London ? I have had no communicationfi within the last 12 months : all communicationi;; 
with regai;<;l, to, cash a,d,vance have. been through the Ma,nager. 

19.9. You are aware. that the Corµpany have obtained a,11 Act of the Imperial Parliament authoris,ing 
the Companjr to ra,ise a s1,1m 11ot. e.xceeding. £100,000 for the purpose of corµpleting the construction ltll.d 
e.quipi:nent 9~ the ¥ai.I,J, Li11e. Raihy;i,y, anq. paying o,fl' tlw liabilities qf the Company both in England a,n<l 
in this Colony ? Yes. · 

200 •. Have you 1:eceive.d any intimation f~,o:µi the l\!Ianager of the Company that he ha.s reason to 
believe th,at the Coi;npa.ny will f:lUCceeq. in raising that. sum of money for the purposes conte111plated, QY 
the Act? lie has told me that. tlHu·e is not t}ie 1,lightest chance of raif!iµg a shilling u_ntil the. interest is 
paid by the Tasmanian Government. · 

201. When did the Manager haye the Ias.t inter-view wi~ you on this account? Yesterday, after 
the deliv.ery-of the E.nglish mail, he. repea.ted his previous statement. as to the impossibility cif the Q.o:i;npan.y 
raising the money 1,1nder the autl1,0rity 9f this Act. 

202. Can you give the Committee any further information likely to be useful? Yes, I think it right 
to. hand' in a letter addre13sed by me to l\!Ir. Grant in reference to the, overdraft, [See Appendix X.] 

C. l:{. GRAN'I\ Esq., lYianager and Engineer io the Tasmanian Main Line Railway, examined. 

J,\-1:r. Gra,nt ei;itered a protest (s~e .A,ppendi;_ \;V.) against the pro_ceeding1;1 of the. Committe.e .. 
· 203. H.av.e. yo_u recei:v:ed any advices from the Chairman or. Seqreta,r.y of the Company in London 

fiince;you.a.ttended the..Committee on No.vember6th? Yes.; ~ received letter!?, bi the.last English ¥ail .. 
204. I>o those advices lead you to anticipate that the Company will succeed in. raising the• Sl}m of 

£100,000 or any lesser sum under the authority of the Imperial Act of Parliament passed in ,Tuly last. fqr 
the_ purp.o,s.e, of paying off the li,a,bilities in England and in this Qolony,Ja,11d for completing the Railway in 
!).C,cordan.ce; 'W'.ith tJ.i.e. contract with the Gov.ernment? ·The CornpqI1y have u1;1if9rmly ap.d sincerely ihsis~ed 
~hat their Conti:a,ct with the Government. was fully cornple.ted on the 15t.h,.l\!Iarch,. 1876. My advices froJll 
England confirm my previous evidence, that nothing whatever is able to he done under the Imperial Ac,t 
until some settlement is arrived at with the GoverI1ment, which the Cqmpany :µiost earnestly desire ; and 
direct me to telegraph immediately it is completed·, as then the w:!i<ile sum of £100,p0O will be immediately 
placed. · · · · · · · · · · • 

205 .. 1.'hen the Comlilittee are.· to unde;stand that the. Coiµpany do 11ot contemplate a:ny fu_rther 
e;x:p,enditure. on the, Railway or its. eqnipment until thve interest guaranteed to the Company il). termfi, qf 
tb,e, qont1:act is, paid? :L'he. Company.are exp()nding·a compa,ratively small amount in such works, but :p:e 
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utterly powerless .to raise one shilling of the £100,000 contemplated until the Company have made some 
agreement with the Government under which the annual interest for this loan can be reasonably considered 
as secured. . 

. 206. When you were last before the Committee you handed in a statement estimating your probable 
traffic receipts for the year ending the 31st December, 1877, at about £37,000. Have you made any 
estimate of the probable receipts of traffic for the year ending 31st December, 1878? I have no doubt 
these will reach, if not exceed, £48,000 per annum or thereabouts : in all probability the receipts will 
amount to about £50,000, and the expenditure to about the same, exclusive of any expenditure for new 
rolling stock or sidings, &c., such expenditure being capital outlay. · · 

207. The Committee have examined some experts as to their opinion of the existing state of the 
rolling stock now in use on the Main Line Railway, and they would be glad to examine Mr. Midelton, 
your Locomotive Superintendent, to ascertain from him whp.t is the present condition of the locomotives 
and carriages now in use on the line: have you any objection to his appearing before the Committee to be 
examined? Having protested, under legal advice, against the taking of any such evidence by the 
Committee, I am unable to assent to Mr. Midelton's examination, ·nor can I recognise that there are any 
experts who could now' give an opinion of any value on the locomotives and rolling stock of this line. 

THURSDAY, 15 NOVEMBER, 1877. 

LEQNARD DOWLING examined. 
By iWr. Cliapman.-208. Your name is Leonard Dowling? Yes, and I am Inspecting Surveyor of 

the Launceston and Western Railway, and have, held the appointment for the last 3 years. 
' 209. A third rail has been laid along the Launceston and Western Railway for the use of the Main 
Line Raihvay traffic between Evandale Junction and Launceston? Yes, it was laid there during the year 
1874, under the supervision of my predecessor, Mr. Tidy. 

210. What is the condition of the rails on that section of the railway traversed by the locomotives 
and other stock of the Main Line Railway Company? Renewals having lately been inserted in the 
Launceston and Western rail, which is in excellent working order, the third rail laid down for the Main 
Line Railway, with the rails supplied by that Company, is not at all suitable, being far too light, and of 
very inferior quality, the majority of the rails being the LS.R. brand (Indian State Railway) ; it is of 
inferior quality to the rails used on many portions of the Main Line Railway ; the rail is too light for the 
locomotives running over those rails ; the rails are only 40 lbs. to the lineal yard, and in my opinion they 
ought to be not less than 56 lbs. to the lineal yard. 

211. Have you been on that portion of the Main Line Railway between Evandale Station and the 
'Junction, and can you inform the Committee of the construction and condition of that portion of the line? 
There is a great want of ballast, what there is is of very infe1;ior quality, being originally sand, salted on 
the top with a little gravel, and the sleepers are very inferior, being partly round and partly square, giving 
a• very irregular-bearing surface. 

212. Could the Main Line Railway Company have obtained good ballast for ballasting their Line 
between Evandale Junction and Campbell Town? Yes, very good, at a very moderate cost, from the 
Epping Forest, where there is an abundant supply. I speak confidently c;m this subject from my general 
knowledge of the country. 

213. You have travelled two or three times on the Main Line Railway, and have had opportunities of 
comparing their station accommodation with that of the Launceston and Western Railway? Yes, they 
compare favourably as to construction, but I am unable to say whether they afford sufficient accommoda­
tion for the requirements of each district. 

214. The gates anrl fencing on the Main Line Railway, what is their condition? I consider them 
very inferior, with the exception of the gates on the crossings on the Main Road. 

215. Did you notice any public road crossings on the Main Line Railway where there were no 
gates ? Yes, the rail-road crossing the road leading to Evandale is protected by cattle-guards. 

216. Any vehicles crossing the Railway at that place would be liable to injury from trains passing? 
Yes; and I have seen several very narrow escapes, since which a keeper, who resides at the gates, about 300 
yards away from the spot, attends at the time of the passing of trains to prevent the public from crossing. 

By 11-fr. Dodery.-217. Do the cattle-guards answer for the purpose of keeping stock off the line? 
As far as I am aware yes, but I do not consider them as safe as gates, as people will sometimes insist on 
crossing when:-it is dangerous to do so in defiance to the keepe1·, whereas with gates they could be locked 
if necessary. 

By ,n1•. Chapman.-218. What plan is adopted for laying the third rail on the Launceston and 
WestPrn Railway for the Main Line traffic? Tl.e light 40lbs. rail supplied by the Company is laid on a 
transverse timber or packing fastened with the rail on the sleepers of the Launceston and Western Rail 
with 6 inch dog-spikes. 

219. Was that rail laid down in accordance with the design and instructions by the Engineer of the 
Main Line Railway Company ? Strictly in· accordance with plans and specifications supplied by the 
engineer of the Company's contractors under the supervision of Mr.· Tidy. I am aware that Mr. Tidy 
protested against this plan for laying the third rail, an~ I protested by letter on several occasions to the 
Minister of Lands and Works against the trains being allowed to run over this rail. I beg to refer to iny 
letter·ofllth September, 1876, to the Manager, Mr. Lord, on that subject. The effect is more damaging 
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to the"·heavy.raihm 'the Launceston·and Western Railway than it should' be. :My great objection to 'this 
plan .is the excessive. cost of maintenance, and the wear and tear upon the heavy rail. I consider that a 
certain amount, of risk attends every train that runs over it, from the fact of the insecurity of the fastenings; 
and in my letters.I have repeatedly suggested the only safe and efficient plan for laying that rail. On 
sever11,l occasions Mr. Grant h~s informed me that he was daily expecting a similar section of rail to the 
Launceston and Western, to replace the present rail. · · · . 

By Mr. Moore.-220. Can you assign any particular cause for the damage done to the heavy rail of 
the Launceston a,nd Western Railway by the Main Line Rail way locomotive·? The tendency to cling to that 
rail I.attribute in a great measure to the deflection of the weaker rail, which gives the train a jerking 
motiO:n and acts against the heavy rail. · · .· 

. 221. It is specified in the Contract between the Main Line Railway Company and the Government 
of Tasmania that all stations, rolling stock, and all other works connected with the Main Line Railway 
shall be constructed of the best material and in a thoroughly substantial manner, has that condition of the 
Contract been carried out? No. As far as my knowledge goes of their works nothing has been done in 
a sub13taniial manner. · 

1-. 



A P .PEN DIX. 

A. 

TASMANIAN MAIN LINE RAIL'\,YAY. 

ST .A TEM ENT of Traffic and Receipts for the Year ending December 31st, 1877, (being Nine Months actual and Three Mo~ths estimated Traffec.) 

; .. 
SIX MONTHS ENDING JUNE 30TH. SIX l\IONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31ST, TOTAL FOR YEAR 1877, 

TRAFFIC. BETWEEN 
No. Receipts. Total No. Receipts. Total 

N_o. Receip(~. Total 
Receipt&. Receipts. Receipts. 

-------- --· --·. _. _. ;.._.. 

Tons. £ 8, d. £ 8, d. Tons. £ s. d. £ s. d. Tons. £, 8, d. £, &. d. 
--

Goods ........................... Hobart Town and Launceston ...... 1335 1209 3 8 2384 1672 5 8 3719 2881 9 4 
All other Stations ........................ 6931 3671 2 9 4398 2653 14 8 11,329 6324 17 5 ------- ------ 4880 6 5 4326 0 4- 9206 !i 9 

TOTAL ............ 8266 6782 15,048 

(Average per ton, 146·83d. on 
whole year.) 

Cattle Sheep. Pigs, Cattle. Sheep. Pigs. Cattle. Sheep. Piq,. 
Live Stock ..................... Hobart Town and Launceston ······ 27 210 - 33 0. 5 - 290 - 27 10 0 27 500 - 60 10 5 

All other Stations ........................ 1153 8687 412 841 13 5 890 12,962 450 1392 4 4 204:l 21,~4~ 862 22303 ~7 9 
874 13 10 - -- 1419 14 4 ---- ., - 2g!)~ 8 2 

TOTAL ..................... 1180 8897 412 890 13,252 450 2070 22;149 862 

PO$SCll{JC1'S, Pascengers. Passengers. 
Passenger ·•··················· Hobart Town and Launceston ...... 6392 6293 4 3 3056 3359 4 2 9448 9652 8 5 

All other Stations ........................ 32,162 6857 16 4 18,554 5558 0 8 50,716 12,415 17 0 
13,151 0 7 8917 4 10 2,~,068 5 5 

TOTAL ..................... 38,554 21,fllO 60,164 
,. -· 

(Average per passenger, 88°03d. 
on whole year.) 

- .-

Parcels, Horses, Carriag·es, Hoba1·t Town and Launceston ....... - 308 17 3 - 313 11 10 - 622 9 1 
and Dogs, &c. All othe1· Stations ........................ - 605 16 9 - 733 2 6 - 1338 19 3 

914 14 0 1046 14 4 ------ 1961 8 4 

Rents, l\Iails, and Telegraph - - - 471 14 4 - - 1175 5 10 - - 1647 ~ 2 

£ 20,292 9 2 £ 16,884 19 8 £ ~7,177 8 10 

' 
C. H. GR4NT, General Man_aget• 

H. J. ELLIS, Accountant. 
Oct. 25, 1877. 
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B. 
TASMANIAN MAIN tirtE ltAILWAY . 

. . ·'_ . _, ~. ' . ...: .. ),·. - -: .· - ,.- . . :. . . ·:. . - : :: ; ~ . ~ .:. . 
STATEMENT of Receipts and Expenditure for the Year ending December 31st;-1877, (being 9 months actual and 3 montlJ,s estimated.) 

EXPENDITURE. 

Td·B~lance fi'om Dec1;~ber 31st, 1876.: .:: ••.. 
-~ aintenance of Permanent Way and Works 

· Locomotive Powef. .. :. ,: ......... ; , '. .. . 
·. C.arriage ilncl Wagon Repairs ..•• ! .• : •••• 
~fraffic Expenses ............... , , . ; , ; .. 
·General Q.hargcs ...••• , ·• • • • • • • ; .. ; .... 
-.Cgmpensation ..••••.• •.. . . • • ..• i :·: • , •• 
Law Charges . • . • . • • • i ....... ! ; . :. : : .. 
:Ilank Interest . • • • . .. : ; •••.•.•• ; • , • ;· •. 

·'Rates .• .-.• " ......•.•.. -' ...•.•... :· .• ;.; • 
Li:mclon Qffice Expenses.(estimated.) ·.'.• :- •. 
Launceston and W ester1i Railway (ditto):. 

-

:R; J; ELLIS, Accountant. .; 
6th November, 1877. 

·'.-··. 
9 MONTHS 

ACTUAL. 

£ ii'. ·d.· 

i~,581 13 0 
~0,161 10 4, · 

90710 0 
4737 4 8 
2380 5 8 
277 1 10 

'604 17 11 
231 2 8 
31 2 o. 

3083 6 8 ·. 
916 13 4 

3 MONTHS 
ESTIMATED. 

£ s. d; 

6539°13 8 
3802 3 10 
301 10 s 

1659 12 10 
816 6 3 
52 3 .8 

193 15 11 
231 2 8 

9 tJ 5 
500 0 0 
250,_ ()_ (i 

~.6,912 8 1 ; 14,361_)~ l'i 

TOTAL. 

/f5i ;9 i 
20,i21 ~ 8 
13,963 14 2 

1215 0 8 
6396 17 6 
3196 11 11 
329 5 ,6 
i§s 1a ro 
462 5 4 
)o :a 5 

3~83 ,6 8 
1166. 13 4 

RECEIPTS. 

- - . 
By 'iraffic Receipts-

Pa~sen,gers_ : ~-•...••.• ~ .•• , , , .••.... , •. 
?arcels, .~c .. .-••..••••.•..•••••...•..... 
Telegrap_h . :, ...... , •• ; ..•••..••••...•.. 
Goods and Minerals •• ~ .............. . 
Live Stock . : ••.....• ; .•••••• · ••••••.. 
Mails~ •• -. ; .••••......••••• ; .• : ...... . 
Reiit:s;.:.:. : : • _ ••••.••.••••••• 

••I I I I I• o e I e I I I I I I '• I I• 

9 MONTHS 3 MONTHS. 
ACTUAL. . ESTIMATED. TOTAL. 

£ s. d,. 

17;6ll :1 3 
1456 13 3 

60 14 8 
7041 16 6 
1584 il ci 
839 11 S 

- 148 _10:· {_ 

£ s. J. £ 1. d. 

4457 · 4 2 22,068 5 . ,5 
. 50f .15 ,i 1961 . 8 4 
. 2~ 15 4 '93 10 O 

. 2164 10 3 9206 6 9 
. 709 17 2 2294 8 2 

503 15 0 1343 6 8 
~1-13 2 210 3 6 

"·· --,---,~~---1------
28,751 .fa-.: 8_ 8425 10 2 37,177 8 10 ·-, ,_,. ,.. ~-: .... -I====;;..-===~=.=_=-,-,-'-__ , 

-21,248 14 8 · 

£58,426 3 6 

c. H. GRAN'i'?· _Genin-al Manager, 
6th November, 1877. 

.. -... ·:"'. 
' i-::) 
-i,:...i 
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c. 
Tasmanian Ma,in Line Railway Company, Limited, • 

Accountant's O.-Jfice, Hobart Town, 6th November, 1877. 

STATEMENT of E[J)penditure on Capital .Account.for the Yem· 1877.. 

Balance brought forward from December 31, 1876 .•••..•..•.••••••••. 
Expended-Quarter ending March 31, 1877 ..••••.....•••.•.•....••.. 

Ditto, J une.30, 1877 .......••••.......•••••......•• 
, ·, . Ditto, September 30, 1877 ..............••••••.. ; ... 

Estimated amount required for Quarter ending December 31, 1877,-for new 
sidings, new steel points and crossings, land purchases, and· additional 
dupli?ates for rolling stock, &c ...••...••................. · .. • ...... . 

£ s. 
7451 14 
1255 15 
1489 3 

851 14 

2500 0 

d. 
2 
7 
3 
3 

0 

£13,548 7 3 

R. J. ELLIS, Accountant. 
C. H. GRANT, General Jlfonager. 

A 1. 
TASMANIA. 

. Colonial &c1·eta1·y's 9.ffice, 12th 11:lay, 1877. 
Srn, · : . . . 

I HAVE been informed that just before your departure from this Colony, after the inspection of the 
Main Line· Railway by yourself, in company with Messrs. Mais and Stanley, you ·wJJre requested by the 
late Government to furnish an Estimate· of the cost of all works, or alteration's ·and improvements of 
existing works, nec·essary to satisfy the conditions of the Contract. I understand -that you stated that a 
detailed inspection adequate to furnish the data upon which such an estimate could be based would occupy 
you too long, but that you furnished the Government from your notes with an· estimate of what was 
necessary, in your opinion, to render the line safe for the running of trains, at:·any,ra:te for a time. 

As this information did not include the entire expenditure that would be ~ecefisiry to .bring the line 
into accord with the terms of the Contract, it would appear· that the Gove~nment did not retain your 
Estimate or any copy of it; and I have now the honor to request that you 'Yill favour me, if possible, 
with a copy of that Estimate,-and if that should not be in your power, that you would, by referring to 
your notes, supply the nearest approximation to that document as to the works· referr~d to, and the cost, as 
the circumstances of the case will permit. . · . ' · , 

I 

If not trespassing too seriously upon your kindness, may I request the favour of an early reply, as Par­
liament is now in Session, and the questions between the. Government and the Main·', Line Railway Com-
pany occupy a prominent position. : 

I have, &c. 
(Signed)· THOS. REIBEY. 

WILLIAM MASON, Esq., C.E., Sydney, Nerv South Wales. 

Sm, 

Department of Public Worlls, Railway Bmnc!t, 
· Engineer's Office, Sydney, 21st .ilfoy, 1877. 

I HAVE the honor to reply to your letter of the 12th instant, which I have just received. 

The Estimate you refer to ·therein was. prep~red partly from my notes, which were taken for the 
Report furnished to the Government, and partly from other data. This data I did not preserve, as the 
Estimate was not made an official document, consequently I am unable to furnish to you the information 
you now require. 

The .He/ii'. T. REIBEY, Colonial SecretariJ, Tasmania. 

TASMANIA. 

I have, &c. 
(Signed) WM. MASON. 

Colonial Secretary's Office, 4th June, 1877. 
Srn, 

I HAVE the honor to acknowledge the receipt of your letter of the 21st ultimo, in reply to mine of 
the 12th. · · · 

You inform me that you did not preserve the data upon which you based your Estimate, as it was 
not made an official document, and that you are therefore unable to furnish me with the information I 
sought, · · 
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· I much regret your inability to.supply the particulars ; but I would still request· you to inform me 

whether the Estimate you prepared was not, as I have been given to understand, "an Estimate of what 
was necessary in your opinion to render the line safe for the running of trains, at any rate for· a time;" and 
also that you would, failing the power to give me a copy, favour me with "the nearest approximation to 
that document as to the works referred to, and the cost, as the circumstances of the case will permit.'' 

I have, &c. 
(Signed) THOS. REIBEY. 

WILLIAM ~ASON, Esq., C.E., Sydney, N. S. Wales. 

Srn, 

Department of Public Works, Railway Bmnch, 
Engineer's Office, Sydney, June 12th, 1877. 

I HAVE the honor to acknowledge the receipt of your letter of the 4th instant, and in reply thereto 
beg to state that the Estimate I prepared was for putting the Line in good running order for a time; but 
altogether separate from the question of what was necessary to be done to render the line Jn compliance 
with the terms of the Contract. , 

· As I hav_e only my memory to ·guide me, I am in consequence unable to furnish 
tion to the items and particulars of the works included in that Estimate. 

even an approxima-

I have, &c. 

The Hon. T. REIBEY, Colonial Secretary, Tasmania. 
(Signed) WM. MASON. 

THE Ronorable the Legislative Council having, on consideration of the Main Line of Railway Amenament 
Bill-which had for its sole object the conferring on the Tasmanian Government, and the Main Line. 
Railway Company, the power to make Bye-laws-referred such Bill to a Select Committee to consider 
whether it is desirable to amend the said Act; and having been ordered by such Committee to attend 
before them, and produce the printed ropy of the Report and Evidence taken before a Committee of the 
House of Commons, in E~gland, which is in my private possession, I do so in obedience to the order of . 
the Committee, but under protest; and respectfully contest the propriety of their requiring it, for the 
following reasons :- · 

1. The Bill to further amend the Main Line of Railway Act was referred to the Select Committee. 
"to consider whether it is desirable to amend the said Act; and if so, in what respect; and to 
report thereon: with power to send for persons and papers." The proposed Bill is solely to enable 
the Railway Company to make Bye-laws, and no clause therein refers in the most indirect manner 
to any other subject. The enquiry of the Select Committee is therefore, I respectfully submit, 
limited to considering whether it is desirable to amend the original Main Line Railway Acts in 
respect to granting the Company power to make Bye-laws, and to ·what extent such power sh~uld 
be given : and should be confined to this· subject. And ,it is respectfully contended that any enquiry 
into further amending the original Act, when neither the Government nor the Company have ( except 
as before mentioned) asked for any amendment, is beyond the scope of the duty delegated to the 
Committee by the Legislative Council. · 

. In ·May's Parliamentary Practice, 7th eqition, page 395, it is laid down that "Select Com­
mittees are restrained from considering matters not specially referred to them by the Rouse." . It 
can hardly be contended that the Council have referred to the Committee any othet question than 
the advisability or otherwise of granting the Company power to make Bye-laws. 

May says again, at page 403, "A Select Committee on a Bill, having power to send for 
persons, papers, and records, can only take evidence concerning that Bill." 

2. · The evidence required to be produced was, I believe, printed in England, at the cost of the Com­
pany, and sent to Tasmania for my private information, and for the use of the Company's Solicitors 
here. · 

· The Company claim from the Tasmanian Government a large sum for guaranteed interest, 
which sum is disputed by the Government, and legal proceedings in reference thereto may have to 
be commenced at any moment ; and litigation as to this dispute would, in fact, have decided the 
matter long ere now, had not the Attorney-General, in defence of the action that was commenced, 
taken advantage of the prerogative of the Queen in pleading, and refused to give the Company any 
particulars of the Colony's defence,-as he would have been compelled to do in an action between 
subject and subject,-and had not the House of Assembly required that the Company's action 
against the Crown be discontinued before they would lend the necessary funds to keep the Railway 

. open. 
The Parliament of Tasmania are, in fact, the parties wl:io contracted with the Railway Company 

through.the Governor in Council; and if the Parliament now uses its powers to obtain a discovery 
of the Company's private documents, and of the Company's case,-which no other litigant could, by 
the common Law of England, obtain, and which the Governor, in Council had not when the 
Contract was· executed,-the ·Legislature will be using its prerogative in such a manner as to alter 
the C.ontract, and make it "more onerous .upon, and less advantageous to, the Company :" and this 
is precisely what the Contract says shall not be done. 
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3. That the pr?d uction of the. evidence reguired, and the qu~ting an~ printing theref~om isolated 
sentences of some of the witnesses exammed before the English Parliamentary Committee ( as has 
already to some extent ·been done), must tend to prejudice the rights and claims of the Company; 
and inasmuch as the so-called evidence which I am required to produce is unquestionably not 
evidence, and could not be received in any Court of Law or Equity, consisting as it does in part of 
the hasty and biassed remarks of persons who have never seen the Main Line Railway, and there­
fore know nothing about it,(,as,is freely confessed by them), and of statements of witnesses who 
only repeated what they gatliered from hearsay, I respectfully submit that to publish, or in any 
way make use of, such unreliable testimony would,most seriou~y injure my principals, and unfairly 
prejudice the Contract rights of the Company, which at any moment they may be compelled to 
enforce in a Court of Justice. 

CHARLES H. GRANT. 
5th November, 1877. 

(Copy.) 

SrR, 
4th August, 1877. 

I HAVE. the honor,to address you, being urider the apprehension that the usual custom of adjourning 
Parliament for some weeks may·be followed before any arrangement can be ·made for a settlement of the 
Main Lirie Railway question; and as this proceeding might involve the closing of the Line for public 
-traffic, I have to request that some arrangement be made to provide against what would be a great 
calamity, both to the Colony and to the Company. 

At a personal interview, I had the honor to furnish you "l'vith eYidence-which is at your disposal-
that the Main Line Railway Company urgently required funds with which to keep open the Line; and 

· the loan of £14;900 being exhausted, I have no alternative · but to request that the Government· will 
•·continue the advances-of about Two thousand pounds monthly-such being our actual expenditure over 
'income at this season of the year. · 

The amount now claimed by the Company for· guaranteed .interest is Forty-three thousand one 
hundred and forty pouncls eight shillings and five pence (£43,140 8s. ·5d.), against ·which may be •placed 

· the loans of£17,900,leaving a large balance due·to the Company. 

'rlrnt you are aware of the extreme urgency of the matter mmt be my apology for intruding upon 
you at the present time, which 1 do most unwillingly; but it is my duty to press this subject to your 

' immediate and earnest consideration, ,since, unless the advances are arranged for, I am of opinion that the 
Railway must· of necessity ·be closed within the next four weeks. 

. ,,/_'fw Hon. ·Tuos. :REIBEY, ,Jf.H.'A., 
Pre-miei· aiid Colonial,Secrntary. 

(Copy.) 

Sni, 

I have,.&c, 

(Signed) CHARLES H. GRANT . 

· Colonial Sec1·eta1:1/S Office, 7tli August, 1877. 

• I HAVE the honor to ackno'iYledge the receipt of your letter· ofthe 4th instant, requesting 'that some 
arrangement might- be entered into for the continuation of the advances 1atelr made by the Government to 
the Company during-the probable adjournment of Parliament. 

In reply, I have to inform you that the present Ministry ha;cing placed their resignations in the 
hands of the Governor, and His Excellency having ·been pleased to accept the same, they are not prepared 
to· undertake pecuniary responsibilities in connexion with- the Main Line Railway which have not received 
the sanction of Parliament. It must rest with their successors to consider the question of. continuing 
financial assistance to the Company. 

I have, he. 

C. H. GnANT, Esquire, 1lfanaJer 
(Signed) THOS. REIBEY. 

'1.'asmanian 1Jfain L-ine Rail1Vay. 

(Copy.) 

Sni, 
. August 23rcl, 1877. 

I HAVE 'the honor to acknowledge the due receipt of your letter of the 14th instant, also of an 
account you have prepared against the Tasmanian Main Line Railway Company, Limited, for principal 
and interest, amounting to £18,352 lOs., which you allege to be due to the Government of Tasmania. 

. You-arc ·as fully acquainted with the circumstances under which· this money was advanced to the 
.· Company, instead of paying them the guaranteed 'interest,'that I 1rnecl not refer thereto further than to 
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remindyouthaton the·27thApril last I had the hono11·to.,forward your Honorable Predecessor an. 
account for the.sum owing to the Company by the Government, which then amounted to £33,015· 8s. 5d., 
irrespective of:interest, .&c. On the· .20th . .Tune . last this . was increased to Forty-th1,ee thousand one • · 
hundred and forty pounds,eight shillings and five pence (£43;140 8s. 5d.) and interest, &c., as shown in, . 
the account sent herewith. 

On .the.4th instant I had.the honor to address the late· Honorable 'Premier and Colonial. Secretary,, 
pointing out the liability of the Government to the Company, and· stating that, the fatter were •,in such 
urgent need of money that unless an arrangement could be immediately made for providing the funds the 
line must necessarily be closed. I also urged· this matter personally on the late Honorable Colonial 
Secretary and Treasurer, and received the reply, dated.the 7th instant, that His Excellency the ,Governor 
having been pleased to accept the resignation of office by the Ministry, it must rest with their successors 
to consider the qliestion of continuing financial as.sistance to the Company. 

The great importance, both to the Colony and the Company, of keeping the Railway open, is so,•. 
universally acknowledged, that I feel assured ·the Government will imm(\diately adopt the neoessary 
measures to secure the continuity of the train service . 

. Jn .writing your Honorable Predecessor on the 18th January and 26th April last, I stated· tha,t the 
Company have the strongest possible claim to the payment. of the full amount of, gl1aranteecl intere_st 
owing,. both on legal and moral grounds, since.a far superior and more costly train service has been given·. 
than was stipulated for in the contract. The whole of the passengers, goods, and live stock requiring· 

, transit by rail have been safely and expeditiously carried; and since the many and high legal authorities 
that ,have been ,c.onsulted nre entirely unanimous in the opinion that this alone determines the liability of 
the'.Government, I trust that no further delay will be made in the payment of the interest m accorda,nce, 
with the terms.of the contraot. 

I have, &c. 
(Signed) Hon. W. R. GIBLIN, J.W.H.A., Colonial Treasur·m·. CHARLES H. GRANT. 

{.Copy~). Colonial Treasur·y, Hobart Town, 3l'st ·August, 1877. 
Srn, 

I HAVE the honor to acknowledge the receipt of your letter of the 23rd instant. 

•I.regret that owing to the absence from town of some of my Colleagues I have been, and still am, 
unable to reply definitely to your letter; but I can assure you that the question of continuing financial' 
assistance, to the Company is one which will engage the immediate attention of the Government, and that 
it will:be. dealt with with a desire to secure ·the .continuity of the present train service so far as that can be 
done without prejudice to the mutual rights of the Colony and the Company. 

I have, &c. 
(Signed) W. R. GIBLIN, Colonial Treasurer: 

C. H; GRANTj Esq_., Agent T.M.L.R., Livei·pool-street; 

W. 
Tltq Ifonorable the Chairman and the Honorable 2Jfember·s ef the Select Committee oftlw,, 

Legislative Council, on ·a Bill to further· amend The Main Line Railway .Act. 

I, CHARLES Henry Grant, Agent for the Tasmanian Main Line Railway Company, Limited, in this 
Colony, hereby most solemnly and earnestly protest against the Examination (by the Select Committee on. 
the said Bill, which proposes to confer on the Company the necessary legal power to frame Bye-laws,) of 
Mr. Midelton, or any other witness, on any question, matter, or thing relating to the Main Line Railway, 
other than the expediency or otherwise of conferring upon the said Company the powers or any of them. 
proposed to be given by the said Act; and I hereby respectfully give notice that any such examination, 
against which this Protest is recorded, will be regarded bJ the Company as a very unjust and illegal 
proceeding. 

The Company consider that their Cont1;act being with the Parliament of Tasmania, the proceedings 
of the Select Committee are an unfair and improper use of the special privileges possessed by one party to 
the Contract,to tl_ie prejudice of the other party, and in violation of the Company's rights under the 
Contract. 

CHARLES HENRY GRANT, Agent and Attorneyfor-tlte, 
Ta.smanian )J,Jain Li:ne Railrvay Company, Limited. 

X. 
(Copy.) Comme1·cial Banle, Hobart Tmvn, Tasmania, 5th November, 1877. 

DEAR Srn, 
. I HA VE again to draw your attention to the state of the Company's Account now standing overdrawn .. 
1~ our books, £10,717 IOs. 8d. (Ten thousanq. seven hundred and seventeen pounds ten shillings an..d. 
eight pence.) ·· 
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As you ·are aware, this amount is beyond the extreme limit arranged for; arid I am directed by my 
Board to inform you that this Bank will no longer bear the responsibiE.ty of keeping the Railway open, 
and that unless you can at once arrange with 'your friends in England or the Government here to furnish 
you with funds, the Bank will take steps to recover the moneys already advanced. 

I have, &c. 
CHARLES H. GRANT, Esq., General Manager 

. Tasmanian Main Line Railway Company, Limited. 
(Signed) C. J. BARCLAY. 

(Oopy.) 

S1R, 

Y. 
Launceston and TVestern Railway, Locomotive Department, 

Launceston, October 12th, 1874. 

. I HA VE the bonor to report at your request upon the locomotive engines just received to work the 
traffic on the Main Line Railway. 

1st. They have six wheels coupled with no flange on the leading coupled wheels, and have a four­
wheeled bogie in front with three inches lateral play on each side of centre pin : this latter I consider a 
mis!8-ke, as wit~ the little weight at present upon the bogie, viz. four tons, there is nothing to guide the 
engme round the curves. 

· 2nd. I consider them entirely unsuitable for the work required,-,hat is, to run thirty miles per hour, 
and traverse curves of 5 chains radius,-being at least 13 tons too heavy to run on 40 lb. rails. I also 
consider If inches difference between gauge of wheels and rails too much, and increases the probability 
of running off. 

To alter these engines to do the work required by them, I would suggest that the tanks and coal 
bunkers be taken off, and 1 ft. 6 in. or 2 ft. 4 in. cut off the frame, and a small four-wheeled tender added, 
the Jeading coupled wheels taken away altogether, so as to make them four-wheeled coupled, the lateral 
play in bogie stopped, and a little more weight added,-say from 6 to 8 tons in all; and I think they 
would then run 30 miles an hour, and traverse the curves with ease. · 

If heavier engines are ~equired to work the goods traffic, at say 12 to 14 miles an hour, I would 
suggest the· follo,ving alterations :-The lateral play of bogie stopped, and some of the weight taken 
off the leading coupled wheels, so as not to have more than, say, two tons on each wheel. This could be 
done at a small expense, by taking the compensating beams off betwe,m the leading coupled and driving 
wheels, and substituting regulating screws to hang the springs of leading coupled wheels with, so as to be 
able to put any weight on them you may determine by experience ; also throwing more weight upon the 
bogie, say, about 8 tons. Another plan I would also suggest ; and that is, that the leading coupled wheels 
have a flange, and the driving wheels none ; and also, that the sides of the horn-plates of the leading 
coupled and trailing wheels be cut away, so as to give ¼ in. lateral play, and leave the bogie as it is. 
I think they would then be found to work well, as long as the tyres kept the same size ; but, as the 
trailing and driving wheels wore with the extra weight upon them_, it would have a tendency to cause 
a slogging motion on the crank pins, and ultimately break them. This, however, could be avoided by 
keeping the tyres well turned up, so as to keep them, as near as practicable, all the same size. '!.'hey 
would then haul a heavy load and traverse curves moderately easy,-that is, supposing the road is found 
strong enough to carry them. I would not, however, recommend this latter plan unless the engines 
altered. to four wheels coupled are found incapable of doing the work. 

In conclusion, I would state that these engines are faithfully built,-the errors being in the design, 
and not in the manufacture. 

I have, &c. 
(Signed) W. E. BATCHELOR, Locomotive Foreman. 

C .. H. GRANT, Esq., O.E., Main Line Railway. 

(Copy.). 
z. 

Tasmanian Jlfain Line Railn,ay Company, Engineer's O.ffice, 
Hoba'l't Toron, Tasmania, 15th October, 1874. 

DEAR SIR, 
I AM very much obliged by your reports upon the Main Line Railway engines, which have just 

reached my hands together. - ....... - . - -- • · 

Your valuable suggestions have my entire concurrence ; and we are arranging to do precisely what 
you suggest. 

W. E. BATCHELO_R, Esq., 
Launceston and TVestern Raihvay. 

,;, . 

I have, &c. 
(Signed) C. H. GRANT. 
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( In continuation of Paper No. 31,) 

[Laid on the Table by Mr. Crowther, November 20, 1877.] 

f' 

I, Albert Terrace, 19th November, 1877. 
DEAR Srn, 

UroN reference to the evidence given by Mr. Solly before the Committee upon the "Main Line 
Railway Amendment Bill" I find a singular discrepancy to exist in his testimony as compared with that 
given in your presence at the Colonial Secretary's Oflic"e, and upon which I thou~ht there could not have 
been any misunderstanding. Will you oblige me by stating the substance of what transpired on that 
occasion 7 

I have, &c. 
WILLIAM LODK. CROWTHER. 

Tlte Hon. THos. REIBEY, 

20th November, 1877. 
MY DEAR Srn, 

IN reply to your note I beg to inform you that on the occasion you refer to, after I had ·commented 
upon the sound advice given to the Kennerley Administration by Messrs. Mais, Stanley, and Mason con­
tained in their Memo., which l found by a mere accident in the Colonial Secretary's Office, I asked Mr. 
Solly "if the Engineers had not been desired by the Government to furnish a detailed report and estimate 
of what would be required to bring the Railway within the terms of the contract?" Mr. Solly replied, 
"They were asKed to do so, and said that one Engineer could furnish such a report anu estimates as well 
as three; and as Messrs. Mais and Stanley were unable to remain in the Colony, Mr. Mason undertook 
to supply the information required, and that Mr. Mason did furnish a report showing that £10,000 or 
£11,000 would be required to complete the Line in accordance with the te1·11is (!f the contract." M1·. Solly 
also informed us that when this report was seen by Mr. W. R. Giblin, he expressed surprise at the small­
ness of the am_ount, saying, "What ! have we been fighting with a shadow? Is this all?" 

Mr. Solly thought Mr. Mason's report had been ret~rned to him, and hence the reason for my 
applying to that gentleman for information. 

I am faithfully yours, 
THOS. REIBEY. 

Hon. W. L. CROWTHER, M.L.O. 

[Laid on the Table by Mr. Moore, November 20, 1877.] 

Assistant Colonial Secretary's Office, 17th November, 1877. 
Srn, 

OBSERVING in the reports of the debates in the Legislative Council on the 16th instant tl~at the Hon. 
W. L. Crowther is stated to have said :- · · 

DR. CROWTHER regretted that M1·. Chapman had not investigated both sides of the question as he had only one side; 
.especially so when Mr. Chapman was the Chairman of Committee, who could put such leading questions to the witnesses as h(1 
chose, and that might be in accord with his views on the Main Line Railway. He refei-red to the evidence given by lib·. B. Solly, 
which he characterised as wanting in truthfulness, as Mr. Solly told hirn a dijferent story to that rnade to the Comrnittee. He 
complained that the remarks which ce1'tain Members made in the House did not go forth in the Press as the speeches of other 
Members. He hoped that on thw occasion hw rmnarhs would be publwhed, as it was a question of veracity between two indi­
viduals. A certain document in connection with the examination of the line was found in the Colonial Secretary's Office, being· 
a sort of intimation to the Government of the day as to the way proposed to inspect the line. That document was a very 
,sensible one. That being the case, it struck him as singular that engineers could make such to the Government of the day and 
go about the work in such a different way. He just sirnply asked 11:fr. Solly if .mch were the case, and he voluntarily, without 
being pre,ised, said that the engineers were asked to rnalw a report, and they replied that one engineer could do so as well as the 
three, and there was no necessity for the other two_ to remain. Mr. Mason remained, and had a detailed report qf the repairs 

,required to the Railway, to the amount of £ll,000 or £12,000, which he .fumwhecl to Jlfr. Giblin. He expressed his surprise 
that the Parliament was fighting with a shadow. The report was g·iven back to Mr. Mason, and it had never seen the light of 
day since. That was Mr. Solly's assertion. Such a report would be of very great advantage, and it would afford great facilities 
to Government in dealing with the question if such report could be found, and then, and not till then, did the Government enter· 
1nto the co1Tespondence alluded to by Mr. Solly in his evidence. In reply to a question put to him as to whether any report had 
_been furnished to hirn or any rnember qf tlw Governrnent as to repairs to the line, Mr.· Solly rnplied "No," but produced the 
_correspondence between the Government and M1·. Mason. The statument only contained haif· a truth, and lw would place his 
veracity agaimt any rnan in Tasrnania, and he left it for any one to say that Mr. Solly's statement was consistent. 

As the report of the Honorable Member's spee~h is calculated to injure my character both as an 
Officer of the Government and a gentleman, I have the honor most respectfolly to request that you will 
be pleased to communicate to the Honorable the Legislative Council the following statement of facts :-

Mr. Mason was requested by the Government to furnish them with an estimate of the cost of com­
pleting the Line in accordance with the contract. 
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In lieu of tl1is he furnished an estimate-not in detail-of what in his opinion, which was based on 

his recollection of the condition of the _Line when going over it with Messrs. Mais and Stanley, together 
with his notes taken at that time, woulc:l ·put the line in fair rirnning condition, at any rate for a time. 

As this document did not supply the information sought for, it was not retained by the Government. 

Such is the substance of what I informed the Hon. Mr." Crowther had occurred; and the Hon. Mr. 
Reibey, the Colonial Secretary at the time; must be aware of what passed, as it was in his Office, and in 
his presence, that the subject of this report of Mr. Mason was broached; and it was at the suggestion, if 
I remember rightly, of the Hon. Mr. Crowthe,r that the Colonial Secretary addressed those letters to Mr. 
Mason, copies of which I laid before the Committee. · 

Mr. Mason's reply to the Colonial Secretary's second letter will itself eicplain the nature of the report 
which that gentleman furnished the Government. 

I was asked by the Chairman. of the Main Line Railway Committee whether Mr. Mason, when 
inspecting the Main Line Railway in the.month of June, 1876; furnished the Government with a. report 
showing in detail what mas necessary to be done at tltat time to complete the Raihva.y and moi·lls i11 ·accor­
dance with the contract? "Was such a report furnished ·to you oi· to any Member of the Government as 
far as you are aware?" I replied, "No;" and I assert that my reply was strictly true, AND THE WHOLE 

TRUTH; but lest there should be any misapprehension as to what Mr. Mason had furnished, I laid before 
the Committee correspondence showing the nature of the information supplied by that gentleman,- -and I 
respectfully request that that correspondence may be published."' 

I distinctly affirm, that neither to the Hon. Mr. Crowther nor to any one else have I ever stated any-
thing in relation to this subject at variance with the above. ' 

I have, &c. 

Tlte Hon. tlte Colonial Secretary. 
B. TRAVERS SOLLY, Assistant Colonial Secreta1·y. 

., See ante, page 22, Appendix A I. 
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BELECT Committee on Tasmanian Main Line Railway Bill [Lords] . . 1877. 

MINUTES OF EVIDENCE TAKEN BEFORE. THE SELECT COMMITTEE ON TASMANIAN MAIN 
LINE RAILWAY BILL [LORDS]. 

WEDNESDAY, 20TH JUNE, 

11:fembers present: 

1877. 

Mn. BnucE. 
Mn. CHILDERS. 
·MR. HERSCHELL. I 

SIR HENRY HOLLAND. 
Mn. SAMPSON LLOYD. 
Mn. ARTHUR MILLS, 

The Right Ho,:iorable HUGH CU.LLING EARDLEY CHILDERS in the Ch(lir. 
THE Petition tor t.he Bill was read. 
Mr, Venabl!)s, Q.C., arid Mr. Ledgard appeared as Counsel for the PetitionerR. 
Messrs. Sherwood & Co. appeared as a 0 ·ents. 
The following Petitions against the Bill were read : 
The Petition of Robel'.t Orr Campbell. 
Mr. Pembroke Stephens appeared as Counsel for the Petitioner. 
Mr. W. A. Locke appeared as agent. 
The Petition of James Hay and others. 
Sir Mordaunt W ellR, Q.C., and Mr. Saunders appeared as Counsel for the Petitioners. 
Mr. W. A. Locke appeared as agent. 
Chairman.] 'fhe object of the reference of this Bill to a hybrid Committee is to enable the representatives of 

the Colony of Tasmania to be examined. We understand that the Colonial Agents officially r~present the Govern­
ment of Tasmania, and we therefore state at once that we shall either ourselves examine Sir Penrose Julyau, or allow 
him to be examined by Counsel. We shall give him the opportunity, ifhe tkinks fit, of appearing by Counsel. 

Mr. Venables stated that .the Promoters bad bad no communication with Sir Penrose Julyan, and that as the 
Bill did not in any way affect the Government of Tasmania, he ( :Vlr. Venables) was not in a position to assist the 
Committee by calling Sir Penrose Julyah. 

Mr. Venables was then heard to open the case for the Promoters of the Bill. 
At the conclusion of Mr. Venables' opening state.ment, Sir Penrose Julyan being present, the Chairman repeated 

to him the intimation already made by the Committee. . _ . 
Sir Penrose J ulyan stated that he would elect to be represented by Counsel. 
In answer to a question, 
The Chairman intimated that it would be well for Sir Penrose Julyan to remain in the committee-room to-day 

and watch the proceedings, am! to appear .by Counsel to-morrow; and ·he stated that the Committee would allow· 
any witness called to-day to be re-called to morrow if desired by Sir Penrose Julyan's Counsel. 

Mr. James Borwick Davison, sworn; examined by Mr. Ledgard. 
1. You are the Secretary to the Tasmanian Main Line Railway Company, and have been so, I think, since its 

incorporation? Since 1872. 
2·. Who are the directors? Mr. Sheward, the chairman; Mr. William Dent, Colonel Grey, aad Mr. Albert 

Ricardo. 
3. Mr. Sheward is also the Chairman of the Sambre and Meuse Railway Company, is he not? He is. 
4. Is Mr. Ricardo Deputy Chairman of the Bedford and Northampton Railway Company? I think so; 
5. Is Mr. Dent Chairman of the Ou<le and Robilcund Railway Company? He is. 
6. Do you p1·oduce the memorandum and articles of association of the Company, and the certificate of' 

incorpol'ation under the Limited Liability Act of 1862? Yes. 
7. What is the date of the incorporation, of the registration? 'fhe 17th of l\Iarch, 1870. 
8. The Company is registered in England under the Companies Act, and also, I believe, has been registered in 

accordance with the Colonial Acts in Tasmania? Yes. · 
9. Do you also prnduce the contract which has been laid before the Committee with the Tasmanian Government, 

dated the 15th March, 1872? Yes. · 
10. Clauses 5, 8, and 14 of the contract ·are the clauses which refer to. the guarantee given by the Colonial 

Governme11t, namely, .5 per cent. on £650,000, that is to say, so much as is exr,endecl? Yes. 
11. It is Clause 5, is it not, which refers to that guarantee? Clause 5 refers to that specially. 
12. That contract has a schedule attached to it which is the schedule referred to in terms in the contract? Yes, 
13. Now, do you produce the minute of the general meeting of the 21st of March, 1872, with the resolution 

authorising the directors to issue debenture bonds to the amount of £650:000 in accordance.with the terms of the 
contract which you have just referred to? I do: '' Resolved, that the directoi•s be authorised to raise· any sum of 
money not exceeding £650,000, on perpetual debenture bonds on such. terms and conditions as to price of issue, rate 
of interest, and generally under and subject to such conditions as the directors shall think fit." 

14. Now, had there been prior to that resolution a contract entered into with the contractors, Messrs. Cla1·k and 
Punchard, which is the contract referred to in the prospectus, bearing date the 22nd of March? That had· Leen 

. under consideration on this date, but is dated the day after. · 
15. What is the date of the contract with Messrs. Clark and Puncharcl? The 22nd of March, 1872. 
16. You have a copy of that contract, and the original is lodged at the Joint Stock Company's office? , Yes. 
17. But you have a copy if the Committee wish to a~k any questions on it? I have a copy.· 
18. Chairman.] Have you a printed copy of it.? It is not in print. 
19. Mr. Ledgard.J I do not propose to take the witness through all the contract; it is not material to our case. 

(To the witness). Is that the contract which is referred to in the prospectus bearing the same date, the 22nd of 
March 1872? Yes. 

21J. Do you produce a copy of that prospectus 1 Yes. · 
21. ~ ow, in accordance with the terms of that prospectus and ot the resolution which you have referred to, did 

the Compau" iss11e debenture bonds to the extent of £650,000 nominal? They did. 
22. At the issue price of £92 10s. per bond? It was. 
23. Now what othPr debenture stock have you issued over and above that £650,000? Under the resolution of 

a geneml meeting in 1875, on the 17th of December, 1875, the directors were authoris6d to issue £50,000 additional 
debentures. 

24. Making £700,000 debenture bonds and stock in all? . Yes. · 
25. Have the Company in addition to that in respect of share capital £243,350 six per cent. preference stock, 

and £150,590 ordinary shares? Yes, ., 
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26. Making the total ~hare capital of £393,940 over and above the £700,000 debentures? Yes. 
27. I will ask you this one question upon that; that share capital has been issued from time to time in accord­

anr.e with the stipulations in the ccntract with tlrn contractors which you have just handed in to the Committee, and 
which is referrPd to in the prospectus ; the contract is "for the sum of£ I ,025,000, of which £400,000 is to be pnid 
in the shares of the Company ;" the share capital issued will then stand at £400,000, and the debenture at £650,000? 
y~ . 

Yes. 
28. That is the total issue of debenture and share capital issued Ly the Company down to the present time? 

Chairman] Was the whole of the .£50,000 issued? 
29. Mr. Ledgard.J Of the £50,000 debenture stock, was the whole issued ~ Thirty-two thousand was issued, 

and £18,000 was held as security for advances to the Company. 
30. Mr. Sampson Lloyd.J Held hy whom? Held by the parties who lent the Company the money. 
31. Mr. Ledgard.] When was the line open for traffic? 'rhe 13th or 14th March, 1876, the day before the 

termination of the four years allowed for the construction of the railway. 
32. Now under the contract the Tasmanian Government were to pay interest during the pP.riod of construction? 

They were. 
33. And under that contract with the Tasmanian Government, it was computed at four yea1·s? Yes. 
34. But in your contract with the contractors, they, I think, were to complete the railway within two years 

from the date of the contrnct?. •rwo years and three-quarters. 
35. And in point of fact the line was opened as you have stated, on the 14tb March, 1876? Yes. 
36. Anrl as you nre advised, it has been working at the rate of speed stipulated ior by the Tasmanian Govern­

ment ~ince its openi11g? Yes. 
37. Now you say that the Government paid the interest during the period of construction in accordance with 

the terms of the cont rad; have they paid interest at all since the date of its op~ning? No, they have refused to do 
so. . 

38. Can you say if~ at this t.imP, the railway is earning somewhat mum already than its working expenses, 
notwithstanding the short time that it has been open? I believe so. 

39. You are advised so? We are advised so at the present time. 
40. Therr is a resident engineer, and I suppose a residrnt staff in Tasmania 1 Yes. 
41. Now the Government have refused to pay the i11tr.rest since March, 1876, did your directors consider what 

steps were nec-essary with a, iew of extricatin~ themselves from the difficulty? Yes. 
42. And wns the Bill, as originally deposited, drawn up with that o~ject, a::1d was that original Bill approved of 

by a meeting heir! ou the 7th December in last year? '!'he Bill had not then been prepared. 
43. The Bill it~elf was not absolutely drafted then, but the objects of the Bill were laid before the meeting and 

then approved of? Yes. 
44. That was a meeting of the 7th of December, 1876; perhaps you have the resolution there? Yes; this was 

the resolution--
45. Chairman.] Will you describe the meeting first? A meeting of shf>1•eholders and uebenture holders, an 

indiscriminate meeting; not a statutory meeting of shareholders, but a promiscuous meeting of shareholders and 
debenture holders. 

46. Called bi· advertisement? Called by advertisement, and by notice as far as we could give it. 
47. Now will you read the material part? "Resolved, that the direct:>rs be authorised to apply for Parlia­

mentary powr.rs to ca1-ry out an arrangement by whicl1 the Company may, with the consent of two-thirds in value 
of the bondholders, represented in person, or by proxy, at a special meeting, be r.mpowered to raise as a first charge 
on the earnings of the Company, a sum not exceeding £50,000 upon such terms as the directors may think fit; and 
further to confer on the debenture holders of the Company powers of voting on equal terms with the shareholders." 

48. Mr. Ledgard.J Subsequently was thert' a committee or shareholuers appointed, and also a committee of 
bondhol::lers, to confer with relation to the Bill? A committee of bondholders was then in existence; subsequently 
a committee of shareholders was formed. 

49. It having been !ound that the shareholders were opposed to the Bill as originally designed? Yes. 
50. And was it in consequence of that that the Bill was amended and laid before the shareholders for their 

confirmation on the 13th Mat·ch, 1877? Yes, at a meeting of the 12th of March. 
51. 'l'hat was the second meeting approving· of the amended Bill? Yes. 
52. When was the prior meeting held? On the 22nd of Febrnary". 
53. Mr. Sampson Lloyd.] Was that last meeting also composed of debenture holders and shareholders? No, of 

shareholders. 
54. It was a statutory meeting? Yes, a Wharncliffe meeting. 
55. Mr. Ledgard.J '!'here was a meeting, was there not, on the 16th of December? Not of bondholders or 

shareholders. 
56. Was that amended Bill drawn up after the meeting of tj1e committee of tlrn shareholders with the committee 

of the bondholders? Yes, I think they had one meeting. 
Uhairman.J Will you ask him what the amended Bill was; you have only just used the words "amended 

Bill?" ' . 
57. Mr. Ledgard.J The Bill approved of on the 13th March at the secoud meeting of the shareholdei·s, is the 

Bill which was passed by the Honse of Lords, anu which i, now before this Committee? Yes, it was. 
58. I think the committee of shareholders were reprPsented mainly by Mr. Clements, the gentleman who gave 

evidence before the Houae of Lords? He acted as their solicitor. · 
50. How many bondholders were there known to you at the time of this meeting being held on the 13th March; 

597 it was, I think? Five hunrlred and ninety-seven, I think, is the number. 
60. Representing £540,000 in amount? Ye.s. 
61. Of the £650,000 nominal? Yes. 
62. They were ismed at £92 10s.; that would represent, would it not, something like £46,000 off £650,000 

nominal? Yes, £48,750 I think it is. 
03. The bonds are payable to bearer; is that the re>1son why you have not been able to obtain the addresses of 

the other fow remaining over and above the 597, who:;e audresses you know of'? Yes. 
64. What woulu be the exact total number of bondholders? I can only estimate that. 
65. I think the 597 represents something like six-sevenths, does it not, of the total number of bondholders? I 

should say about that. 
66. Were you instructed by your board to send a copy of the Bill which is now before this Committee, that is 

what l have called the amended Bill, with the cil'Cu!ar beariug date the 10th or April, 1877? Yes. 
67. Is that (handing a paper to the witness) a copy of the circular which you were instructed to send to every 

bondholdPr with a copy of the Bill, os proposed to be bl"Ought before the Jiou,e of Lords? Y cs. 
68. That was the Bill which is 110w before the Committee and which was eent, belore it came on for consideration 

in the House of Lords, to every bondholder? Yes. 
69. And was passed by the House of Lords in that form ? It was so. 
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70. Not alterP.d ? Not altered. 
71. In that circular of the 10th of April, the last paragraph but one, is a!l follows : "The debenture holders 

must distinctly understand that the Bill as proposed to be amended is simply an enabling one, giving three-fourths 
of th'eir own Lody the power to make certain arrangemr.nts, and that this power is to be exercised, not by a majority 
at a meeting which <'very one cannot attend, but by their signatures after the Bill has passed to an agreement which 
every one will be ahle to see and consider before it takes effect?" Yes. 

'72, And tnere is also this : '• 'l'he directors earnestly request your a.ttendance at the meeting, but that in case 
you are not ahle to attencl, you will sign and return the assent at the foot of the enclosed form?" Yes. 

73. Mr. Herschell.] Did this Bill show the proposed amendments as you sent it to the debenture holders? We 
sent a copy of the Bill as it was passed by the House of Lords ; it was not then passed by the House of Lords; it 
was subsequently. 

74. As it passed the Committee of the House you mean? Yes. 
75. Sir Henry Holland.] It showed the amendments, and those amendments were passed7 Yes. 
76. Mr. LPCJgard.] How many assents had you to the Bill in the House of Lords; I think you had assents 

representing £420,000? Yes, about that. -
77. And 4i9 bomlholders out of 5971 The £4'W,000 included also the debenture stock-holders. 
78. 'rhat I understand; but you had a~sents from debenture stock-holders and debenture bond-holders in the 

House of Lord, to the extent of £420,000 and 479 in number? Yes. 
79. And since the Bill passed in the House of Lords have you received assents representing 16 in number and 

£37,000 in value? Yes. . _ . 
80. Making- a total now of 495 in number of bondholders, and £448,000 representing the amount, who have 

assented to the Bill? Yes. 
81. You were called as a witness before the Committee of the House of Lords? I wa~. 

Cross-examined by Sir Mordaunt Wells. 
82. Will you state to the Committee, if you please, the number of your shareholders? About 180, I think. 
83. Perhaps you have got a book in the room which will show that? I have the share registrar. (The witness 

produced it, and handed it to Sir Mordaunt Wells.) 
84. Will you state to the Committee what amount of money is represented by the 180 shareholders? That has 

already been stated; £393,000 I think it is. It is mentioned in the circular which was puc in. 
85. Do you mean to represent to the Committee that that amount of cash has been received in respect of those 

shares? No. 
86. Your answer would rather imply that; what I want to know is the amount of money in the coffe.rs of the 

Company in respect of the ISO shareholders? I am unable to give you 1hat. 
87. Surely, as the secretary of the Company, you can tell the amount ot money that you have received in 

respect of yuur own shareholders? The shares were issued to the contractors, under the contract with them, as 
fully paid up. 

88. You have given me the figures 180, and I will deal v,ith it in that way; out of the 180 what proportion 
passed into the hand,- of the contractors-- · 

Mr. Venables objected to the line of cross-examination, on the ground that Sir Mordaunt ,vells was going 
into transnctions between the Company and the contractors, about which his petition said nothing. 

Sir Mordaunt Wells submitted that the question came within the terms of' his petition. 
The Chairman stated that Sir Mordaunt Wells had not yet, in the opinion of the Committee, asked any 

question outside the pe1ition. 
89. Sir Mordaunt ·wells (to the witness). My learned friend Mr. Saunders says that he cannot make out more 

than 38 ~hareholders? Some of the shares have been converted into stock, and I count stockholders as well. 
90. How "stock?" Preference stock. 
91. ls there another register of stockholders? (The witness put _another hook into the hands of Sir Mordaunt 

Welk) 
92. Then may I take it that this first book only represents 38 original shareholders? Ordinary shareholders. 
93. Now I see here is the name of Darton for one share? Yes. 
94. Then I see the name of 'Ny lie for one share? Yes. 
95. Then the name of Fox for one share? Yes, 
96. Then Mangles for one share? Yes. 
97. Then Cook for one. shal'e, and Ommanney for one share, and Hawes for one share. Now these are the 

original shareholders? Yes, who signed the articles of association. 
98. Then I see Carey, 10; Barker, 10; Glynn, 10; Herepath, 5; apd then the Chairman, 100; Wyndham, 10; 

Chapman, 100; Dent, 100; and Hicardo, 100; those are tl,e directors I suppose; that is their qualification? Yes. 
99. Then I see Barnard, 100 ; and Butler, 2; and Burns, 3, Now then I come to the larg-e holders; I see 

Phillips; who is Phillips? His address is there I suppose. 
100. "IS, King-strnei, Manchester;" do you know whether he has anything to do with the contractors? I 

cannot say,; I should think he got his share from the contractors in some way ; those were shares that were issued 
, to the con tractors. 

101. You have no doubt, have you, that the shares standing in the name of' Francis Phillips were shares that 
were issued to the contractors?- · 

Chairrmn. J It is hardly necessary to ask that question; the witness has already stated that the whole, 
something lik:e £400,000 of share capital, was iss~ed to the contractors. . . 

Sir Mordaunt Wells.] Now, I want to kn9w this; what money have you received on the secunty of' shares 
other thau these which are mentioned in the two books you have handed me. 

Witness.] Have we pledged any shares, do you mean? 
102. No. I ask you what money you have received in respect of shares which are not mentioned in this book? 

Nothing whatever. 
103. For instance, you have received an advance upon shares which are not mentioned here, have you not? 

Certainly not. 
104. You have not persons who hold shares in respect of unissued shares; I mean shares whi~h have not been 

issued in the regular way? I do not understand how any body could hold shares that have not been issued. 
105. But do they, or not? Not that I know. 
106. Can you tell me what number of shares, for instance, is held by Mr. Grant? I think you will see his 

name in the book. I think it is 20,000. _ 
- 107. How much has been paid in respect of them? There you come back to the old question; those shares 
were originally issued to Messrs. Clark and Punchard. 

107.* Do you mean to say that Mr. Grant's shares are shares that belong to the co~tractors? Certainly. 
108. Was there no separate trausacti"on between you and Mr. Grant? Not respectmg shares. 
109. But had you any transaction? Not as to any shares. 
110. What was the transaction which you had? In what respect do you mean? 



111. You say " not in respect of shares;" therefore, I presume, there wa:i some other transaction?., W.o have 
, -had transactions :witb,:Mr. Grant. · · · . · · 
. . .112: Whnt y\'e're those transactions f · He lent the Cdmpany some money. 

113. -Thnt is ~hi1t I.want; how much? · Five thousand -pounds. · . 
Mr. yenables· su bmftted that . Sir Mordaunt Wells -was going into a long inquiry not raised in his petitiop, 

and whwh be had no right to go mto. · · · . 
, .. , • • Sir; •Mordaunt Wells submitted that he -was entitled. to pursue. this:examination. 

The Chairman stated.that Sir Mordaunt Wells was asking the witness questions as to the financial position 
-of the Company, a.matter which was raised.distinctly in the Petition. . · . · 

: · I-14. Sir Mordaunt Wells (to the witness).] .Now will you tell me the -nature of ,that transaction with M:r. 
Grant? He advanced the Company mo~ey. . • , ·: :: 

115. On what terms 1 On the s1>cur1ty of the debenture stock whrnh I berore referred to. 
116. On thffsecurity of the debenture stock yon say; now then that brings me to this; I see in your register that 

Mr. Grant, between the time of the framing. ·of the. original, Bill and the amendments t.o .that Bill, became the possessor 
of a thousand shares, £10,000 ? Yes. · 

117. That is after the original Bill, you know, was· deposited (after the date here, February) ; he then: becanie 
the ·possessor·of a thousand shares? Ye$; 

118. Which, ot course, gave ldm great in:(luencejn reference to the Bill, which hail been sanctioned then by the 
directors,• as one of the largest shareholclPrs? As a shareholder. . 

119. Mr. Herschell.] ,vas this amount adva1iced hy Mr. Grant out of tl:ie existing liabilities of the ·Company? 
Yes; ·it does not amount to £5000; it ,vas originally that. · . , 

120. Sir Mordaunt Well~.] Now, as a justification for the raising of this £5000, you suggested, did you not, tQ,at 
· tho dehts ofthe Company in Englan<l amounted to:only £10,000 ·? ,. Yes. . 

121. I collect from the statement _made by your learned Counsel that th;i debts in England amount to £12,500 '? 
I think he stated that, but I do not think it is quite correct ; 'we <lo- not owe St) much as that. 

122. £12,500 in this country, and £15;000 in Tasmania; £27/i00·altogether? · I <lo not confirm that statement. 
123. Now supposing Clark an<l Punc_har<l, the contractors, -substantiaii, their claim against the <lircctors (you 

know there are legal proceedings going on), how are you to provide payment for their claim; you know we have 
. got £21,500, or I will take it if you pleas~ that it is less than that? 

Chairman.] Will you ask him the amount. 
· 124. Sir Mordaunt Wells.] Will you state to the CommittP.e in your judgment what is the amount of indebtedness 

of your Compe,ny in England? Under £10,000. · 
Chairman.] A11<l also in Tasmania-; will you get from the witness."' hat he considers the present <lebts to be 

in England and abroad ? , · 
125. Sir Mordaunt Wells (to the Witness).] Do you agree with the figui:es with respect to £15,000 in Tasmania'? 

·:. I agree with the figure of £12,500 in England, and Tasmania on balance. 
120. For instance, we know now that there is litigation or (to put it more correctly) that there are differences 

between the Railwny Company and the contractors; is not that so? 'l'hat is so. 
127. I may put it a little higher, and soy that there is litigation? TherE is litigation. 
128. What is the claim of the contmctors against the Company? Something very large. I cannot tell you; the 

solicitors will give you that. 
129. c\uppo~ing that the contractors, Messrs. Clark and Punchard, substantiate a .considerable portion of that 

·. claim, how are they to be pai<l? I am not prepared to say at the present time. 
130. You proposed to raise £50,000, and you propose to take power to expend a portion of that £50,000 in pay­

: ment of debts; how do you <listinguish a claim substantiatc<l by the contractors against your Company from any other 
debt that .you have ? By our contract with the contractors we are able to satisfy thl'ir claim by paying them in 
shares, so that it woul<l not become a money claim. · 

131. How i1•any shares have you unissue<l? £fl00,000:· 
132. An<l do you mean to represent that, in the event of their litigating this matter, you can pay that debt_by 

shares? I believe so. · 
133. Can you show me any agreement or document which gives you the power of satisfying a claim substantiated 

by the contractor, by payment in shares? In the contract itself. · 
134. Will you show me in reference to any <lebt outsi<le that they may substantiate against you, any clause in 

the agreement which enables you to satisfy that debt by 'giving them unissue<l shares? There is a supplemental 
contract with Mc•ssrs. Clark and Punchard, dated 13th of August, 1874, by which they are to havr. £~0,00ll extra in 
shares, an<l that has this clause in it: "That the said ad<litional sum of £80,000 110 to be pai<l to the contractors as 

··aforesaid, shall be accepted as satisfantorily covering all their claims of every description for any payment orc11mpen­
sation _to be made by them, by way 'oi' ad<litiun to, or increase -of the said contract price, or sum of£ 1,025,0IJ0 in 
respect to all matters or things 'whatsoever, whether already or hereafter to be done by them in fulfilment of their 
contract, or othe'rlvi_se in n,ference to tha subject-matter thereof." 

·. 135. I suppose what that means is this, that during the continuance of the contract, whatever work is performed 
by )Jessrs. Clark and Punchard,. they are to be pni<l in that manner; is that what you rely upon to show that, 
supposing the contract to be determined between the parties, they are to have their detit pai<l in unissued shares? 

· · Certainly. · · 
136. Is there any other document that you rely upon to make out that? That and the original contract together. 
137. What.is tb_e nature of the claim of Clark nncl Punchard; what is it for? It is for various things. · 
138. Is any portion of it for breach of contra_ct on the part of the Clompany? No. 
139. What is it for; just tell me? I have not a statement of their claim hefore-me. 
140. Is it a claim for extra work or for damagPs? Extra ·work principally. 
141. Is their claim by WRY. of compensation, as. is suggested here?· 

Mr. Venables,] The claim which my learne<l friend is now referring to is a counter claim set up by the 
deien<lants in the action on wLich we are plaintiffB. 

• 142. Sir Mordaunt Wells. l It that ·expla.natfon of the learned Couns:il is correct, it is perfectly clear that any 
claim now set up in an action of that kind by Messrs. Clark and Pun chard cannot be met by the issuing of shares, Cllll 

it? I think so. · 
' 143. If you think so,- I will not press you upon it; now 1:w_ant to haYe a distinct answ~r to this question ; .. what 

was the nature of the transaction which took place in your office on the 81 h of February this year, which feel to the 
takina of all the shares; for instanne ·c1 will enumerate the!Il), there is George Clements, £50110; Willinrn Coles, 
£5000; William Irving Hare, £20,000; I want to know thn,nature of that transaction, why those gent)Pmen came 
so late as the 8th February to gP.t such a large interest in the Company? I do not know that I can give you any 
explanation of that; it is not my duty to enquir ... into the reason of transfers . 

. 144. But this is an original ·i,ssue? Begging your par<lon, it is a transfer. 
145. It is an original issue of shares on-the 8th of February? No, it is not. 
146. Do you mean that this book which you put into my han<ls does µot profess to show that it is an .original 

issue of shares? No ; it is transfer No. 187. 

•• 
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147. The question is precisely the same·in another form; can you give any- explanation to the Committee of the 
• nature of this transfer ·on that particular·day, because you see it ia a very large amount,- £40,090; the same day as 

Mr.• Grant's transfer ? I have not j)rought the transfers with me, but they can be brought up:· ' 
148, Chairman,l Is there an emry·there which shows whether they were for valuable·consideration or not? · 

Witness.] I do not think they ·were ; I think they_ were nominal considerations most of thelll; those particular 
transfers.· · 

Mr. Venables.] One of those persons will be called as a witness. . 
149. Sir M_ordaunt Wells.] 'rhe directors of this Company put in motion, did they not, a section of the bon_d-

h9lders with a-view of having a winding up of-the-concern?· Yes, I think you may say that, · . · ·. · 
150. The Standard·Life Office·, represented by .M:r. Williams,.the·original. bondholders, topk 1he active part, did. 

they not, in the interest of the bondholder,s in reference to the Bill that was to be framed for carrying out a certain 
arrangement as to raising a sum of £5o;ooo? Yes. · · · . 

151. And up to a certain point your directors acted cordially with that Committee? Yes. 
152. They approved, did they not, of the scheme. which was suggested by the bondholders' committee?' Yes, I 

think the directors the:inselves suggested the scheme. -
153. And the shareholders and bondholders met on the 7th of December, and they also approv_ed of the scheme 

which had received the sanction of the bondholders' committee and of the directors? Yes, I have already stated 
fu~ . ' 

154. Then can you state to the Committee the precise time when a change was made in the policy of your 
directors in 1'eterence to the mode in which the £50,000 should be raised? Some day in Febrnary,-1877. · · . 

155. Chairman.] What was the exact date? The 12th of Fe]?ruary, 1877, at the meeting of shareholders when 
the-·Bill ·was submitted to the shareholders. 

, 156. Sir Mordaunt Wells.] You found, did you not, then, that the shar_eholders were making aclaiminrefei:ence 
to any ·partition that might take pl!lce of the assets of this Company?- That subject arose. 

157'. And that subject not only arose, but formed a portion of a circular that was issued by your·directors? Yes. 
158. The effect of that would have been, would it not, to have piaced the shareholders in a better position than 

they then occupied in reference to the claims of the bondholders of the Company? I think that is a legal question. 
150. No; it is not; you know very well as the secretary of the Company, supposing the assets ( this will put it· 

perhaps in a better way) of the Company only to realise a sufficient amount to pay the mortga~ees, the bondholders; 
would not that arrangement in reference to a certain proportion of the assets being applied to the shareholders, place 
them in a bett_cr position than they would have stood in before? Certainly. • 

· 160 .. That' was the origin,- was it not, of-the proceedings on the part of the directors in changing their policy? 
It·waa no doubt-the origin of the proceedings on the part of the shareholders. 

161. It amounted to a pressure, did it·not, upon the directors to change their policy? It resulted in the directors 
altering the Bill. · , : _ 

. 162. I will ta~e it so, ·if you please; now did you ever call a special'meeting of the bondholders as distinct from _ 
the shareholde·rs-to consider this matter, because, on the 7th of December, we have it in evidence that the bondholder& : 
approved of the original Bill'; now I ask you whether you ever called a special meeting of the bondholders to 
co"nsider tlie alterations suggested in that Bill·? Yes. 

163. Your Chairman stated that it was a meeting of shareholders and bondholders; I am reforring· tCJ the 
meeting of the 10th of April; 1877? The 16th of April •. 

164. No; the first circular was on the· I0th? Yes. 
165. And the meeting was on the 10th? Yes. · 
166. · Thi1t was-a· meeting of shareholders and bondholr.lers? No, only shareholders and stockholders. 
167. But how could you distinguish? We did not invite the shareholders. 

· 168:· ·M r.·;Her·schell.] -What do you mean by·" stockholders?" The debenture stockholders, the six per cent. 
debenture stock raised after the £650,000. _ _ 

169. 3ir Morr.I aunt Wells. l Show me any circular issued by the directors convening specially a meeting of. bond-
hqlders? On the 101.h of Ariril, 18i7. · , . ' 

170. Did not that result in a meeting of shareholders and bondholders according to the Chairman's own state- . 
ment, Here ifls at No. 195; on tbe 23rd of April in the House of Lords:' '' I must have an answer; I will ask y·ou 
ag!lin whether it wns upon the vote of the shareholders and bomlholders you deposited that Bill. A. I have no 
means of disti1iguishirig- between the bondholders and shareholders at that meeting, I say it was a vote -of the . 
m~eting composed, as I am told, of shareholders, )Jut if I were put npon my oath, I cou,Id not say there was a single 
sharehold_er present." I want to know on what ground you state that you could distinguish between the share­
holders and bondholders cin the sul>srquent meeting differently from that which_ occurred oh the 7th, because I do not 
understand tha_t there was any special meeting of bondholders? When we hold a meeting we generally_ get the 
proprietors to sigri their names as they go in, and we can tell from that. 

171. Chairman.] Who was the meeting presumed to be of? The debenture holders only; the debenture; b~md, 
and ·stock holde'rs. · · 

' 172. Sir Mordaunt Wells.] That meeting was held on the 16th? Yes. . 
173. Did you receive a letter from the Standard Life Office requesting that that letter should ,!Je read at the 

meeting? From their solicitor on the morning of that day. . . _ 
· 1'14. And 'that letter was the subject of discussion at your boarrl? No. · 

175. I should like you to have an opportunity of considering th!) matter, because here is your own statement· 
(this is on the 23rd''Ot ·April at Question 85), "Do you adhere to that answer, that the reason why that_ letter was 
not read to the meetin~ ·was because yoti expected somebody from the 8tandard Life Office would come and read it . 
.A. That remark was made at the Board before the meeting.'' Was I not right rn saying that that letter was the 
subject-matter of disriussion at your Board? Very slight discussion, but no consideration. 

176. Then it would have been right to say there was a discussion? The fact of the letter having been received 
was mentioned, that was all. . · · 

I 77. Now you say there was a slight discussion at the board ; what was that slight discussion about ;· was it in 
reference to the ·contents of that letter? Not as to the contents, because the letter had not been considered ; it had 
not· been read. ' · 

178: Bnt you knew then that it was a letter from the Standard Life Office, who were opposed to the scheme , 
ab_out to be 'presented to that meeting ; you knew that ? Yes. 

' 179. If you· knew that that letter was opposed to the scheme which you were about to present to the 
meeting, yon- knew also, did you not, that the Standard Life Office had. taken the most active part as a large bond­
holder in the matter 7 Yes. 

180. From the beginning to the end; why was not that letter read? Because there was not time. 
18L' Do you mean to give this answer to the Committee, that, in a matter qf that grave importance, in reference 

to· a scheme about to be s11bmitted to a meeting, a letter was not read because· there was not time? Yes. 
182, Yon have not suggested that before, have you? I do not know; I had not my notes beside me, • 

.183, Yori. have not suggested that that was the re·ason? I think you will find that the Chairman stated so in the 
House of Lords .. 

' '· 
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184. But you did not, did you, iu answer to any questions that were put? I cannot say. 
185. You heard this question put by my learned friend, Mr. Venables, in the House of Lords, to Mr. George 

::3heward, at page 16: "I understand you to say, not having read the letter, but knowing it was inteuded to support 
a view adverse to yo_ur own ; you deliberately declined to read it? A. No; I do not go the length of saying I knew 
it was to support a view adverse to my own .. Q. At any rate, not having read it yourseH~ you declinecl to read it to 
the meeting? A. Yes. I declined to read it to the meeting." These are questions put by your own Counsel? Yes; 
to the Chairman, · 

186. I ask you again, dMinctly, whether that letter was Il'lt kept back from that meeting, k;n0wing that it was 
hostile to the scheme which the Directors were promotiug 7 Certainly not; because the directors bad not read it. 

187. You still adhere, then, to your first answer, that your only reason for not reading that let.ter was· want of 
time; is that so 7 I had not to read the letter; that is a question for the Directors to answer. 

188. But you do adhere to the answer that you yourself gave, that it was a question of time ? Certainly. 
189. How long did the meeting last? An hour, I should think, if you mean the meeting of bondholders; about 

an hour; it commenced at 12. · 
190. Mr. Venables.] Do you say there was not time to read it to the meeting ? There was not time to consider 

it; I mean at the board meeting. · · 
· Hll. Sir Mordaunt Wells, I There were two distinct letters addressed, one to you und one to the Clinirman 

enclosing that letter, asking that it should be read to the bondholders 7 Yes. 
192. The letter was not given to you without that explanation 7 No. 
193. Now, you knew that letter was opposed altogether to the scheme promoted by the shareholders and the 

directors, was it not 7 Yes. 
194. And the bondholders having on the 7th of December voted in favour of the original Bill had not an 

opportunity, whPn the amendments had been proposed, of considering the statements of the bondholders' co111mittee, 
of the Standard Office committee; is not that so? That committee had considered itself at an end by _this time. 

195, Whether it considered itself at an end or not they took action in the matter, did they not, and sent the 
letter; the Standard Office I mean? The Standard Office dirl on their own acconnt, not on behalf of the committee. 

196. Now I want to ask you this: who suggested to the shareholders that the bondholders should have their 
coupons funderl, and their right of claiming payment of their capital wnived; who made that suggestion? The 
meeting of shareholders, the committee of shareholders. 

197. Who made the suggestion that the shareholders should, in the event of the J)roperty being disposed of, have 
a proportion of the assets? I think the committee of shareholders. 

IDS. Who proposed. that there should be an alteration as to the application of the £50,000 whi<:h you know, 
under the original Bill, was to be paid for the finishing of the railway to the satisfaction of the Tasmanian Govern­
ment; who made the suggestion that that should he altered? I think the Company's solicitor. 

199. Now I want to ask this: can you state to thA committee, from any figure or records that you have in your 
office, wliat is the amount of money which is required, in the view of the Tasmanian Go_vemment, to hav<; this railway 
put in p<'_rfoct conrlition? The Tasmanian Government have.never made any official statement of the sort. 

200. We heard that three engineers had been appointed by the Tasmanian Government to investigate the matter 
as to what would be req aired to put the l'llilway in perfect condition? Yes; but they make no estimate of the 
amount req1Jired. 

201. Have you no records in the office of the results of that examination by those engineers-­
Mr. Venables.] Yes; here it is (banding a Heport to Sir Mordaunt Wells). 
Witness. j We have no esti,nate beyond our own agent's estimate. 
202. Chairman.] Can you give the committee the result of the report of the three engineers, giving their 

opinions? Only the estimate of our own engineer upon that report. 
203. Do you mean that the Colonial Government engineers huve not given any £gures? They have not made 

an estimate. 
_ 204. Can you put in their report? Yes. (The report was handed to the Committee.) 

205. Sir Mordaunt Wells.] What is the amount you put the dehts in Tasmania at, irrespective of the completion 
of the railway; I did not quite understand that; it wns stated that the debts in Tasmania amounted to about £15,000? 
Yes; that is irrespective of the amount which the Government owe us on the -guarnntee. Our balance there is 
£12,500 clue. 

Yes. 
206. You know it was represented that there was a debt of £12,500 in Englund, and £15,000 in Tasmania? 

207. What clid you mean by saying that you differed from those figurns, and that there was a balance of£ 12,500? 
I mean to ,ay, that taking the debts in London and in Tasmania, and taking credit for the amount of guaranteed 
interest owing by the Government, the balance is un<ler £12,500. 

208. Do you mean to say tho11 that the way you explain away the amount is, that you are taking credit for 
unpaid interest 011 the part of the Governwent? Yes. 

20!1. That interest may never be paid at all; they are not bound to pay it unless the railway is completed: how 
can you take that us a diminution of the debt; will you assume, if you please, that this interest is not paid; there is 
an end of that; now tell me the amount that is actually due from the Company to creditors in TasmHnia? £15,800. 

210. Not on balance, I mean 7 No. 
21 I. Sir Henry Holland,l In England, you say, the amount is under £10,000? £9500; anrl the cust of the 

Bill we put down at £1000; that would make it£ I 0,500. 
212. Sir Mordauut Wells.] Is the £;3500 clue to the Credit Foncier Company part oft.he £10,000? Yes. 
213. Is there any amount ot' money due to Mr. Grant? £3700 odd, I think it is, due to Baron Grant. 
214. U nrler the original Bill there was an absolute security, was there not, that the £511,000, if rnised by the 

bondholders, ~hould be spent in completin!; the railway to the satisfaction of the Tasmanian Government? And in 
disch~rdng the Company's liabilities. 

215 In the original Bill, I say? I have not it before me. 
216. I r says, capital liabilities 7 Yes, all the liabilities which they have are on capital account. 
217. Now ,ur,posing the report of threA enginens appointed by the Tasmanian Government to show an absolute 

nPces~ity for an expenditul'e, we will say, of £-10,000, how do you propose to deal with that mutter, as you have now 
powPr, you kuow, to expend this £50,0U0 in any way you think proper; there is no liniit; how do you propose to 
rueet the qurstion? That. quPstion has not bPen con.,idi>red, becau~e it is not thought that £40,000 will b,· required. 

:!18. That may be so, but under the Bill, you know, approved of by the bon<lholden,' committeP, in tlw event 
of the £50.1100 being raised, the first claim upon that money was to put the rail way into perfect working order, was 
it ·not 7 Yes. 

219. Irrespective of any debt? Yes. 
220. \-Vhot security is there that if this £50,000 is raised, as proposed by this Bill, there will be a sufficient 

amount to satisfy the reasonable requirements of the Tasmanian Government? We have only the estimate of our 
own engineer. , 

221. It is rather a dangerous thing to rely upon, I should think? The directors have every confidence in him. 
222. But you could not very well rely on the estimate of your own engineer, could you? I do not know who 

else we could, with all due re8pect, 
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223. You are aware at any rate that there is a very great difference of opinion (I cannot put it higher than that 

at present) between your engineer and the other engineers as to the amount that will be required as to the works;· 
yqu are aware of that? Yes, more or less. 

224. Supposing the £50,000 to be raised, and that it turned out that the claim on the part of the Tasmanian. 
GovPrmnent before they will consent to pay the 5 per cent. interest amounts to £50,000, and you have creditors 

' confessedly amounting to £25,000, what use will· it be raising the £50,000? On that case I suppose there would 
h~ye to be another consideration of the whole subject; the money would not be expi,nded. 

225. Can this question be really determined accurately until it is known positively what is the amount that will- · 
li~ required for the completion of this railway? It is thought so. 

• 226. Of course, if the £50,000 shquld not be sufficient you cau only raise the money again by going to the bond-
holders? I should think so. . . 

, · 227. That is the only way you can possibly raise the money ; so that if they make the sacrifice of raising the 
£50,000 they may be called upon for a much larger sum; is not that so? If they had to raise a larger sum, of course 
they would have to make the sacrifice. 

· 228. Under the original Bill (if you do Jlot follow me· quite, tell me, and I will refer to the Bill) there was an 
absolute right for the bondholders to vote as shareholders, was thne not 1 Yes. · 

229. Quite irrespective of any determination on the part of the shareholders, but the Bill gave to the bond­
holders the same r~ghts as the. shareholder~? Yes, that is what the shareholders objected to, because they would 
h11,ve had the votes and they might have raised the £50,000, or they might not. 

230. The railway was constructed out of the money of the bondholders, was it not? Not entirelv. 
. 231. I see the guarantee under the contract with the Tasmanian Government is something like the amount 

raised by the bondholders, ·,~ it not, the limit £650,000 is the limit, is it not? Yes. 
-, . 232, Pretty nearly all that was found by the bondholders ? A large proportion of it, not the whole of it. 

233. Therefore it was not very unreasonable, was it, that they should have a right of voting having found all the­
money for the construction of the railway? It is a very unusual thing to give bondholders votes, I think. 

284. "They had the largest interest, of course, in the completing of this railway with a view of getting the 
payment of the 5 per cent.? Yes. 

235. I suppose you will say this, that they have a much larger interest in having the railway completed than 
the shareholders ? Yes. 

· Chairman.] I think we, are men of business; we are quite alive to questions of that sort, and it is not. ~ 

necessary to go into them. . 
Mr. Pembroke Stephens suggested that as it was now evident that n good deal must turn upon the 

view which the Tasmanian Government took of the condition of things as regards the Company, it might be 
convenient to postpone the. further cross-examination of this witness until to-morrow. 

The Chairman stated that the Committee did not think that necessary. 

Cross~examined by Mr. Pembroke Stephens. 
236. I will just ask you some questions very shortly ; you know that my client, for whom I appear, is a bond-

holder? Yes, Mr. Campbell. . 
237. And I suppose you will tell me frankly, as you did in the other House, that you have read his petition ? 

Yell. · 
238. And, putting it shortly, the circu'mstances in that are, as far ·as you know, correctly stated with regard to 

the circumstances under which he became a bondholder ? Yes. 
239. In the latter part of last year when the payment of-.interest ceased and the line was embarrassed, Mr. 

Capir,bell .took, did he not, under the circumstances which we have already heard, steps to have the Court of 
Chancery $et in motion? Yes. 

:. 240. And he obtained an order for that purpose? Yes. 
241. After he had given notice in the Court of Chancery of his proceedings, this joint meeting of debenture­

holders and shareholders. that we have heard of was summoned ? Yes. 
, 242. And that meeting, I think, expressed an opinion in favour of not at once winding up compulsorily, but 

endeavouring to see whether some other course could not be adopted? Yes. . 
· 243. In consequence of that was an applieation formally made to Mr. Campbell not to press his proceedings in 

the Court of Chancery, but to allow them to stand over penciing these proceedings? Yes. 
, 244. On the 7th ·of December, 1876, was a letter written by the solicitors to the Company to the solicitor to 

Mr.·Campbell? Yes. · 
.245. In these terms : "If you will assent to the petition of Mr. Campbi:,ll standing c,ver to the petition day next 

after six calendar months from the present time, in order that the Railway Company may apply to Parliament and 
carry out the scheme proposed at the meeting of bondholders to-day, as to which we enclose a copy of the resolution;" 
that is the resolution you have read of the 7th of December? Yes. , 

246. "The Railway Company agree to pay all the petitioner's costs of and incident to the petition already 
incurred, including those of Saturday next, including any costs you may have to pay parties appearing on the 
petition in respect of their appearances on Saturday. If any other petition is already presented, or shall hereafter be 
presented in the meantime, your client is to Le allowed to bring in his petition for hearing immediately, and not to , , 
lose· his priority as first petiiioner, and the arrangement shall in no way prejudice your client's position." Was that 
an official letter _written by the solicitors to the Company to Mr. Campbell's solicitor? Yes. 

·247, That was on the 7th December; now on the 16th of December was there a circular sent out by your board 
referring to the meeting which had been held on the 7th? Yes. 

248. Was this the circular : "The Directors of the Company have, in accordance with the above resolution, 
lodged a Bill in Parliament to give effect to the following objects: (I.) To provide for the reduction of the rate ot' 
interest now payable 011 thr; £650,000 perpetual debenture bonds of the Company by an amount not exceeding 10s. 
per. cent. per a11num. (2.) To authorise the Company to issue new debenture hond~ not exceeding £50,000, and to 
attach to them the payment of such a sum by way ot' preference interest as shall not exceed iu the aggregate the 
amount represented by the reduction of 10s. per cent. on the interest payable on the £650,000 bonds. (3.) To 
empower the holders of the debenture bonds or stock of the Company to vote at meetings of the Company and to 
become directors ?" Yes. 

249. And no other ohjects? No, not mentioned in that circular. 
25U. Now, before the Bill was lodged in Parliament, was it shown to Mr. Campbell for his approval?· To his 

solicitors. · 
. 251. And by them approved ? Yes, I think so. ' · 
252. With cPrtain suggestions and alterations, I think, but by them approved; now upon that footing the Bill 

was in1roduced? Yes. 
253, The Bill as introduced into the other House was, I think, a Bill of six Clauses? Yes. . 
254. Clau~e J was the title Clause, arid Clause 6 the Costs Clause ; nncl tile intermediate Clauses contained· the 

,scheme of the Bill. Now in the Bill as alttred were the whole ot the Clauses, with the exception of Clauses I and 6, 
cut out, and replaced by the Bill now on the table ? Yes. 

\. 
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:: 255. Ji! ow. in the_ original .scheme. ther:e was to. be a meeting of bondholders, to which everything·was to have. 
be,en subnntted; at whtch the nssents,of three-fourths present personally, or by proxy, were_t_o-be given?· Yes. 
Ye.s.256. In the amended Bill everything is to be done by an agreement, and'there need- be no. meeting whatev_er·? ·, 

257. You now. sny there a_re about 100 bonrlholders whom you .have not yourself been able to get at? •1;es. 
; 258. Of course any other private person's opponents would be still less able to get at them 7 Yes; 

259. As regnrds this agreement,· the action. of the bondholders would be e1itire]y. dependent· on th_e informntion­
that.your board might choose to send·thr,m 7 Unless they received, the information from any other bondholder. 

260. You yourself say that there are 100 of them whose names:you cannot get at, there are 400 and odd· whose 
names you can; you could send to them any information, but unless you choose to give us·the names we should 
have no means of sending to them? Except by advertisement. 

· · 261. Any action of the bondholders on the agreement under tp.e mµendecl Bill would be dependent on t~e 
information which they got from you, .is that so? They woulcl .. be enabled to judge of·the thing.for themselves. · 

262. Now I think you have already told my learned friend that a letter was sent to the board with.a request· 
that they would lay it before the bondholc..ler.s 7 Yes. ·· 

263. And they elected not to do that? Because they. had not considered it. 
264. And they ~If.cited.not to do it? Yes. 
265. 'ehey have not done it since? No. 
266. Now, just to take the Bill for a moment, and to look at its contents; take Clause 2; the A&'reement comes 

into that, does it not?- · 
Chairman.J We s~e all this very plainly; it is hardly worth getting it out of the witness. Wb,en we·go 

through the clauses you can call attention to.this. · -
267. Mr. Pcmbroke.Stephens.l Now what. is the total number-of assents that you have got to this pres.e_nt Bill? 

That has already been given. 
268. I know that it.has, but I want it again? Four hundred and ninety-five, I think, now. 
269. Representing what? £448,000. 
2'i0. That is not three-fourths, you know 7 No; and we do not want three-fourths• to the Bill ; we -w1mt 

three-fourths to the agreement. 
271. You have not got at the present mome1it, to this altered Dill, the assents of anything-like three~fourths? 

N~ . 
272. If you had in the other 50,000 bondholders, you have still less? If I add them on, !·should have •three-

foui;tbs. 
273. Does that £448,000 include any portion of this-6 per-cent-7 Yes. 
274. £50,000? No, £4:3,000. 
275. The1·e is only £:32,000 of that actually issued 7 The rest is issued and held as security. 
276. In respect of some advanr.es 7 Yes. 
277. But you have counted it into your assets 7 Yes. 
2i8. Now yo.u. are the secretary, and you are the only person ~horn I shall•probably ]iave the opportunity of 

asking as to the Anglo-Italian Bank represented by Mr. Clements; what are the facts about those shares?·· I under• 
stand that Mr. Clements will.be called; I think you.had better ask him. 

279. But you are the Comuany for this purp,ose; are they part of Messrs. Clark and Punchard's original shares?· 
Cert~inly ; they were issu~d to. Messrs. Clark and Punchard. 

280. At the present moment, the guarantee of the Government is £650,000? Yes. 
281. And the 5 per cent. bonds are .£650,000? Yes. . 
282. Then the 5 per cent. bonds would absorb the whole of what you get from the 'l'asmanian Government, 

leaving nothing for anybody else? Certainly. · 
283. And the whole of that £650,000 is now due; so that as regards the guarantee even at the best, the 

shareholders have no· interest in it-? No, nor would they have under the Bill. 
284. The whole of the £650,000 is now due? Yes. 
285. That being so, would you let me ask you what earthly right the shareholders had, either if you take the 

£650,000 guarnntee, or the £650,000 now due, to interfere in this matter? They have the rights of shareholders. 
286. To screw, I presume, as much as they can out of the bondholders 7 Certainly. 
287. And that is all? That is a question for their own consideration. 
288. '!'hen it comes to this, that this Bill, for which Mr. Campbell has given consideration in the, Court -of 

Chancery, introduced with the written consent of his solicitor, is to be altered by the shareholders, who have no 
interest except .to screw as much as they can. out of the bondholders 7 With all respect 1 think the shareholders have 
an interest. 

289. What is that, as matters stand? Some of them have given consideration for their shares. 
290. You have already told me that the £60,000 is due now? Yes. 
291. Now I ask you what possible interest the shareholders have, as matters stand now-; you know you are not 

able to pay £10,000 nccording to your own statement? With a .yiew ot getting what they cau, I should think. 
292. You do not propose, I think, by this Bill to apply to anybody else, except the bondholders, any restriction • 

as regards liquidation 7 .No. 
293. Then it would be open to this; supposing the restraint is put upon the bondholder that is proposed, it 

would be open to this £ I 0,00l\ in England, or the £15,000 ,in England, to wind up the Company? Unless t4e 
bondholders should make it a stipulation that that right should not come into operation. 

294. How could any stipulation by the bondholders affect the rights of outside creditors? There is the petition• 
on the file, which can remain until the debts o± the Company are paid. . .. . . . 

295. As re()'ards contributions by the bondholders for the purpose of settmg the railway to rights and sat1sfymg 
the Tasmanian °GovPrnnie11t, I do not go into that; but, going a step beyond that, is not your proposal in the BilJ,. 
whether you call it £10,000 or £15,000, that the bondholders should sacrifice their rights for the purpose of paying 
simple contract creditors? Yes, we shall be bound to pay our creditors. 

296. That is the proposal of the Bill? Yes. 
297. And there is no limitation as to the amount further than the total eum of £50,000? No. 
298. And that an alteration made probably at the instance of the shareholders 7 No, certainly not; made, I 

think, at the instance of our own so_licitors. . . . . . . 
299. Will you show me how this Anglo-Italian Bank that Mr. Clements is mterested m appears m the register? 

Yes, I can point it out to you. (It was pointed out.) . . · . 
300. Will you let me ask you this; I see that m that case the number of the transfer is 179; 187 is Mr. 

ClemPnt's; 188, Mr. Cole's; and )Hfl, Mr. Hare's? Yes. 
301. And that comes oddly enough at the very beginning of the book? Yes. . 
302. All the other entries, as far as I have been able.to find out, are consecutive till February of this year ; and 

then on the second page you find Mr. Clements; it takes a jump in the numbers? . I find thut they are on the same 
page as shares origina1ly registered in the name of Sir John Lubbock and Albert Ricardo; and these are transferred 
from Sir John Lubbock and Albert Ricardo to these various persons, and l put them on the same page. 



·37 
_:30'3.-..An'd' /n ·February;' 1877; ju'st before the' meeting ? Ye's. • . . · . . . · 

'. :_ 304: r want you·. to refer mo to ai~ything in•_'the' prospectus upori 'which 'my client to.ok his borirls, which speaks 
loH;he'guarahtee 'as other than'a permanent guarahte·e fo'r 30 years, ·o(see anY:way implying that it.is a guar·antee of 
a co~,ilitic_nal c~~ragter? . 1,'he ,rr·o~1ie?tu~ encl?sed a copy of the contract with the Governi:nen t, frorii which lie could 
gatlier'the·nature of the gnarantee for himself. 

305. But from first to last it is put as interest guaranteed hy the Government of Tasmania under certain Acts 
of Pnrliament, during the construction of the Iiiie, antl'fiir so·yea1;s a'fter the completion and opening? That is the 
fact, I think. 

306. I want to know whether .there was anything ih'thfs whidh gave my client notice that the guarantee was 
.other than a G~vernment· guarant_ee, or of a conditio~al character? Certainly, the contract with the Government 
'·was eiiclosed'in the prospectus, and the j:>rospectus·specially refers to t}:iat. , .. 

307. You refer to the documents, which will·speak for themselves? Yes. 

Re-examined by Mr. Ven11tiies. . 
308. Now, as far as I can understaild, you were aslced whether t)ie ~ondhold~rs had arty means of information 

excepting from the Company, from your directors. I suppose any bon9holde~ who took an interest in the matter 
could look at the Bill in its original form, and look at the Bill in its present form, and draw his own conclusion? 
Yes, certainly. . . . 
• . 309 . .And that was open ~o everybody? Yes, certainly·; every bondholder had a copy, of the Bill. • 

'. _ , .,. 310. I am at .a loss to know what all this stuff about the share register·is; but a share register is a registefof 
the sha11es as they are held at present? Yes. ': 

31 L. And also the transfers _that ha VEJ taken ·place.? Yes. . , . 
312. All these shares were issued originally to Messrs. Clark and- Princhard? All ~i,:'~ept the few shares issuea 

at first, wl1ich were very few. . · 
:.· , ~13. And consequently. a11 the people now on ,the· register must~ either immediately o~ inte;mediately, have got 
them from Messrs. Clark and Punchard? Yes. . . 

314. You do not know whether they got them by purchase, or otherwise? No; I have·no nieans of knowing 
~~- . . . . . . 

315. At any rate they are the actual shareholders, including those trustees, or whoever tLey ,are· who 
:r~present the _.A,nglo-[talian :Bank? Yes.. . . .. . . · . 

3),ti .. Anc~: you would not have refused if they wanted to transfer £4000 or £5000 to nominee~? No. . 
317.' All you- know is that you have received dir-ections to transfer them, and you did transfer them? That is so. 

, . 318. On the 7th _Decembe_r l_ast I think there was a meeting whic:h had been summoned by circular, inviting 
shareholders and bondholders? Yes. . . · 

319. But were there any means of knowing when they came· there which were shal'eholders and which were 
bondholders-? Not in the meeting·itself'. . . . . . . 

320. If there was a vote come_ to by thEJ meeting, have you any means of knowing whether any or riian:(share-
holders coni:urrPd in that ·vote? We could have ascertained it I think. 

32i. But. ,iid you? No, we dicf not ascertain. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
32~. _And the circular for the meeting on t.he 16th of.April wa~ addressed to bondholders alon·e7 Yes; 
323. Consequently under that circular i:101:)ody would reci;iive t\1at ci,rcular.except bon_dhold<frs? No. 
324. And therefore-that wa~, I suppose. it may .be presµmed, a meeting entir.elf of b9ndholders? Yes: 
325. And w h,tt ·was the resolution to which that meeting came?· They approved the Bill as amended; 

. 32~:· U~animouslv, or by a division?. Unanimously. .. . .. . . . , . 
327. That was the meeting to which the solicitors of the Standard Life Insurance C~mpany. wanted a· certain 

letter to read 7 Yes. . . .. . . . . . . . 
328. When did you receive that letter; it was a meeting held on a:.!\'I(;md.ay 7. Yes. 
l!29 .. When did ·_you receive that letter_? Soon after ten o'cloc~ in the II10,ning, 
330. It was not for you to deal with the letter, I suppose, but for the chairman? For the board. 
331.. When _did. you hand it to tl,ie chairman? Some few minutes before l 2; 
332. Twelve being the time of the meeting 7 Yes. 

. 333. ): do not know whether you know whether the chairman read• it or not 7 ·H~ did not read · it, ·to my 
knowledge. . ., 
. 884. It· w11s in the exercise of the chairman?s• discretion, and· not yours, that that· letter 'ivas not read to the 
meetin!!: ? Yes. 

335. I find that in that letter Messrs. Minet Smith, Son, & Harvie say, "If _the principle of allowing some pro­
portion to Lhe sharehoiders, and .we do not oppose' it, be; conceded;• th:e fonit 6f -the proportion ought at least to be 
named in the Bill?" Yes. 

336'.· Tliey concede the p·rfociple tl1at the shareh.olders ar·e to lmve some sha·;.e? Ye8. 
337.:I_ b_elievll. there is some enormous or preposterous counter claim of Messrs; Clark &. Punchar<l's put in, 

is there not 7 Yes. · . :, . . . 
. . . 338 .. ~ow,. supnosing so,me enormous sum, say_ £100,000 .,'l'.ere :reaJly .recovered by Messrs. Clark&· Pu·n·chard, 
that would· make the original Bill just as useless a~ thEJ present Bill,? Yes,. : , ... ,. .. . .· . · 

3_31,). 'l'li~t is to say, there would be no funds' left? Cert~inly not,. if-t.l,iey rec(nerE!d it_in.cash. . . . 
.... 340. Now, in the original Bill, 1Ybic!J.I have h_ere, I see _it is: pro_vid\'!d tl~at .. the .capital to ... b~ raised, mi'm:ely; 

£50,000, or a smaller· sum, ·" shall be applied only m completmg the railway, and the works and stat10ns," and so· on,' 
''. and i.~ dis,·h_ar!!:ing the liabilities of the Company on capital accou.nt ?" Yes, .·· , . . . . . .. 

341. And I think you say that all the liabilities of the Company are. on·c11p1tal .account?· Yes.-
342. Con_sequently outside.creditors woul<l be paid out of this.money? .Yes, . . . . " .. · .. . 
·343_ Can you tell what the estimate of your engineer is for• the ,vorks necessary to place the railway'·in an-- elfi'-~· 

cieut $Late, in a proper condition? . \-Ve do not admit that it is not·in a proper condition, but he recom!hen<li;' an 
expenditure of _from _£1_0,000 to £15,000? Yes. ,.• , . . 

·344, It recommends that, though he says it is already in proper condition? Yes. . , ... _,, . . . . 
345. So. far as T can see, t_he engineer.s of the Tasmanian Gove1:nment _do not gi_ve_apy estillla,te ?, • They rlo'rtot. 
346. And therefore, as for as y'our directors are at present informed; some £10,000 or £15,000 of expenditure 

would enable them to renew the payment of the interest? . Yes. . . 
, . ., ·.· .. [The. Witness witlidre\v. 

Chairman.] The Committee wish me to state to Counsel in the case that: they tsho.ukl pel'haps look:. 1.1pon us 
us ·being able to appreciate printed papers put before us;. ,ye do not-reqµire thep1 .to l:>e· proverl 'al,I; tlie ,way 
through, unless there is some point in actual dispute between the parties ; and then of cour,,e _such. eviden,ce'. 
might l>e tendered ns is neces.•ary. Our time is very valuable, 11,nd .~XC do 1~ot tµ.jnk it_ r;iecessary.that iilatt!?rs in 
those papPrs, not disputrd, shoulcl be proved. The points to which we shall direc,t ~ur :atf!'ntion Sl)ecial,ly ai:e.:. 
these: we·shall wish to see that there i_s in the ~UI acjPqna,t~.p1;0.tec~ion for, th!! b.o.ndJ!olders·;, \\'.C _shall wish to 
see that the inoney proposed to be raised may fairly be relied on as adequate for the necessjties of tl_1e· ca~e, and 
that there is due security for its application, so as to secure the benefits contemplated for the debenture he,lders. 
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.Also we should like to be satisfied that there is adequate protection for the Colonial Government, if it should 
be shown that such protection is necessary. .As to that we will express no opinion till we have heard tho 
evidence of Sir Penrose J ulyan. If Counsel will limit themsel vcs to the necessary facts to be proved, and tclk!) 
it for granted that we understand the merits of the case, it will save our time. 

· [Adjourned to To-morrow, at Twelve o'clock. 

THURSDAY, 21ST JUNE, 1877. 

Sir Mordaunt Wells asked that the Promoters should be required to produce a statement showing the debt<! 
due by the Company in England and in Tasmania. 

Mr. Venables stated that Mr. Davison could give the information. 
The Chairman stated that Mr. Davison might be re-called for that purpose. 
The Chairman inquired whether Counsel ttppeared for Sir Penrose Julyan. 
Mr. Michael stated that he appeared as his Counsel. 
Messrs. Bircham appeared as Agents. 

Mr·. James Borwick Davison, re-called; and further examined by Mr. Venables. 
347. Can you give the particulars of the debt in England? Debts in London, the Credit Foncier of England, 

:£3500; Grant Brothers, £3709; law charges unpaid, £594: directors' fees unpaid, £16u0; and other small sums 
are included in that. · • 

348. What is the first item which you gave; will you explain that? It was money advanced by the Credit 
Foncier on security of 6 per cent, debenture stock. . · 

349. How much 6 per cent. debenture stock in security? Double the amount. . · 
350. And what was this money borrowed for? Originally for the purpose of paying off Brown, Marshall, ~ 

Compnny, the carriage builders, and other purposes. ' 
35 l. What had the debt originally been incurred for? Rolling stock. 
352. Chairman.] Did not the contractor~ find rolling stock? Yes, but we sent out other rolling stock 

.afterwards, additional. · 
353. Mr. Venables.] And what was the debt to Grant Brothers for; is that borrowed money? Borrowed 

money on balance; the balance of account clue to them ; they had lent us more money than this; we have paid them 
some off. 

354. What was that money borrowed for? The first amount was borrowed to meet the quarter's interest on the 
debentures. · 

355 . .And some of that you say of the original loan has been paid off? Yes. 
356. What is your total of small items? £1600 for directors' fees, &c. 
357. Chairman. 7 What is the total of these? £9500 ; I have put it down in round figures. 
358. Mr. Venab1es.J Will you go now to the Tasmanian debt, please? Balance due to bankers, £7100. ' 
359. Is that to a Tasmanian bank? Yes, the Commercial Bank of Tasmania. Then unpaid accounts---
360. What ·kind of accounts are those ? I presume they are stores, and thing, ot that sort in TaRmania, £700. 

That is the whole of the Company's debts irrespective of any amount due to the Government. 
Chairman.] I presume, Mr. Venables, you wish· to_ have made up the item that was gi_ven us yesterday, 

the net amount. . . 
361. Mr. Venables (to the Witness).] Hpw do you make out the £15,800? That was including £8000 advanced 

from the Government. 
362. Does that make the whole? That does ·make the whole. 
363. £8000 advanced by the Government, you say? Yes. 
364. What is the debt to the bank for; I suppose that is overdrawing your account? Overdrawing the 

account. 
365. For what purposes do you know was the account overdrawn? That is represented by the loss on working, 

principally during last year. 
366. That therefore would not be debt on account of capital if it was to make good loss on working? Strictly 

speaking, not. · · 
367. And you have got the total, I think, £15,800; just add up the two amounts, the English and Tasmanian? 

£25,300. 

Further cross-examined by Sir Mordaunt Wells. 
. 368. To what date is that? That is to the 31st of December last in Tasmania ; they have not materially altered 

smce. 
369. Can you undertake to state to the Committee that since that time you have not been furnished with other 

claims? Yes, I can. 
. 370. What did you mean by saying "not materially altered?" There is a small question of interest perhaps on 

the bankers' balance in Tasmania, and things of that sort, which may alter the exact figures. · 
371. Of course you cannot pledge your word to this sum of £15,000 odd in Tasmania being correct· it may be 

more? I should say it °is more likely to be less, because the working of the lino during this year has ieft a little 
profit. · 

372. Have you got the exact return from Tasmania of the debts owing; have you got the returns from your· 
agent since the 31st of December? No, I have not. . 

. 373. Now in reference to the debts in England, do you mean to represent that the sum of £9500 is all that is 
owmg? Yes, · 

. 374. Is there no other money in re8pect of borrowed money claims that have been made? No. 
375. Is all the borrowed money then borrowed upon the credit, as it were, of the uuissued shares? Not shares 1 · 

debenture stock. 
376. But money was lent on shares which had not been issued in the ordinary way, was it not? No. 
377. Do I understand you to say that there were no shares issued in respect of money advanced? No, certainly. 

not. 
378. No shares at all 1 No shares. 
379. Deposited as security ? No. 
380. Or no rights to be exercfoed over these shares? The unissued share capital is free ; no money has been 

borrowed upon it. · 
381. I understood you to say that certain unissued shares had been delivered over to Mr. Grant? I think you 

must have misunderstood me. 
Chairman.] What the witness said was that a portion of the 6 per cent. debenture stock had been issued 

to Mr. Grant. 

" 
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· 382. Sir Mordaunt Wells.] And that is the debenture stock you referred to when you spoke of borrowing the 

money to pay interest on that debenture stock? Yes. 
383-4. Not, of course, in respect of the other debenture stock---

Mr. Venables.] Is it, oris it not. . , 
Witness.] It is the 5 per cent. debenture stock ; we had to pay the interest on the 5 per cent. debenture 

stock, and we borrowed the money on the security of some of the 6 per cent. debenture stock unissued. 1 
385. Mr. Venables.] Was it to pay interest exclusively on the 6 per cent.? Exclusively on the 5 per cent. bonds. 
386. Sir Mordaunt Wells.J I believe the ordinary hondholders have not received any interest whatever since 

. March 1876; have they ? Since April 1876. 
·. 387. They have.not receiv£-d a farthing since April 1876? No. 

388. What did you mean by saying that a certain sum of money had been borrowed originally for the pu~pose 
of paying o:ff certain debts; was it used for that purpose, or for some other purpose? I do not quite understand you. 

389. You said, in answer to my learned friend, that a certain sum was originally borrowed for the purpose· of 
paying o:ff a particular debt. 

Mr. Venables.] The witn.ess said that the actual loan was made to pay off another loan. 
390. Sir Mordaunt Wells.] What I merely want to ask is this: as to that money which was borrowed, as you 

say, originally, for a particular purpose, was that appropriated to that purpose? Certainly. 
391. Mr . .Arthur Mills.] I think yon said about the debts in Tasmania, there was £7500 due to the bankers there? 

Yes. 
392, You said that was for loss in working? I said it was represented by that principally. 
393. For that year?· For last year. 
394. Chairman.] About the debts in England, you say there are £1600 for directors' fees, do you treat that as a 

·capital charge; you said that the whole was on capital account? The accounts for last year are not properly made 
up yet, in consequence of the incomplete accounts from Tasmania; therefore they are not posted up; they are an 
outstanding account. 

· 395. Could a claim for directors' fees be a capital charge under any circumstances? I do not think this charge 
is a capital charge, because it would go mto the working. 

396. Then we may treat that item as not part of the capital charge? Not part of the capital charge. 
397. Mr. Bruce.) There is a sum of £700 for stores; those are stores employed in working the line? Yes. 
398. Those would be revenue charge also ? That would be a revenue charge also. 

Sir Mordaunt Wells. J The witness stated yesterday that there was a set-off •in respect of interest due from 
the Tasmanian Government. I should like to have that made clear. 

Chairman.] I think we understand it. 

Further cross-examined by Mr. Pembroke Stephens. , 
399. I should like to ask how you arrive at that figure of £8000 as advanced from the Government: how do 

you calculate that? The Government of Tasmania have made advances to the company, up to the 31st of December, 
in various amounts, ·amounting to £8000 in the whole. 
' 400. Did you take into account, or did you reject, any question of interest, or guarantee from the Government, 
in making up that amount of £8000? No, that is distinct from the interest. · · 

·· 401. Quite distinct? Quite distinct from the interest; they have paid us nothing on account of the interest. 
402. You now make the total statement £25,300? Yes. 
403: That is the present amount, irrespective, I presume, of anything that mii;ht have to he paid in the future to 

meet suggestions by the Tasmanian Government? Yes. 
404. Now .when this Bill was elsewhere, was not the suggestion that the £10,000 would cover everything except 

future expenditure? Yes; that was for this reason, that these debts include a loss on working which must be 
·carried forward. 

405. I thought you told me that that amount was being diminished by recent occurrences? So it is this year. 
406. This is 21st June; on 23rd April, only two months back, was not the total figure given, when this Bill 

was before the House of Lords, not £25,300 but £10,000? Yes. . 
·- Sir Henry Holland,l It is so stated in the circular of the 10th of April. 

407. Mr. Pembroke Stephens.] Do not you remember in the other House, when we were questioning as to the 
amount of £50,000,.it was stated, either by you, or by your chairman, that the whole of that sum would not b·e 
required, but a certain sum would be required to put the line in order, and £10,000 to cover existing debts? Yes. 

408. Now you say that the present amount required is £25,300? Yes. · 
·' ..409; Now how has that difference been ascertained in the meantime? By the debts in Tasmania. 

410. Now would this appear upon any balance-sheet of the Company, or accounts, or anything of that sort'? Of 
course it will have to. · 

411. Have you got the last balance-sheet? No, lt is not· made up yet. 
412. Have you got the one before?. Yes. 
413. Have you got the accounts ofthecompany? Yes. 
414. Perhaps you will kindly put them in, and they will speak for themselves. 

Mr. Yeuables.} What do·you want put in? · 
. 415. Mr. Pembroke Stephens. J The balance sheets and accounts of the company. (To the Witness,) Does not 
the company publish half'..yearly accounts? Yearly; 
· · 416. When does that come down to (pointing to a book produced by the Witness)? December 1875. 

417. Is 1876not yet made out? Not completely. 
418. What time do you usnally make it out? '!'hey are in the course of being made up now. 

· 419. In the ordinary way, I mean? In the ordinary way we ought to have made them up some time in May or 
June. 

420. And the shareholdP.rs ought to have had them in their hands for some time? If we had had complete 
accounts from Tasmania they would. · 

421. Now, let me ask you this question : we have got now from you a total of £25,300; that is, irrespective of 
future expenditure; now, besides that, are we to understand that there are the claims which you spoke of yesterday 
in answer to my learned friend's questions, 128 and 129: "What is the claim of the contractors aga~nst the company? 
A. Something very large ; I cannot tell you ; the solicitor will give you that?" Yes. 
· 422. And that has to be added on? Yes. 

423. And how is that to be met 7 
Chairman.] We have had that already. 

Further re-examined by Mr. Venables. 
424. I think I understood you to say that some of this account, some or the whole of this account in Tasmania,; 

would be kept open, and I suppose might be ultimately worked off? Yes. 
425. Consequently, although the debt in England is a definite amount :which must be paid in some way or other, 

the-other is an operi account which may or may ~?t extinguish itself? Quite so.. · , 
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. 4,26. And I suppose that it .would not. be .either_ ·proper .or prudent to pay that off in· a lump sum. as -long as there 
:is a ch·nnce of its extinguishing itse1f gradual!~,? I do not thi_nk, it ,yould be necessary to do so. . . _ · , 

42i. You say that now, just at this par_tjcular .time,.there is a small profit arisi11g from the line? Yes. 
428. And if that lasts or increases of course it will be applicable to turn the, balance, with your bankers and 

otberw_ise in your favour? I should say so. 
:..· 429. Chairman,] Only ifit.exceeds the5 per cent.,guarantee? Ithinkit isa question of account with the 

Government. 
· . 430 ... But you can.not apply anvthing- .to. the .deficiency from revenue to· -meet · the current -working expenses, 

'·unless · you have a surplus above th~ 5 p·er cent. guarantee, in future; if you- have a- deficiency upon pnst years 
between working expenses and the receipts of the linr,.-an_d you run up a debt in comequence, you cannot extinguish 
that debt until youi· receipts exceed the 5 per .cent.,Government guaranteil? J thiuk as soon as the amount sur­

. p·ass_e~ the working expenses; because the amount.is carried forward from.quarter to quarter; we do not settle ;the 
·'Government account definitely 'from quarter to quarter, but it is -car-ried on. 
· · Mr. Venables. 1 · I do not know whether Mr. Michael wishes to cross-examine this witness. 

Mr. Michael.] No. 
Mr. Venables,] . Then I presume you will:not wish to have him re-called afterwards? 
Mr. Michael.] No. · 

[The Witness withdrew. 
Mr. George Menzies Clements, sworn; Examined by Mr. Venables. 

431. Are you a-Solicitor practising at Gresham House, Old Broad-street 1 I am. 
432. Will you tell me how you first became connected with this matter? I am solicitor for the Anglo-Italian 

c:Bank, which holds £75,000 of the shares. When they received notice of the Wbarncliffe meeting, thC'y referred the 
• Bill-ti;i me to look at. I reported that it was unsatisfactory, as it then stood, and they transferred £5000 worth of 
shares into my name, and directed me to attend-the meeting. 

433. And I think they at the same time transf'nrell certain sums into the names of other persons 1 Yes, into the 
:,name of.Mr. H11ll, one of the directors, and Mr. Coles, the secretary. 

434. And I suppose you and the other gentlemen are merely trustees? Yes. 
435_. If' there were any dividend on them it would not be your8, but would go to· the Anglo-Italian Bank? 

Certainly. It.was not cc,nvenient for Sir John Lubbuck'to come himself; that was the real reason. 
436. The object of transferring those shares into your name was to enable you to attend the meeting, and take 

._a par-t- in it? Yes, :'lCJ doubt. 
437. This \Vas a meeting regularly summoned, with the proper forms under the Wharncliffe Clause? A com­

mon Wharucliffe meeting. 
438. It was attended, I suppose, by. other shareholders besides the representatives of the Bank? Yes, certainly; 

there were about 25 present. 
439.. Not composed exclusively of your bank? No, certainly not. 

. 440. I believe yon then stated your objection to the scheme then embodied in the Bill? I stated that tlie Bill, 
· as it then stood, was hopelessly incomplete, and would be found not to work, and moved for the appointment of a 
. ce>m_mir.tee to consider it, A committee was appointed, and Mr. Hare, one of the directors of the Anglo-Italian 
Bunk, was appointed Chairman; and under the direction of that .commi1tee I, in conjunction with the solicitors for 
tb() company, had the Bill prep11red in the form in which the House of Lords passed it. · 

441. As I understand it, your only clients as solicitor are the Anglo-Italian Bank; but were you appointed also 
. to act. as ,the adviser of this committee of' shareholders? 'Yes. · 

442. Representing the shareholders in general? Representing the shareholder, in general. 
, 443. I think you passed over one step; before the c0mmittee was appointed I suppose there must have been a vote 
-9n the original question whether the Bill should be approved? ·No; I moved by way of amendment that the com­

mittee should be appointed, and that was carried; and that superseded the original question. 
444 .. Was the meeting adjourned? It was. _ 

. 4.45. ,When was it adjourned to? About a fortnight after. At that adjourned meeting the committee presented 
the Bill as they would recommend it, .which is the Bill in its present form, and the· general meeting unanimc,usly 
passed it. · · 

446. I think in this Company the preference shareholders, have votes as well as the ordinary shareholders, buve 
. ~hey not-? They have. 

447, Do. your clients hold both? I believe only preference shares . 
. 448. You will my that they are either principally or· entirely preference shares? Yes, either principally or 

entirely preference shares; 
. 440, The interest which you particularly represent is chiefly or entirely preference shares? Yes, 
450. And the Bill in its altered form was approved by this adjourned meeting? It was so. 
451. And that is the Bill which is now before the committee? It is so. 
452. I suppose all proper circulars must have been sent to the shareholders; they were summoned regularly to 

the Wharncliffe meeting, and then it was adjourrnsd? I suppose so; but that was not my lmsiness, that was the 
busine,s of the Board ; we got our notices and we attended. 

463. But since this Bill has been altered, have you had any objection to it raised by any shareholder of any 
kind,?·. Certainly not; all the shareholders are unanimous about it, I believe. • 

45<1. Then, as far as you know, is this Bill unanimously supported by those preference and ordinary share­
holders who have taken any 1part in the matter at all'? Certainly. 

455. And nobody has opposed ? None of the shareholders. 
456. Therefore-as to any question which may arise as between preference and ordinary sharc>holders, they are 

col)tent with. tlw terms-of the Bill- as it stands? Certainly. I have never heard the slightest objection against the 
Bill as it now stands on the part of any shareholders. . 
. . _45i·. And supposing· the question did arise and tlie Company had to net, which would be the majority, the pre­

ference or t.he ordinary shareholders? I belie.ve the preference shareholders; but I should like the secret11ry of the , 
·,Company. t.o. rny how• that is; I am almost certain it is so, but I am not quite certain. 

45H .. The secretary rnys £240,000 preference shares, and £145,000 ordinary shares? I believe it is so. 
_ . 4ii9._·'l'hc reas~ns whi_ch you gave _for your objections to the_ Bill as it ,~as originally _de~osit~d are tho~e, I ~up-

. pose, which you snll c0t1s1der reasons m favour of the present Bill? Certamly. My obJect1ons are these, put m a 
short compass: Fir,t, it gave the bondholders votes absolutely, so that two inc,mveniences, almost fatal, would 
follow. In the fir"t place, even if they gave us nothing in return, they would still keep their votPs; as the Bill stood 
tlw nrrnug,·m•int was to be made by an agreement between the Company and the bondholders; but if the bond­
holders wne to have votes given them in the first instance, they are so numc>rous that they would form the Company, 
nnd, therefore, they wonld be on both side~ of the question; they might vote for themselves as bondholders and for 
th11 Company by reason of their votes. Then the second objection, and the still more-fatal objection, was that there 
,vas n?t rli~ ~lighte,t provi~ion made to muke the Company safo against being wound up at any moment; because as. 
the B1,L,mgmally stoocl there were about three-quarters of u million of debts overdue or demandable, and anybody 
li.mong them having £50 owing to him could wind up the Company. · 
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',i;4tio.,·Tliere was•no;suspense clause? 'Not tlie slightest: "ffwas hop~less .. as·it.sfood. 
· ~61'. ·Do,you-think that under•tliose·cpn'ditions.it'would'.bave been possible to' borrow _tlie money on tlie ter~s··, 

proposed\ 'People have Jent money on so .inany foolish' thin'gs that I do not'like ~o say· anything is impossible; but 
nobody ·who· knew what he:waS" a bout'·wou'ld' have lent the money under those conaitions. . . . . , 

462_. By tho Bill as now framed there would be for·a certain time a security against the Cori:lpany.'being wound" 
up•?:· 'llhe,0,,mpany would' be,practfoally. safe until tlie·end of 1878! . . . . . . . ·.. .. 

, 463. That·iil'to 0say;_ against outs}de creditors it would be safe;by b~ing:,fo ~ position~to pa)'.' their debts?, Yes, ... 
, 464; And as•to tbe·mtPrest on debentures, they are ·suspended, ·or funded, for a certam period? Yes, suspended; 

for _such a timP, not longer tha_n till the end of the next year, as the bondholders choose to agree to. . ... 
465. Is it• not· your·'jurlgment that' if the 'Bill' is passed as framed there would. be a. reasonable probability or 

ccrfaihty·of getting t.he money·? My own clients, the· Anglo-Italian Bank; have promised that if 'tlie Bill does -p~ss 
as it stands they will find part of it; and I have no reasonable. doubt that the remainder will be found without 
serious·difficu'lty. 

_466. Would they have found a:ny part of it if the original Bill had been passed? Certainly not. . 
• 4fi7, I think there•was·no difference in the negotiations which· took place between ·you and those who represent 

tbe·d•issentii>nt·bondliolders, that iii case·ofa sale the shareholders·woulii'be entitled to a certain proportion, though 
perhaps a small proportion of the assets? Everybo!iY _agreed to. that; The way 'it came about was. this:· the 
bondholders demanded (and I am·not prepared· to say rt was.altogether· an uureasonaj:Jle demand) that ,they should 
have the-control of the··Company handed ove~-to them by having votes given to them. It was objected against. 
that, that as they would be flntire masters of the Company they might sell the railway for what they liked, their 
own debt or less, and ~eave the sbareholders·without·a,pem1y; _One pl'Oposal_I made· to prevept that was, that the 
shareliolilers should have a voto on. the price at which the sale should take place. It' was objected to that, that. it­
wo·uld create a double government, which would lead to a dead ... lock; and it was pi•oposed by way of meeting the. 
difficulty, that the bondholders and the shareholders sbou_ld have a common interest· given to them· by the 
bowlliolders consenting·to allow·some small fragment of the sale· proceeds t,o go to the shareholders as the price 
for, having the·unusual step taken· of handing over the entire control of the Company to them. . 

468. Now, in a letter which Sir Mordaunt Wells· yesterday expressed the intention of reading, on having read- to 
the, Committee from Messrs. Minet and Smith, the solicitors to the Petitio~er, one statement is,." If the principle 
of allowing some proportion to the shareholders, and we do not oppose it; be conceded,"' then they are of opinion 
that the limit of the proportion ought to _be expressed in the· Bill'; but they say -here,." WA do 'not oppose the 
priiiciple-of.allo,iring some r,roportion·t_o the shareholders." I brlieve they hav~ been quite consistent in that? , [ 
must do ·my·frierids the justice to· say that they have always· admitted the perfect reasonableness of that proposal; 
and the proportion has, though. not named in the Bill, .been repeatedly mentioned, and everybody to whom· I have 
spoken has been ·.satE,fied with the proportion. . . . 

· 469: Tl.'re• BiWis virtually, at least th'e prir1cipal part of the Bill is virtually, your drafting, is _it not? It is my 
suggestion mainly. It was originnlly drawn by me and then revised by_ my;'f'riends, the solicitors for the Company, 
and'settled by some learned ·counsel, whose name I forget; out it is practically my scheme. . 

4'70. And 'you ·have framed the most operative parts of the Bill so as to make it entirely permissive, I believe?· 
Absolutely so. . . · . 

. :471, Tha.t•is to say, tl:ie only compulsory thing is that one-fourtli should he bound by three-fourths? That is' 
all .. One -lcnows tha:t' in these cases one never can- get the·consent of everybody; some people are away, and there are -
always some people who unreasonably object .. 

472. It would be quite impracticable to do it by .. consent of all'? Quite. . . 
473.' That·being compulsory, what follows is permissive; it is· only the giving a power to the bondholders and­

shareb:ol,lers to·agree,· but not compelling them to agree to anythi.irg? The scheme of' the Bill is this: concessions 
have·to be made·on ·one side-by the' bondholders, on the other side by the shareholders; thr parties will meet: by 
their own representatives·;· t.hey will 'agri,e-upon what they do agree to;· each party ,will then, do the acts on their 
part to do the thing, and the thing will be completed; and what each party does will be conditional upon the other 
party doing what·th'e other par_ty has to concede. . . ' . , 

- 47'4. Bcforn these powers under Section 2 are .exercised, ·some agreement "'ould be drawn up embracing all ·the 
details which rither. party thought it worth while to insist upon? Yes; and• that must from· its nature be a very 
long·and complicated agreement.. . . . 

475. You propose, I see, that·the evi'dence of'the agreement sh'ould be the signatures of'tbe shareholders or 
bondholders? '·Yes; I put that in- because ot a ·difficulty which I expected from an objection· which Lord. Redesdale 
was supposed to be making; that is, that we might have a bole-and-corner meeting w/th only a· few persons 
present an.cl binc.l. the reEt; so I said, we will have the signatures of three-four.ths of the whole of the bond.J:iolders. 

476. Noihingcan.be done till they have given·their consent? Three-fourths of the amount of the whc>Je,of the 
bondholders. . 

·· 477; There would .. be a more or less complicated negociation? Agreement rather; I would not say that the 
negociation would be comp_licated,' . , . . . . . . , 

'. 478, The a~reemPnt · would specify· all the pomts upon· whwh the parties ultimately could come to an. 
understancling,.and unless they could come to an understanding .nothing would be done at all? Yes, certainly; we 
sholi.ld·be just ,vhere·we should be it this Bill 'were not passed. . 

_479. But they having come to such an unc!Prstanding., will they not have all the security which they could have 
if the ·provisions of· such' an ag1:eement were directly enacted? I think' so. I prepared -in February last and 
circulated.a scheme eri1bod)•ing the whole of the final arrangements, and if that scheme be taken the bondholders 
will' be,over ·a11d· over again 11rotected. 

·480. What is that that· you· say · you ·circulated?' It was· circulated among a few people; it was a short 
scheme;·which was put into the. House of·L'ords, I tl,irik. . 

481. Nobody is bounrl by that? ·No, ·'it is my own proposal. 
'482; Now one !)art which is not permi~sive, although it is in a certain sense permissive, is "1'.be Company may 

from·time to timP, J;iy special ·resolutions given to the holders of all or any of the class of debentures votes?" That 
is just.like the other.; power is given by. Clause 2 to a majority of bondholders to bind the minority to the concession 
wbich:the bondhohlers have to muke: similafly by the 1!,st clause, or the last clause but one, power is given to the 
Com·pany·to bind, the rest ·to the concessions they are to make, and each party wiU make his .concession in the form 
previ<fosly·urranged upoII, conditional .upon the other party making his concessions. 

483. ·Consequently, until'the power~ given by ·this '.,;lause 5 are exercised by the Company in a manner 
satisfactory to the bondholdders, thA bondholdn·s i:ieed not agrn~ to anything? And won't agree to anything; .they 
are like the. two··halves of a paif·of scissors, when they are together they will cut the knot. 

484: ,If the bomllwlders will insist upon votes;·they "·ill' not consent.·to anything until those votes are given? 
The only:agreement we shall prop0se to the bonclhoUlcrs .will be this, that upon the votes being given the concession 
oftbe bondholcle~s ~hall'take.place. . 

485-. Sir. Henry Holland;).· Supposing the Company did by special resolution -under· Section' 5, give a certain 
numb.er of-votes to thd debentur11 holde'rs,.the debenture holders having made this agreement bindinl,! three-fourths, 

. do you consider the Company after-· that may alter the votes of the debenture holders, because it is ". the Company 
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from time to come?" This is how I should propose to do it, There woultl be an agreement which by its first clause 
should say that it should not take effect until the resolutions proposed in the schedules were passed, and should then 
bind the Company by way of covenant not to alter these resolutions; and further, in the resolutions themselvea 
there should be contained a clause which should so regulate the voting that they should not be touched or altered 
wjthout the bondholders' consent. It_ would be absolutely complete. 

·. 486. Mr. Venables.] The contingency of a sale of all or any part of the railway, or other property, is con­
sidered? Yes. I ought to mention the Bill does not in the least interfere with the priority of the debenture holders, 
e~cept in the event of a sale. If the railway is not sold there will be no power of_ disturbing the present priority in 

• the least degrPe. · 
487. But if it is, it becomes necessary to provide for the distribution of the assets? Yes, to secure the small 

crumb to the shareholders which they get at the price of surrendering the control of the railway to the debenture 
holders. 

488. The principle that they should have something is admitted? We have never heard any objection to the 
amount; everybody feels it is vny moderate. 

489. Whatever the amount is, this comes within the same category with all the rest, to the effect that the 
debenture holders need agree to nothing connected with it; that they have control over it, and they need not agree 
to'divide it in any particular way? Certainly not. 

· 490. Therefore their consent must be obtained before any kind of division can take place? Certainly. 
491. I see the proceeds are to be divided among the holders of debentures, or debenture stocks? They, of course, 

must be paid in full. 
· 492. You could not raise the money unless you guaranteed their payment in full? No. 
· 493. Then come the holders of the suspended coupons? The suspended or funded interest; we propose to pay 

them in full ; we always proposed that it should be worked out in this way; it has never been laid before the 
debenture holders at all, but everybody knows what we mean to do. 

494. The debenture holders will be maaters of what you mean to do? We shall not ask of them anything more. 
495. That is the extent of your demands, but it is not necessarily the extent of their concessions; they may, if 

they like, refuse? They could not refuse this, because it is payment in full. 
·· 496. That is to say, you woulrl propose to pay it in full? We proposed it four months ago. 

497. And the persons " entitled to interest in the 6 per cent.?" It ought to be "interest on the 6 per cent.;" 
it will be desirable to amend that. That is suspended interest; that must be paitl in full. 

· 498. What would remain would be divided? That goes to the next point, that is, those four last lines of Section 
D really contain the whole that is material; those are the lines by which the shareholders are to get the morsel that 
is to be left to them. · 

· 499. And what would remain to be determined would be the proportion in which the shareholders and the 
different classes of debenture holders are to participate, and over that the· debenture holders through their three­
fourths would have an absolute power of determining_? Or course. 

,, 500. You admit you would not be entitled to ask a very large share? Oh, dear no, the amount we sl1ould get 
would be very small, the figures proposed are very well known; it is 78 per cent.; the debenture holders must have 
the-lion's share. 

501. Now look at Clause 4; you have already said that no shareholder, preference or ordinary, dissents from 
this Bill? So far as I kno"', or have ever heard, or have any reason to believe, the shareholders are absolutely 
unanimous about the Bill. 

502. '' The Company'' means preference and ordinary shareholders? Of course. 
503. Of course it would be necessary in the scheme or somewhere else to exclude from voting on those particular 

questio11s in which they are not interested the debenture holders who might have votes? Certainly; and Clause 5 
enables that to be done; we should take care to provide in the resolutions for voting, that when a question came up 
in which the debenture holders had no possible interest, as, for example the division of the surplus utter they were 
done with, the shareholders alone should vote. 

·. 504. Therefore, for the pl:ll·poses of this sbction, "the Company" may be taken as meaning the present 
Company, of whom we find from the secretary that the pr~f'erence shareholders have a considerablemajority? Yes. 

· 505. 'l'herefore they would be able to protect their property? Yes. · 
506. In short, it would simply mean this, that the majority of the shareholders should decide how should it be 

divided ? Certainly, but that would be a mere family arrangement between the shareholders. 
· 507. I think I may say the alternative of this or some similar arrangement would be that the Company should 

be wound up? I see no other alternative. 
· 508. The sha1•pholders have absolute control of the Bill? At present. 

509. And you say the ,lmrehoiders will consent to a permissive Bill, but will not consent to the Bill as originally 
deposited? Speaking on behHlf of the shareholders, I do not like to Hpellk in any way which implies an unreasonable 
opposition to anything, but. as far as I am able to see, a!ld I ham-thought over it for several months, I do not see 
any· 0ther plan that would be safe for anybody, and certainly not safe for the shareholclers. . 

51 0. The result will be, necessarily, that the concern will come to be wound up? I am afraid there is nothing 
else for it. 

· 511. The debenture holders as you have already said, and as is obviously the case, have what you call the lion's, 
share .,f the property? Certainly. 

512. Could it be for their interest as a body, or for any of the bondholders separately, that the thing should 
come into liquidation? Distinctly not, and for this very palpable reason: if this Bill passes, and we raise our 
£50,000, clear off our small outstanding debts, and put the railway in n satisfactory position, Sir Penrose Julyan 
will have to buy this railway, at a fair price, and then the debenture hold,.rs will .get a very handsome return on 
their bonds. On the other hand, if the Company is brokeu up, and goes to pieces, he may buy it at a breaking up 
price, and that is absolnte ruin to the shareholders, and an renllrmous uisnster to the bondholders. 

513. I do not know whether you have had occa,ion in the course of these proceedings to consider the pretext or 
supposed reason on which the Tasmanian Government has refused to pny 1his money? I do not like to use the word 
"pretex1," but I have had occasion to consider their refusal a great many times. 

514. As far as I can find, the only clause in the contract which bears upon this is Clause 6: "No sum shall be 
pa~•able for guaranteed interest for any period during which the Company do not continue to maintain and work the 
said ·line of railway in an efficient manner, so as to afford all-sufficient and constant accommodation, and due -
facili1iPs for the passe11ger and goods trnffic on every portion of the line?" That is the only clause so far as I can 
read; this contract under which the Tasmanian Government have any riid1t. 

515, There does not seem to be any clause by which they have a right to object to the construction of a line, or 
anything of the kind? They have a right to object to the construction. and to say that we have not done what we 
ought to have done, 11nd compel us to do it; but they have no rigl,t to ,,mspend their guarantee for anything but a 
failure to maintain and work the line. So far as I know, the objection of the Government turned absolute!~· upon 
points of constl"Uction, which do not give them a ,hadow ot a ground to stop the guarantee interest, although it may 
give them grounds fo1· suci11g us for damages. We coutend, and I believe we can absolutely prove beyond all manner 
of doubt, that we have worked it in accordance with that Section 6, and that the only ground of complaint which 
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the Government has, if any, relate to thA other parts of the contract, which although they may give grounds fo1'.,a~ 
action agamst us, give no grounds for a sui>plinsion of interest. 
: '516. Mr, Herschell:l I have rea,l the correspondence, and their position comes to this: certain parts of the line 

were in a ,langerous conditioh, and they did not thiuk it was safe for' the pa~s1mger traffic. I gather from the corre-. 
spondence that their intention was, if portions of tlie line werr not sufe for passenger traffic, it could nut he :-aid that. 
they had so maintained and worked the line as to afford all sufficient facilitiPs? That shows that they felt the pinch, 

, of_what I am saying; they have to put their objection in some form thatlooks like an interruption of the service. 

Cross-examined by Sir Mordaunt Wells . 
. 517. You r.onsidered, did you not, up to a very recent period, that the whole of the outside debts of the Company 

amounted to £10,0007 I did not so consider it at all. · 
518. You are asked, "How will they be secured against outside creditors 7" and you reply, "In a simple way:. 

at the present time the outside creditors ri,present, I uelieve, in round number~, £10,000." This is a question put to 
you in the House of Lords? We were nlways speaking of London debts; that answer referred to the London debts. 

519. I want to know why you say it referred to the London debts 7 Becau.se it was a question discussed at the-
meetings over and over again. · . · 

520. I nm not speaking about what was said at the meeting; I am asking in reference to your evidence, when. 
you stated £ I 0,000 to be the amount of the outside debt; would not the debt in Tasmania be just as much an outside 
debt as the debt in England 7 Certainly, but that is not what is going to Le paid. 
· 521. If you will read Que~tion 324: " If the bondholders agree to find 1he coupons for a considerable time the 

Compnny would be sernred against the winding up of the debenture holders 7. A. Yes. Q. How will they be. 
secured against the outside creditors? A. In a simple way; at the present moment, I believe, the outside creditors 

5· in ronnd numbers represent £10,000." Would not the outside creditors in· Tasmania be just as dangerous as the 
credi10rs in England 7 No. .. 

· 5~2. Why uot? Because they· are the hankers of the Company and are on perfectly good terms with them, and 
there 1s not the slightest need to pay the debt at the present moment, although there would be plenty of money to .. 
pay it with. ·we had the London debts, which nre really the urgent debts, in our mind. 

523. "And their debts are incurred, practically, in the working of the railway;" does not that relate to 
Tasmania? It does not relate to it, although it would include it. I had not got in my mind the Tasmanian debts, as 
we none of us bad. 

524. But I read your own words; in answer to my question, you said: "I was only referring to the English 
debts 7" I repeat it. · 

525. Th~n I call your attention to those words: "And their debts are incurred, practically, in the working of' 
the railway;'' does not that relate to Ta,mania 7 ·1 can give no further explanation: If it was an inadvertent­
statement, and if I were not as logically and radically accurate in framing my sentences as I ought to h .. ve been I 
am sorry for it, but the £ I 0,000 means London dP.IJts. . 

526. I am not talking ubout your logic; I ask you when 1bat question was put to you, and you made a. 
representation that the outside debt was £10,000, and you referred to the debt being incurred in Tasmania? I did 
not indeed. · 

527. In the working of the railway? That was incurred by borrowing money in England. 
5:28. Do you mean to say that those dehts in England have reference to the practical working of the railway? 

Yes; they were borrowed, a large part ot them, to pay for rolling stnck, nnd the other part for- interest on the 
debentures. I am not concern!-<l for the Company ; I only speak of their debts by hearsay. When I speak of matters . 
which I know, I try to speak accurately, Lut when I speak of this as £10,000 I speak of it as an outsider; und I .. 
repeat again, I had in my mind, as I always have in my mind, those dcuts which are urgent and pressing; they are . 
the Lomlon debts; they are about £10,000. 

52\l. You knew, did you not, the question to be decided was the application of the £50,000 when raised'! 
Certainly. . 

Chairman.] Unless you wish to discredit the witness, I do not see the object of this. 
Sir Mordaunt Wells.] I assure you I ,lo not wish for a single mom1mt to discredit the witness, only it is part 

of my case in reference to the mode in which these debts have been set up rece11tly, because we had only to deal 
with the qm,,tion ol £10,000 in the other house, und now we have to deal with an extra outside sum of £15,000. 

Chairman.] We have that on our notes. . 
Sir Mordaunt \V ells, I Mr. Clements is a gentleman of knowledge of those matters, and I wanted to know 

why, b1icause I was going to call attention to the circular, in which they state exactly the same thing. 
Chairman.] We appreciate that already. 
Sir Mordaunt Wells.l Of course, :ifter thnt intimation, I will not prolong the examination. 

530. 1 want to nsk you this: supposing the £50,000 to be raised, you proposP, do you not, under this Bill to tja 
the bands of the bondholders for two vears absolutely ? No, for such a period at they may agree to down to the end 
of I Si 8, and not exceeding that; and ·1 have always proposed in my le~ters to my friends on the otht>r side, that this 
funding need by no means be absolute, that it might be dependent upon t.he will of three trustees to represent the 
bo1v1bolder~, who might make it cease at a11y moment if they thouglit the cii:~umstanC'eS of the case were such as to 
<lesire it. Not only is there no need for the absolute tying ot their hands;" but it is not, and never has been in 
contemplation, »nd I refer to the letter to show it. 

531. You state this, that the bondholders have always been willing that the ;;barr,holders should participate in the 
assets of the Company in the event of a sale 7 I have never beard any bondholder object to it. 

5:32. Ditl the original Dill that was deposited by. the bondholders, and assented to by the dirPctors, propose that 
the shnrl'h(llders should have any share 7 It did not, and that was one of my objections to the Bill. 

533. When you said tl,at the bondholders have always been willing 7 I did uot say that I said they had nev~r 
objected to it; I say since I proposeJ it, it has never been objected to. •, 

534. I thought you put it; you had never heard a11y bunrlholder object to it? I say so still, 
535. But the Bill as d·eposited made r,,o reference to it 7 It bad never been suggested then; it simply passed it 

over. 
536. Do you mean to rPpresent for a moment the Standard Fire Office when they deposited that Bill had made 

no reference to the shart•holders having any interest 1 It had never been thought of by any 1>'.:idy; the scheme was 
proposed in February last, and I have explained how it comes to pass that this propost•<l division was put in, Fro.m 
the moment when it was proposed it has uever been objected to, to my knowledge, hy a11y bondholder. 

537. What right have the shnreholders to· this fragme11t, which you speak of'/ I think, and that belief hns been 
affirmed by every debenture holder I have talked to; it is only a fair protec1io11 against them whu1 the shareholders. 
are to surrender the whole of the control to the bondh0lders who might sell the railway for what they like, and leave 
the shareholder;; without a sixpe11ce, it is a kind-of reasonable business-like compromise. 

538. Can you• give a single precedent to this Committee fur such a Bill 7 I believe the condition to be· 
unprecedented, anJ, ther,•fore, the remPdy must be also. • 

539. Can you give any precrdent for such a Bill a8 this creating a preference capital over the mortgagee~ without.. 
their assent? My experience; as I said in the House of' Lorus, has uot bcea of a Purliumentary nature, and therefori= 
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t nm 110t· in tfi"e lriist degr~e an authority :u1;ori' pi'i>cedent, but I point out, as' a matter· of eomm:ori srnse nnd bnsiiicss~:: 
that this siruatiou is !l VPry unpreced,·nted onr, and when a new case ari,e it must be dPalt with in a nP.w manner. . .-

540. "'him•is the difference betwer•n this 0:11d any other rnilway 7 '!'his is the difforem·e, that the slmreholders, 
,vithout a winding up ar,~ about to surrender the o:b-olute and u11controlled rli•position of their propt>rty to gentJ,.men­
havinO" :i'n nn't;rgonistic i11terest; and thry must sm·ely be proter.ted in one way or anr,thPr. I suggested the plan of 
veto, but that was overruled ns being- a- b,ul plan, an,-1 very likely it wns; this w1u substituted iu place of it, dnd its.-
rensonahlene~s· lrns commender! itself to evPJY bondholrler. · 

541. Tht!l'P are many shareholtlns in tliis country wh,) stand in n much stronger position than the slmreh:ilders in 
this comp:ony 7 \Vith great respPr:t I n·ever he111·d Leforh of a case in which it ll"as proposed to hand over the entire 
absolute control of a company ,~ith Ii powei· of' sell in\! its railway to rlel,entnre holders. 

542. I ask you whethPr you did uot in your own circular r,•pn•sent to tl1e shareholders and the bondholders that 
tbeywerr to have equal righrs with thi, sharehohler~ in voti11g? I tlid rnpre~ent it, and I represent it so still; it is 
fully i11t'emlrcl, in fact. the re,olutio11s anl" dmwn which are intended to give rlwm those rights. 
_ 543. Chairinnn.] I do not tlri11k you need prrss the wit11ess upon this point, we perfectly understand it; whether 

it is advisablP 11r not, ,ve will consider when you come to nrguP. it. · 
. 544. Sir M. Wells.] I askPrl you in the Houso! (Jf Lords what your r.lients paid for the amount of ~hares, nnd 
you could not give me nn answPr; prrlmps you can irive an 1111swer now? Ye,, I can; I believe the A11glo-Italian 
Bank mnde advances to Messr~. C'lark, Punchard, & Co., upon thb and other securities; the total amount now 
owinir on which advanc!'S is in rouml numlwrs,.£30,00II. 

545. Jn r1·spnet to the £70,0011? In respect to these shares and other securities; they have some shares in other 
compani,·s, and they have tho,:e ~hare~. 

5H3. 'fhar. woulrl include, ot' course, intPrest 7 Thnt includes some interest. 
· 647. So that in the event of tlrPse fragments eomiug to the shareholders, it would be on the basis in that case of 

some ~:25,0ll0 7 Pardon me. I said £:Jo,11110. 
648. Yon sai1l there were other ~rcurit.ies, and I leave a margin ; I will take it at £30,000, the divi~ion of the 

assets would be in that vroporlion £30,000 udvancPs in respect. of £70,000 shares? Pardon me, the distribution has 
nothing to do with the £30,000. 

549. I ~ul'po,e the other securities might he worth a good doal? I do not know what they are; I wish they 
were lwttPr tha11 they are. 

550. Supposing the other securities to be worth £>10,0rJ0? Well, they are not. 
551. If they nre worth £40,000 7 I do 11ot believe thPy arr worth £40,000. 
55:2. Supposing they ar11 wOJ·th £25,0007 I do not think they are worth that if you ask me the question. 
553. All of them to6ether? I am a little l,it afraid we are not well covered. I do not like to have to say it, 

but I nm afraid it is the fact. 
55-1. There i, no doul,t that the exi,tencP of thi~ r.ompany at the presPnt time clepends entirely u1,on the nction of 

the bondholders in aJvunciug that money, it \\'as like a new company being ereated? It de1wncls first upon tho 
passing orthe llill. 

555. ·It was. in point of fnct, like a nr.w company, handing a document to the witness)? This is the original. 
pro,pectns. I do not know anything about this. I have hardly ever seen it. Of course the company cannot live 
-unless this Bill, or something like it, pas~es. 

Cross-examined by ~Jr. Str>phens. 

556 Di~rarcling the Bill for a momPnt, and looking nt tlw present position of tlrn company, supposing tlll'J"O was 
no Bill, the £G50,000 to th" bonclholtlers is now due 7 Certainly, thut is my grievance, and one of these bondlwlders 
bas takPn strps in the Court of ChancPry. 

557. The ~taudard? Mr. Campbell. · 
558. 'fhe ,ame thing; lrn is 011P of thr. dirr-ctor~ of the Standard 7 It is all the same. 
5~!J. Mr. CamplJPll happens to be a dir,•ctor of the Standard Company, but the Londs are his own; that 

£6511,001) is nb-olutely due 7 Unfortunately, ~-e•. 
5G0. ;\lr. GampLell's action is temporarily stuyed at the the rPqnest of the company in November, which was 

two months lwfore you appeare<l upon tl11-• scene 7 Yes. 
5Gl. Su111;osing tl,at proceedi11g to take plal'e, m,rl, thl're being no Bill,.! assume that the company would be -

sold or ,,·otind up, aud tire nssets divided among its cr,•clitors: it woul1I _be a very important tiring for the shareholtlers 
to prPvPnt that? It would be very im J'Ortant for tlwm, hut it would also be vPry important for the bondholders. No 
doubt the shnreholders would deprPcatr. VPr~· much a wi11di11t!· up. 

56:!. It has been put to th" CommittPc that t.hi, substantially is the only alternative? I think so. 
563. Now let me suggPst thi, to yon: what is wauted to get b:ick t.hl' guaranter. is an expPnclituro to sati~fy 

the Tnsmaninn Governmrnt; if it is a ,·cry iml'ortant tliin:r for tl1c shareholclPrs to prevent a win<ling up, and to 
sati~fy 1hc Tnsmaniun Government, what is 10 prt•vent thmn from putting their hands in their pockets nnd fi11ding the· 
money 7 Beeause they have common ~ .. n~e; aml it i~ this: a ,,.a11 bei11g in it, and seeing the thing u very hnd 
busi11e~~, would not put·any mor1;1 mon,•y in unle,s he saw the security for the new mo11ey was goo:!. If we ,eP thut 
the security !'or tlrH new mon"y is good,~;'" will put our h11nds i11 our pockets und find the money. I have not tlw least 
doubt, though I have no right to pledg,·"tlre11, to it, that the An!!lo-It:ilian Bank themselves could nnd woulu fin,l by 
them~el\'es or their friends the whole of the £50,U0U if tire Bill pas~cs: but if they see that the security for tire new· 
mo11ey is bad, the fact that they have alreacly got some money in it would not intluce them to throw good money 
after liad. · 

5fl4. What do you call security? I call a security a mortgage upon a compnny living and having a fair chance 
of living. 

,-, 5G5. In othrr words, that 1hr. money is not worth ndvnncing hy the sharehnlders upon the undertaking as nn 
unclertaki,-g. but it is worth wh;le advandng upon the property of the bo11rlhnlders? They 11re convertible terms. 
The undertnkir:g-, as an umlrrtaking, is tl11• property of tlr,• c1·Pditors aml of the bondholders among them. 

5Gn. You told us that this is your scheme 7 Pradicnlly. . 
567. Do ~-ou put this forward as a Bill to improve tl,e property nml make it still a·going concern, or n Bill to 

sell, or a Bill to wind .up? Certainly not a Bill to wind up. If this B,ll is pa~~eil, it will sa\'e the company from 
bPi11g wo1111d up. I do put it forwurd as a Bill for the othe;· two objects. It will certainly improve the properly of 
the Company, and I brlieYe it will tend to a gooJ snll', bHcause, as I have alreauy said, if tliis company is enabled to 
live, Sir P, n, OSf' Julyan wil! lravr to huy it at a fair price. 

568. TJ,at is a question for Sir Penro;;e Julyan aud fo1· you; b•1t it is hardly an answer to my question 7 You 
have asked me the object of the Bill. 

5G9. \\' e have got from the secretai·y that there are £25,300 of outside debts? I do not regard them as outside 
debts. 

570. Debts 7 I do not regard them as debts. · · 
571. As clistinguished from the int1:rest due to dohenture holders? Pardon me! The debts <lo not include the- -

Gonrnnwnt adYaiices. 
,. 572. Deduct the Government advances? Then you have £17,000 or £18,000 of debts. 
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.. . 573. Will you point me,to.any provision in this Bjll which prevents any person reprP.senting a~y part. of that 
-.£18,000 from taking stPps to-:inorrow to wi11d up the compan ,. 1 Of• cour~e tl\ere is not; lJ11t tb,at is not the way to 
\look at .it. The simple way is this: W fl m.uzzlH those c;rPditors who wPre dang-erous creclitqrs. namely, the bond­
holders, and we pay those creditors who are not dangProus, hecause they _are small in amo_unt. We.can pay the !)TIil, 
.but it.is 1iert'ectly impossible that- l''.e can pay the three quarters o.f a millio11 of debts. · 
. .574 .. Suppose ,you get .your Bill, .aud supposing the mo_ney not to be r:l!-iRed, (\nd'°the dAbts not to ·br paid·? .If t)'re 
money·cannot be_ paid, the outside creditors will wind _us up; _but,.as I jiave many tjmes s_aid, if _this Bill is _passed, 

-,the money.ran be and will be.raised. · · · · ' 
570. 'l'hat is a matter of opinion .an'.l speech ; is not this .the fact; tlrnt on your own showing .the ;£ 18,000 worth 

0 .of creditors might wind you up; .whereas, _as you ~ay, this will muzzle the bondholders for two yPars? Jt is not a 
.foct·.and _I will show you that it.is.not. We shall,borrow £00,000. With that £50,000 we shall pay our Londoµ 
_debt~, ,£95uQ, the .cost of this Bill, which I am ~orry .to say .the opposition has run up to al:iout £.1'000. .We can, ·~f 
.it is ner.essary ,. Jiav the Tasmanian debts, .inclusive of .the 0:o:vernment, £7800; _;wd we shall then· have £31,7_UO t!) 
·spend.upon.-our railway. · · · 
' 576, Always assuming that you get it? We shall get it; I know it too wrll to discuss it. 
, :577, The .whole .w.orking out .9f this.llill depends.on what y,ou .your;;elfcall a long and.coµi_plicated ,agre!Jip.ent-? 
Yes. · • . 

, ·578. You ,ar,1 tlw author of.this S!)heme, ,which emanated entirely from the prPferPDce i;hareholders? :Not from 
:.the ._preference shareholders, but from the shnreholder~; .because the commitfoe represented all the sha1:eholders. . 

579. As you are the author of this Bill, l,avr you got for the Committee any.draft, ,thtc)l _you. _can ,put befor_jl 
'c.them,.of this,u.gr.eemtmt? I.have; if the Committee like to read ,it. Jt is a very long one. 

Chairman.] I think that.is quite unnecesmrv. 
Sir Henry J. Holland.] We could not put thnt draft agreement'in the Bill. . 
Mr. Stephens.] In the amrnded Bill I shall be called upon perhaps as an individual to sign something 

which I may be told three-fourths have signed before, and that will be m_y first opportunity of seeing it. 

Crosscexarnined by Mr. Michael. 
. 580. I should like to .ask you, first of all, why you say foat debt of £8000 is not duo to the ·Tasmanian 
''Government? The Tasmanian Government, in my humble opi11ion, owe us now a very large :amount, I .think 
£3(1,0110 or £40,000, on .account of the ,guarautee. I cannot sta·e the exaet mm, but it is-a very large oi:i,e; and ·if 

"thPy w..re tn pay us, it would put us out of our difficulties. They -have, without -prejudice, advanced us £8000, 
snl!ject to .that question being settled. Jfthequpstion is dPcided against us, and ifit is held that -the Tasmanian 
·Gowrnmont is not·bound to pay us the guarantee, we are ruino•d five times over. On the other hanµ, if, as 1 -firmly 
'believe it.must ue decided, they. arc bound to pay us, t]l(,n thfl £8000 is merely 11 payment on account, and not a mill 
-debt. If thPy were to sue us for the £8000, we should immediately plead-a se~-off. I regard, -therelore, that £8000 
,as_ practically no debt ;it all. · , · _ . 
" 581. Is not the-fact this; that·during the construction of thP raill'l-ay the Governm_ent ·have advanced a •large 
,sum of money, a111] have lent to the Company, for. the _purpo:<e of carrying on the railway, £8000, in rquml numbers, 
.. which you ,· ... nture to say now you ·dispute as not payable, because th<-'y ought to p_11y a :]a1·ger rnm under contract? 
,·Of course I am. speaking with. a little. difficulty. because I am not personally cognizant of-the dealings of the Govern­
:mfmt. I am mai11ly spPaking from my own reading of the contract, but as far -as I know th<' facts of the .case, I 
•believe that this £8000 is sub~tantiaily .a pa.y_ment witb(,ut. prejudice, to be repaid back if it shall ,turn out that they 
·are not bound to pay us, but-to he retained by us on acc:onnt of _the guarantee if they are bound to pay ,us. 

582. That is the Government lmve adv1111c,·d the mon£y, sul~ect to your proving that you are e'ntitled-to ·it 1 And 
I am so satisfier! that we 11re e;,ntitled to it th,il. I do not regard it as a debt.--

-583 .. C_iiairmari.] Tlw Government have not paid you the guarantee since March last year? I think that is the.-time, 
584. -You have 1101. paid the bowlholders int<'rPst since March la,t ypar? Quite so. 
585. 'fherPfore, whatever the Government paid you on account of the guaranteed interest, you will ,have to pay 

'the bondholders, ,ond as a-company tlwrefore you will stand precisely in the condition you are now; but the.Govem­
rnent have advanced you £8000, and th1tt £8000 you huv_e ~pent,and tl,at they have really" adv1mcPd.you, and ¥DU 

'ha\·e spent it._ior ordinary purposes, whether of capital or income uoes not "ppear; but whatever claim Y?U ·had. upo!1 
the Gover11mtnt, that exact aµiount you, will have to pay over -to •the debenture-holders? ,Sub,ta11tmlly that 1s 

• correct. _ 
586. What I want to have perfectly di~t.inct is this. th;.1t whatever -money you may ._have .claimed from the 

GovernmPnt :is the gro,s ,1mount you will have to pay ·ovPr to the del,enture-l10°lders, irrespective .of the -£8000,? 
··The £50,000 will not ue expended wholly in working the railway, and we have claims on the contrac~ors. guaranteed 
-:by good suretit·s. Therefore whatever the fate of the contractors may be _it is a good debt. 

Re-examined by Mr. ·.Venables, 
587. Supposing your view was not correct about 1hat -£8000, and that ought to be added to the -debt, it -woul,d 

·,make £25,300 altogether? I am afraid it would go deeper than that. If my view is -wrong about the £8000 it 
would imply that the. Government might refuse altogether_ )'ayment of' the guarantee, and if ,they are en titled to 

.refuse payment of the gm1rantPe we are ruined twice over. I .see what ynu mean as to that. Supposing-the. Govern­
,ment pay us tlH' g;uaranter, and as y~u, Sir, hav" suggested,- we should 'hnve to pay it all over ·t? the bondholder~, 
'thPre would r,•mam the £8000 to be found somewhere or other· we shoulcl find that partly out of the -surplus of.this 
'£50,000, anti partly from an nmount that I believe we shuII rec~ver· from the contractors . 

. 588. Just assume that the guarantee was settled as you wi.;h, that_ money would all go to the hondholder~·? Yes • 
. - 589. ·And then this £8000 would have to be providetl for somehow or other? 'rhere would lie no difficulty 
.-about that. 

590. That is to say, you would have to provide brtween England and Tasmania ·£25;300? ·:We could do it • 
. 591. It b_as been stated by the sec:r_et_ary t~at, as far.as -tliey have- an estimate .fr01_n their own enginee_r, t~ey 

,havn;rg.none from the GovPrnment engineer~, trorn .£10,oo_o to £15,000 would do what 1s necessary? 'That 1s thml 
·hand; I cannot talk about· that. . 

592. B.11t. we will take the larger limit, £1_5,000, and with £15,000 aml £25,000 to- pr~vide for, ,you -would _still 
:have a ll!argin left out of the·£50,U00? •Certainly. . . . 

·593, You were as.ked whether:you could suggest -any -rra8on- for the shareholders -havrng their proportion; ·:I 
:i:iaresay you hPard :vJ r. H ai·vAy, ,vho ·is tlw solicitor 1 N_o, -I did- not hear-him examined. . · 

/\9.4 .. Sir .Mordaunt W eIIs a,•ked you if-you could-find a precedent for-enaLling·, for such a .purpose ,as this,. thr11e­
'fourths of the hondholders to uind one-fourth; that vroposal, whet-her it -is a -precedent -or not, b com111ou to both. 
.forms of the Bill? Certainly in both ca~es the th~ee-fourths were to bind thti minority. · 

595. :As far as to waiving the 10s. per cent. of interest, -that is what iil -proposed by the op.ponents ,as ,well as by 
_-the promo.ters.? Certainly that was the original Bill. 
· · · 596. ·Consequently that, as between the opponents and •the •promoters, -raises 110 • qu~stiun.,of :Principle. at all 'l:' 

,None whatever. 
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097. Sir Mordaunt Wells also suggestPd to you that if thr.rn were a distribution of assets the clnim of the Anglo­

_1talian Bnnk would be mensurl'<l by what the Anglo-Italian Bank advanced? That has nothing to do with it. 
698. You would be entitled to whatever proportion your holding of any shares did entitle you to? It would not 

lie much; but whatever it was we should get it, 
599. Agnin, it wns put to ypu that th,·re wns nothing- to prevent winding np; if this Bill is pas~ed, as I under­

i1timd, your whole calculation is founded upon your being able to pay Pvery outside per~on, who could and would 
otherwise wind you up, and get a tempornry protPction ngain~t the dPbenture-holders? That is it. 

600, Sir Henry Hollund.] By Section 2, as hns been pointed out, there is to be an n:;reement in writing. Do 
you see any objection to that agreement being submitted to a nll'eting proprrly called by notice? Not the lenst. 

661. That would avoid any objeetion as to any ~ingle debenture-holder being bound by an agreement, which he 
harl not an opportunity of discus~ing? I do not s~e the slh:btest objecti"n to a meetin!! bPirig superaddl'd to the pre­
s_cnt provisions; but it it were sub~tttuted I nm nfraid we should have a difficulty in the House of Lords. It might 
be: " Provided always, tlrnt no sach agrennent shall be valid, unless before it has been ~igned by the dPbe11ture­
holders it shnll have been suumitted to and rend at a meeting of deuenture-holders." I am quite conteut with tbnt; 
I welcome it in fnct. 

602. Mr. Bruce.] In reference to thnt £8000; ifl understand, the contractors foiled before, they had finished 
the line? I believe so; but, of coursr, I nm again spPnking of matters I do not know·much about. 

603. ,vas that £8000 borrow,~d from the Go\'ernm1•nt as pnrr of the money rpquired by the Company to finish 
the Ji,,e? I do not kno,,.; I must refer you to the secretary or the chairman for that; I have only come into the 
matter within the lust four months. 

· Mr. lllichnel.l I thought I had answered that on behalfof'Sir Penrose Julyan, that it was not for the com-
pletion of ll1e line, but ahsolutPly for keeping it going. 

Mr. Venables.] There will be no dispute betweeu us about that. 
[The Witness withdrew. 

Mr. George Sheward, sworn; Examined by Mr. Yenables. 
604, You are a Director of the Lond,in and North Western Rail war? I am. 
60-5, Are you Chairman of thi:< Companv? Yes. 
606. Your Board hus hnd under consideration the difficulties which arose from the Tasmanian Government 

refusing to pay the interest on the debentures? \Ve liave had for some time, 
607. Whrn did you first consider the propriety of introducing a Bill to remove this difficulty? About the 

month of October. 
. 608. At any rate it was after Mr. Campbell filed a pPtition in the High Court of Justice for winding up the 
Company? I tbiuk it wns about the snme time; I think the Bill emanated from that proceeding. · 

6lJ9. Before Mr. CnmpbPll did 1h11t, had you yourself any communication with him on the subject? I had with 
the Standard Company, but, I won't say I had prrsonully with Mr. Campbell. I do not r,•colleet that I Imel. 

610. What wn~ the nature of the communication? A suggestion thut the Standard Company should rirotect u3, 
by lodgin:r a petiriou .t•> wind up. • . 

611. That was to prevent a ho,tile liquiclntion? Yes; I had suffered from one and another company, and I 
thought it w11s wise to protect ours1·lves in this. 

612. About the s<1me time you consiclerPd the propriety ot' promoting a Bill for this purpose?_ Yes. 
613. \\'hen the scheme of the original Bill wns co11firmed, nn applicHtion was made to Mr, Campbell to suspend 

proceedings on the pPtitiun un1i!. somPthing ~houlrl t,e decided on the Bill? I think there was an agreement 
between u~ that the procrP.dings should be ~uspe11cled for six months. · 

614. You then caused the B:11 to he <le posited? Yes. 
611>. And yc,u were prer,nred to 11roceed with it, if'thA sharel1olders had approved? Exactly. 
616. There wns a meetin!! of tlm shrmholder~ nnd the bondholders; I suppose the circular must have been 

addr,•ssed to the sharehold,•rs and the bondholders on the 7th December? Yes. 
617. Y 011 presided at that m,•eting; do you happen to know whether any or what proportion of shareholders 

were presPnt 7 I do not further than t.he directors. 
618. The directors, of coursP, arn neeessurily slmreholders? The directors are necessarily shareholders. 
619. But you do not know c,f u11v others? I do not know of uny otbers. 
6211, We know, at the Whnrncliffe meeting, the shareholders dcclinl'<l to prncerd? Yes. 
621. As directors you had no discretion whatever; you could not proceed without the sanction of the share-• 

holcler~? Not in the Ira st. 
622. But you thought it better to proceed with the Bill on terms which the shareholders, as represented hy Mr. 

Clements, thought satisfactory, than tn have no Bill at all? .Exactly. 
623 Aurl y,;u are still oftlmt opininn? I am. 
624. There wus a meeti11g of bondholders on the 16th April; was there a letter from the solicitors of the present 

petitioners handed to you before that nweting? 'l'here was. 
625. How long befom? Five or ~ix minutes. 
626. Ha,! you read it 7 No. 
627. And I suppo~e 11ot having rend i~ you di<l not think proper to say anytl1i11g ahout it? No. 
628. If you had rPad it ynu would have Pxercised your discretion whethPr you would read it to 1110 meeting or 

not? I claim, as chairman of the Coml'any, the right to decide whether I shall rPad a lPttPr or not submitted lO me,. 
and especially a leLter addressed hy parties who t.he111selvPs hnrn the powPr ro he in the room, and who were there, 
and were i-epresented there. I take all the rPsponsil,ility of not having read that letter. 

629. If you had rend the lettPr you would still have exercised your discretion? If I had rend the letter before I 
:had gone int.:> the room I would not have reud it to the meeting. 

630. But, as a mutter of foot, you had not read it? I hnd not. 

Cross-examined by Mr. Saunders. 
631. You are a shareholder, of course, yourself? Yes, 11ml a bondholder. At least, I was a bondholder to a.. 

Jarger extrnt than I am now. 
632. I may takP. it whPn this Bill was depositrd last year your bonrd, as reprPsenting the shnreholt.lers, agreed 

-with the thPn bondholders that rhnt was the !test form of Bill for the Company? No, you cnn hnr<lly say that the 
_oonrd ngrerd; the board wrre pa~sive in rhc mutter. They were disp,1sed to do what wus for the interest of the shnre-­
liolders and bondholders without giving nn opinion as to which inter,,st ought to predominate. 

633. Y ot1 say the board were passive in the matter; I wanted to know who it wns that drew the Bill? Mr •. 
·Clements and Mr. Bristow. · 

634. I nm t"lking nf the original Bill; I tho~~ht we were talking of different things 1 Mr. Bristow. 
63.3. Who is the s11licitor c.fthe Company? Yes. 
63Cl. 1t was drawn by the ~olicitor of the Company, and approved by the Company, ancl sent by them to the 

Jiondhol<lers? Yes. 
63i. Then I take it when you say they were passive in the matter, you mean when the shareholder~ appeared on 

the scene? I mean we were passive in the matter a~ to giving an opinion. 



47 
638, · That was at a latrr time when the shareholdrrs put in· an appearance; I think we were all together; the 

• Bill was drawn by your solicitor, dPpositetl by you, nnd stmt by-you to us? Yes. · 
639. Theri>fore, it was not correct to say you were passive at that time; when you said you were passive you_, 

meant you were passive at the time ::IIr. Clements referred to? You mistook whPn I ~aid we were pas,ive. The Bil1 
was drawn by the solicitors, and emanated trom a consultati,m between the bondholders nnd the solicitors. It was 
aubmitted to us and we adopted it, witl_10ut gh·ing an opinion as to whetht>r it was positivPly rPquisite or not. 

640. Drawn by your sr>Jicitor but rather representing the views of the bondholders than the views of the directors 
at thnt time? I did not go to that extent. . 

641. I think it met with your approval? No; I did not express an opinion about it; it did not meet with my 
-disapproval. , 

· 642. The wl1ole of the~e proceedings is founded upon the 11,elief that enough mon<>y will he forthcoming for tqe 
purpose of putting the line in such a condition as to claim from the Government of Tasmania the renewal of their 
guaranteed interest? Yes. . 

643. Are ,·ou of opinion that aftrr the pnymPnt of this £18,000 or £25,000 as the case may be, that in either of 
those eventualities there will be enong-h morwy remaining to pnt the line in perfi,ct condition, so as to enforce the 
guarantee again~t 1 he Government? I am of opinion that the £50,000 will provide fo,· the payment of all the 
liabilitii>s of the Company, and ,vill also do all that an arbitrator, ueing an engineer, would decide that the Company 
was called upon to do. . 
, 64-l. But first you see, a~ between the Government and the Company, there is no provision that an ar_bitrator 

and an enginePr shall lie cal!Pd 011 to determine lhP. question? But then there is no provbion in the contrallt that the 
Government shall be sovereign jurlge. Recollect 1hat there 11re two parties to the contract. 

645, I won't discuss that with you? I am only ~urpris,·d yon should have asked me. 
646. It would not, of course, be immat,•l'i~J, in your opinion, as to the sufficiPncy of the amount, whether the 

debts were£ 10,000, £18,000, or £25,000, which arc the three different sums named'/ I 11erhaps was in a position to 
form an opinion i,..tter than anyhody else as to what sum would he necessary. It was urged on me in the first 
instancH that we should go for £75,oOO or £80,000. 

6.Ji. !\fay I ask who urged that upon.you? Various partirs; perhaps some ot' my colleagues and their solicitors, 
I do not remember who, but it wns in the course of ronversalion at a board mPeting. I objected t.o a largfl suin 
because I believe that hrdftht' money, or VPry little more th,rn halfthP. money, will do all that is uPcessary to put us 
in thr. pc.silion we ought to occupy. We have no means of' judging what are the rPquirenrnnrs of the Go\'er11m•mt. 
1Ve have _aske~ through our enginerr and solicitor what the Govf'rnment require us to do, am! the only answ.,r we 
barn received 1s, "Fulfil your contract." We say we have fulfiJI,,d th~ ,•on tract and more. We have rnn the line at 
contract fpeed for more than a yPar without nn accident, and though thrPe engi\!eers proclaimed that it was dangerous 
to travel upon it the Government took a largP. party O\"er the Ji11e on the morrow after that rrport came out; that js 
a po~itive and good a11swer to the assertion rhat the line w11s not safo to travel on. His -Excellency constantly uses 
it, the Ministers use it, 1he Mrmhers of Parliament USP it, and no one complains of danger. 

648. I am very unwilling to ~top you, bnt I must come back to the original point. If this contention is ri)?ht, 
that it is in this absolutPly good co1,ditio11, anrl is used for all tlu•se purposes, I suppose no money at all would'. in 
your opi11ion, be nPc!'ssary to put it into a corn!ition to claim the guarantee? There is 110 one who knows anythin"' 
about railway work, a11d must i.now that when a line is opcni>d ·it reqnir ... s money to be laid out upon it in vnriou~ 
,vays and changes that sugtrest tl,nmelves by working. I do not say that. it is neces~a•·y to spenrl one shilling on lhe 
line to make it workable at all, but I would consent to the spt•ndiugthis money to improve the property of the Com-
pany, and diminish the wMking expenses. ., 

6-HJ. This is the question as to what is nPcessary t.o claim thll guarantee; will you tell me what report you have 
from your engineer as to incrPasc which justifies yon in saying that £25,000 will be t•nough to enforce the obligations 
of the Goverument? The engiue<'r has said from £10,000 to £15,000 would. in his opinion, be all that was necessary 
to do to the very PXtl'nt that the Government could claim. He had rnude 110 estimate of what is necessary in the 
detnilPd eslimute, hecause I lrnve no knowledge ofwhnt tlrn Government rPquires. The report cfthe three engint'ers 
is one ,.f the \"agnf'St d11c11mPnts I ever rend. They go from plae<:' to ph1ce und speak of various things, but do not_ 
suggest anyrhin~ thnt sho1ild be rlone, or any money that sl:ould he laid out. · 

(J50. You say 1he e11ginPPrS reported £10,000 to £15,000; is that in the 1Jf'inted document? No, it is not. 
651. Have you the _repr,rt? There was no report at all; it was merely in a letter, speaking of the difficulties 

that we had 10 put up with the G"vernriient. 
652. Could you Jet me see the Jetter itself? I have not got the ]el.ter; the secretary may have it. 

, 6:'i3. I am told that you are under a misapprehension whPn you say the Standard Insurance Company were 
representet! at that meeti11g, when they aslwd that the Jetter should be read? A gPntlernan, who was one of the 
wituesses on behalf of rh" Standard Cornpariy before the Honse of Lords, got up in that meeting, and asked me 
whethe,· I had receivrd a letter from the Stauda:·d Company, and whether I meant to read it. 

654. Who was that? Mr. }'reeman. 
6:i5. Mr. Fr,•eman I am told does not repre~1mt them? I did not ~ay he did. 
656. He was secrPtary of another Lile Insurance Company who are bondholders? I merely said be was cognisant 

of the letter, because he got up and made an enquiry about it, and so did General Cavanagh. 

Cross-examined by Mr. Stephens. 
657. Y 011 do not Admit an_l'tliing is necessary to be paid, but suppo~ing by accident your own tribunal said £60,000 

was necessary to spend, what would happen then? '!'hen I should have asked tlie bondholders lo let us raise £60,UOO; 
I should have i!Oue for the larger amount. 

ti5t:!. There would be only pown in this Bill to raise £50,000? No. 
6-:i9. To raise the other £10,000 you would want another Bill? No; because the report of the engineer was 

before this Bill was lorlged, 
. 6fl0. Ynu were a,king this Committee to pass a Bill with a limit of £50,000; I put to you tliat if by accident 

after this Bill WllS passed you discovned that £60,000 was nrcessary. what is to happen? You may as well put 
another question and ask, supposing h:ilf thi, "line is washPd nwny how I propose· to find the money to replace it. 
-You are putting a hypolhetical case 1hat, does not Pxi,t or is not Jikel_v to exist. 

661. Suppo,e it did h,ippPn? I won't go in 10 nny supposition at all. , 
662. Do you r1•fosc to answer that question? My imuginarion is not active enough to suppose such things. 

. 663. Assuming the necessity for £60,000 to arise, it follows that there must be another Bill? I do not know 
that it does. · 1 

664. I do not quite admit that you are right with regard to Mr. Campbell, but I will ask you this: you thought 
the puLling of his petition on the file in December would protect the company- from a hostile winding up? 
Exactly. , . . · 

66:>. And you looked favournbly upon it from that point of view; why should not that equally continue? 
Decau~~ my idnr was not an application tu wind up the company, but to prevent anybody else duing i;o; it was a 
protect10n and not an aggrPssive rnrasure. 

666. l will read you the suggestion made by Mr. Davison, the Secretary of .the Company, yesterday. It is 



•.Question 224- :"" How could' any 'stipulation· by tlie bondholders· affe'ct the rights of. outside creditors:; thPre is the 
petition on the file which may remain: until the debts of .the company are paid;" do you agree with that 1 Oh, 
perfectly. 
: · 007. And you-see no objection -'to the petition remaining on the file ·as a protection to the company -7 Not the 
:slightest. 

OG8. You would have 110 objiction, assuming- the Bill to I'ass, that a .provision should .be .introduced to that 
'effect 1 If it were necessary ; I cannot decide a legal question, 

. Cross-examined 1,y Mr. Michael: 
·669. Is M1·. Charles H. Grant the engineer to the Company? Yes, 

, 670. Is it from him you received a letter statiug that that amount Wllllld be required to put the railway ·in 
·order 1 Y cs. 

071. I want the date of it 7 The 19th of February. 
072. Is that the Inst communication yon hod from him 7 Oh, certainly not; I get one every month. 
673. I mean with reforence to this particular suhjed, as to the amou1,t which would he required to put the 

railway in workin{)" order? Yes, itis. . · 
_· l\·I r. Saunders~ [s this the prt,sage you· refer to: "Dl'nr Sii·,-Your letter of the 22nd Dt>cember crtmc to hand 

'-by the la~t mail. Your statement of the efforts now being made to raise the further ·capital of £50,000 is duly 
.. noted, and I trust it will be succe;;sful, as also thnt the uecesmry Pnrliamentary srt11ction to the Bill may he cbtaincd. 
'The Drnft Bill wits cluly received 111111 handetl to your scil1citors here. You ussumc that a small sum ot; say, £10,000 
·to £1,\00;) will be ample to cover forthe1· ca1,it11! expemlit11rc in this country, including th;it necessitated by these 
legal demancl, of the Government; 'but unfortunately I ca1111ot even form an opi11io11 of ·what the Government can 
legally demand to l,c clone, notwithstancling _tlie cxce8S sum 11\Jout ·the guarantee ulrendy expendccl. I ca11 ouly say 

· that this sum would be ample for paying the bal,,nc« of Janel purcharn~, doing t 11e few extrn works rcquirccl on the 
'line, with a little more top-balla:;ting ancl trimming- in the worst places· (certainly not to neatly trim and fully 
· balln,t all th's, the line which I have always especially excepted l, 'to repair and to repaint the rollin\!' stock, a11J.put 

the line> in good a,,d sufficient working condition throughout, which ou~ ht in justh·e to suffice the Government u1,der 
all the circumstances; hut I cunnot prc~ume to say it will do so. The larger a111ount woultl I think also inclu,lc the 

_·new rolling ~tock we ~hall require, but not a supply of' rails and other permanent-way materiuls, which to make the 
'line satisfactory, should form a hertvy item. I quite agree with you that tl,e above two speciulities should be provided 
. from a fund guaranteed (cxtr,,) by the Government; ·bccau~c of'the far greater value of the line obtai11cd thnn that 
· contrncted for, hut at present it would be worse than useless to brortch such ,m itlca. \-Vhr.n the inspecting en"'incer 
·(h,1ving r.xamined the lii1e) reports the;c extra works and outlny., desirable. and the Government trun~mit"' to us 

· and co1,fir111 hii< report, ·will be tl,e best time to ask how the capital r•·qi.isitP to cnrry out the sug!!e~tious can·be 
· ·obtain eel. Nothing is easier than to recommend a large expenditure on any public work, but it would be unreasonable 
· to require this ol' you, unless the Government are prepared to find tlic m,,ans tht>refor:'' · 

(i74. llh. l\'liclmel.J I wi,h to ask you whether it has come to your-knowledge tl1at Mr. Grant believrs £100,000 
•·would be require,] to putthe line into proper condition? Certainly not; I nc1·e,· heard of-any such amount; neyer 
· beard it whispered by anybody, eirher by Mr. Graut or by au)'body else, 

675. I ~h ,11 1,,. olili~ed to put before the Committee dPfi1111e intormatiou on the point. and, therefore, I ask you 
· ·whetlwr you ever heard from Mr. Grant that £100,0ll0 or a very large sum of money will be required to make the 
·line in safe working condition 7 I have never henl'II Mr. Grant mt1ke use of any expression of, the kind, uor have I 

· ·ever !ward him u~E-the words "safe working condition." 
. 676. Nor to have 11ny di-pute at 1111 aliout words or Mr. Grant; have you from any other source obtained any 

·. information that a lar!.!e sum of money or anything upprodching to it would be reqnired 7 ·.No. 
677. Has 110 i11for111ation ,·eaclwd you, as ch11irman, of any account at 11117 No. 
Oi8. I-lave you not enquired, us chairman, what amount w911ltl be Tequired? Of whom was I to enquire except 

of·our agent iu Tasmania, "ho was on the ~pot nnrl conlcl_give me the information. 
67!1. ls this the only information vou have to offer to Lhe Committ,,e? That is the only information that I have 

to oif,•r to the c .. rnmittPe, • . . 
681l. Chairman. J The proposal.ill' the Bill is to add con~i,lcrauly to the bonded capitol of the Company, which 

is.alreacly, I think, £700,000, nnd you have a ~hare capital, prPsurned to be paid· up, of' £400,000. Assuming that 
unde1· the artid.•s of association there is full power 10 the Coml'any to borrow on its clcbentures ·any amount of loan 
capitnl, i,; th,·re :lily. precedent fur a railway company issuing such a very large amount of bonded cal'itul compared 
with their sh1tre c"pital before their share capital is actually paid ·up? Not upon English railway. companies, but it 
is the custom in all foreign railway companie;:, and tho~e articles of a~suciation Wt're based on a. variety of 

•foreign companies; the h~st article in each company was taken out. 
·61:,1. Have ~ ou considerer! the last part of my question; I said before the authorized share capital of the 

Comp,,ny was pnicl up; you ask· Parliament to approve of a particular arrangemcut for adding to your bonded 
capital t,et;,re you have paid up your share capital? Ye~; for the simple-r,,ason that it kthe only nwthod we have 
got ofrai,ing the money. We do not increase the liability of 1trn Company as rcgarcls interest. The bondholclcrs 

· "fiacritice I 0s 11e1· CPnt. of their interest to meet this fund, ,so that as rPgarrls the Company we only become liable for 
the princi, al ancl n"t' for the interest; it does not increase tne annual 1,urthen of the Compttny. 

082. i\l ay we take it the Company w:iuld fincl ·it imp.,ssiule to rais•• a1 an)' price the remaining £600,000 of 
slrnrc cupital which is not issued, and it is bccausp 1hat is actually impos~ible that you come to Pal'liament _with this 
Bill 7 Enrirely so. I ~hould say I hue! a corrc~ponclen,·e with Lord R,·drsdale, when -that prospectus was first 

'"issu!'d. His Lo1·ctship ,nggested to me ·the very point yuu have raiser! 110w, the unusual rn·ar.tice of issuing a !rtrge 
debPnture capital liet'orc any of the share copital had been is~uetl; !'or we had nnt issued any then ; we had only 
issued. £.jl)(lll ,.Jtogetlwr; th11t wns the qualific.,tion of the ·directors and offici11ls, a small amount; and Lord 
RedescL,le· callf'fl attention to· that very .foct; I -replied as I do to you now, that it is an unheard of thii,g in Englund, 
but it. is a common thing on the coutinent. 

083; Evt!II whei-e the share capital has not been ·oifPred to tlrn public at nll? · 'Yes. 
Ci84. !1-Ir. Arthur Mills.] I, tlmt the practice iu colonial ruilwuys1 This is •the first colonial railway I have 

ever had to do with. 
085. Mr. llruce l You have had before you the statements ·of the Government ·engineers, -and ·of your ·own 

engineers, and no cl,1ubt you have consiclered them both 7 YPs. 
080. :\1,d 1lrn opinion you gave us just now is what, iu your experience, you think would 1,e nrcessary •to put 

'that line in proper conrlition·7 Entirely so. ·Bear in mincl that we have spent ,a large sum of money· on the lino 
since thnt report wns issued. · 

087. Aud I b<-lfove you hnve hacl ·a great clral of cxprrie11ce in the permanent way of railways -during your 
-life; you have Sl'cn ·a grrat cleal of it, and know ·a great de11l about it 7 · Yes. 

This was the case. for the Promoters. . 

Sir Mordaunt W c>lk] I -t.hinldt. woulcl be more conv_c>nientif my friPn·t1 Mr. Michael, who 'i'eprrscnts ·t11e 
opponents of this Bill, would cull his evidence now, for this I enson: it must necessarily· form a very importi_int 

. cJenient in the consideration of the case, .what is the. posilion:<if. the .Government, .an<l what their evidence is ns 
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to thii sum -that is fo :be required;· It wiU affectthe. main question in the case as.to the: advisability of raising, 
the sum nf £,50,000. _ _ 

___ Mr. Michael.]. I shall be glad if you will allow me, Sir, to say a- word or two·. I appe11r, not as· a_, 
promoter, or as an opponent of this Bill, but in obedience to your whh. We are preparPd to.give you-. 
every information in our power· with respect to the position of the Government so for a~ this railway is 
concerned. I do not propose to make any address to you, or to take any part, except ·giving you: every-

.. information which _may help y11u to a d~cision. · 
Sir Hem·y Holland.] Sir Penrose Julyan i.•, of course, representing the Colonial Government'? 
Mr. Michael. l Yes; he is not here for himself. 
Chairman.] If' Mr. Michael has no objection, it will probably save time to examine Sir Penrose Julyall-

now. · 
Sir Penrose·Julyan caUecl in; and examined by !lfr. Michael, as iollows: 

688. You are one of the Crown agents for tbe Colonies? I am. 
689. And under the dirPction of the Colonial Office, you have charge in England· of the business of the· 

Tasmanian Government? I have. 
690. Ancl I think you attend here, not with the view of promoting or opposing thi~ Bill, bnt in answer to the­

invitation of the Chairman to give Pviclence in orde1· to afford every i11l'ormation in your power to the Committee, so. 
that thPy muy decide as to the provision;; of this Bill? That is mr po,ition. 

691. Would you kindly·explain as shortly 11s you can the sti!ps whic·h have l,een taken with respect to the 
making of this railway and the position of' the Governme11t with rPspPct to it? It may be as well first that I 
should say that the interest I repre~eut here as reprPsenting the GovPrnment is, first, in the interests of the 
community, that·a good and substantial railway should be forme I in accordance with the contract. !II the next 
place, I have to represent to you that thPy have advancecl larv.A sums of money, and hav,, bt•come the per3ons most. 
]a'rgely interested in the future succe~s of' this Company, 01· in the future, working of tl,e railway. 1'lrny ure_ not· 
sati~fied that the past management of the railway has Leen what it 011:rlit to have Leen, "nrl if urrnltnre.d the_v arn no~_ 
satisfied that tlrn contract would· P.ver Le completer! in accordance with its conditio11s; and their object in putting this 
information before you i~, as far us possible, to ,ugge-t amPndments in this Bill which will s,•cure first, the" 
complPtion of the line, and tlrn rnfety of it, as, at the. pre,;ent rnome11t, it is I helievr. in a most 1111sat'e concl ition. 
•rhey have no desii-P, as has been allPged l,ere, to become the purchasei·s of the liue if the Company will but furnish··' 
it and work it as they have promi~ed to work it. A right ho1;"oral,le ge11tle111an who \\'as in thi~ room a felY minutes 
ago has just returned from the line it8elf, and has received great credit i11 the colony for having had the courag11 to-
go from one Pntl of it to the othPr. . _ 

692. Sir Henry llollaml.] Sir William GrPgory, I believe? Yes. 
693. He will be able to teU you just now that ~o far from £/i0,000, minus £25,000 or £18,000, or any other 

amount of del,ts which it is proposed tir,t to pay ou.t of'that amount, the company's e11gineer, him~elt; informed him, 
that at least £100,uOO wourd Le required to folfil tl,e co1Hlitio1,~ which the Govel'llment require; thereforP, if the· 
£50,0!)0 were rai~ed now, and hut some £30,000 of' that amount could lie approl'riated to the Temoval ·and 
completion of the line, the Company would be just in the same 1,osition as tl,ey tinrl the,mell•Ps at present; they 
would J,ave to come to you and ask for nnother Bill to go into liquidntinn or becume ve11do1·s. If the Bill pas~es in 
ifs present f'orni the Gov11ri:Jrnent conc:eirn that the power will JJJ'actic·ally re,t with tbe shareholders, who may be­
said to have luruished little or none of' the ca~iital tlmt created the property, and that the deLenture l,olders who-. 
founrl the .bulk of' the money, and who arP, in equity, the proprietor;, would be at the mer·ey of tl1e shareholders. I. 
may say none of' the shares have been is·med except through the contractors, The contractors, therefore, created the 
sh,,rebolclers; the shareholders goverued the c·mtrnctors, a11d, therefor,•, the contrnetors are practically the­
sharel,olders themselves, and their nominePS will gover11 th" i11te1 e~t of the debenture holders ---

694. Mr. Michael:! Would )'Ou kindly give the Committee first the figures as to the nominal capital of the_ 
Company? It i.,, I believe, £1,025.0llO. 

Chairman. l We have all that. 'l'he wit1wss only knows it from prir,tecl papers. , 
695. Mr. Michael.7 I think the Government of'l'asmania have had the li11e inspected as to the amount that has 

been expender! upon it in its c·onstr11ctio11? They have. _ . 
696. I think you have before you official documents as to the amount that has been estimated as so expended-?· 

I h~ve. · 
697. The Government of Tasmania, wishing to get a disintPrestecl opinion as to the state of-the line and the cost· 

of the line, invited the Government of Victoria to name an expert. a civil e11gi11eer, to proceed to that colony, and te>· 
examine :rnd report 011 the li11e. A Mr. Green I think it wa~? That geIJtlenum I think was M 1·. Green. 

698. I 11111y put it to you, that he rPported that £540,IJOO was the sum which had, or ought to have bePn, · 
expended in the construction of' the line? That was the sum he nainPrl, u11der the s11ppositio11 that some rt>lling_ 
stock was to 1,e supplied; that is. that the li110 as he i11~pected it, with the nPcessary rolling stuck. addeLl, might have 
been construded by contract on the spot for £54G,OOII. 

61)9. And.that was, even if tne ro!Jing stock hatl been supplied, the only sum representing the £1,025,000 ?•' 
· That was the whole. 

700. That is on the assumption that the wh'Jle f'f tl1e rolling stock had been suppliecl, , .... hich was not supplied 
for the w11rki11g of the lin6? That was the estimate. 

701. ThPr eforp, whatever the value of the rullinir stock was it must be dPd'ucted from the £540,0i!O? 'l'hat is so. 
70~. Would you explain to tlw Committee how the Bill should be ame11dprl to ca,rry out the views you Pxpr~~s? 

In the first place, I shoultl suggr>st that the amount t" be burrr,wecl ~horild be doubled ; £ JOU,000 should be raised 
instead of £,iU,UOO, and co1TP~poncling alterations rnu~t necPssarily bl• marlr, in the Bill, by which the dPbenrure" 
holders would ~ubmit to a reduction or their prop~rty, which is 1,ow vrnvid,•d at onP.-tenrh, to onp-fifth; in othei· 
words, that thHy would relinqui,;h one per cent. prr'unnuui' of- interest inst,•:ul of half pPr cent. 'fhis would be but' 
a permissive cluu~e. I woulcl suggest that the debenture holders, havi11g in real.ty created the property, they should· 
exercise sueh a control over it »s to raise·tbat £1UU,OOU or not, as the case may 1equire. 

703. You would give the co11trol to tht> del,entnre holrlers, who, in , eality. have raised money for the construction'. 
of the line? That is so. I do not sug~e~t that;the sharnholders, who, I look upo11 it, have given very little value· 
for what they hold, should be exclu,lerl from all s11iire in the a[)mi11istration of the Com1 •any; but I suggest th11t the 
de_l.J~nture holders should exercise that power whkh their contributions justly entitlecl them to. _ , 

7ll4. Have you any suggestion to make as to the representatio11 of the Government upo11 the Board? I -woultl 
sugge,t that the Governmeut, heing more largely interes1ecl than any person, 01· uny corporate _body holding share~,· 
shouhl ha,·e the power of nominating an official director, in order thut they may be kel't advised as to what the-
Company are rlomg. -

705 Mr. H erschell.J I want to understand your proposition about the amou11t raised. You propose· it to be:· 
£100,000 instead of £50,000, leavi,,g it of course to the debenture holclPrs to determine whether they will do it or 
not. But what I understand you to suggest is, that if' such an arrangement Le carrie,J out, the tlehenture hol lers,. 
and not the Company, shall-determine how much of tlie £ l 00,1100 i~ to he rnised; or·, at all events they. in conjunction· 
with the Company, and not the Company exclusively? _Not exactly; I would give ·the debenture holrlers such a•· 
})Owe1· in the administration of the Company as woulc.l enable them to· rule -the Company. In other wol'ds, I would 
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give them a mnjority proportionate to the quantity of money they have-supplied to the undertaking, Havin.,. tl1at 
majority they mm exercise their power of raising the £100,000, or any less sum they please; the opnution° of a 
general meeting, where the majority, composed of del,enture holders and shareholders, would decide how piuch of 
that £ I 00,000 shoultl be raised. 
: 706. That is to say, that whereas the Bill at present, if the scheme were adopted by the debenture holders, woulcJ 

give the directors the power of determining how muc-h of £50,000 should be raised; you would increase the amount 
to £100,000, and, if the scheme were adopted, the debenture holders and the Company together, would determine 
what sum wi1s to be rniserl? Yes. 
- - 'i07. Mr. Michael.] That is, you would tran~fer from the debenture holders, because the debenture holders under 
the Railway Amendment Act would have to drturmiue by three-fourths; you would constitute a. n~w bo11rd, in which 
shareholders, und d~benture holders, and the Govrrnment, by an official liquidation, should be represe1,ted; that 
board, in which the debenture holders would be a m1,jority, would determine as to how much of the £100,000 would 
have to be rai,ed in order to complete the works? 'l'hat is ~o; giving the dt•benture holders a predomi11ant power 
in creating the board. They would form a maj .. rity of the board, n 1,d woulrl, therefore, determine how the schrme 
would be curried out, there being the power to raise £100,000 upon the condition that the interest available would be 
exactly the same, whether the £100,000 i~ raised or 11ot; I think, perhap$, it might lie better to define more clearly 
the proportion of power which the debenture holders should hold in the board, a-; compared with the shareholders; 
therefore, I have to suggest an amendment by _whir:h I would form a board of nine directors, compo,rd of five 
debenture directors, three share clirectors, and 011e official director: that would iiive, a nearly as practicable, 
t\1e proportion of power in the board to the money subscribed by the ,·arious !10ldPrS of ~tock; I think if the l,oard 
were so constituted, und thPy had power to raise any sum not exceeding £1011,UllO, it might be safely left to them to 
raise it as and when tlIPy ple!l,ed for the r:omplrtion of the line. If, on the other hand, you confine it to £50.0IJU, I 
conceive the Bill might as wcU not puss, inasmuch us the debenture h11lders will not accompli;h th1!ir objt!Ct ; the 
Govprnment will not have securt'd the community a safe railway, and it will revert to the pre,e11t state of things, 
and another Act will be wanted, which will be found impructic11ble when you come to disl'ose of the line, which is 
t!ie only othr.r ulternative. You must either go into liquidation to dispose of the line, or put it in such order as will 
justify the Government in paying the guarantee. 

. 708. You had to pay, in round numbers, £30,000 a year upon the a.mount of the debenture debt? £32,-500 
ayu~ • 

709. And that was paid for four years during the construction of !he line? Yes. 
_ 710. Then a mm of £80,000,* in round number~, was i,dvanced by the Government to the Company-; for wl111t 

purpose was that sum advanced? I believe the sum was advanced in order that the Comp11nr might keep'the line opr.n. 
711. Not for capital purposes, l,ut for tlie ordinary working purposes of the Company? No further for capital 

purposes than that the money, in order to kt,ep the line npen, might have been applied. to completing or furnishing a 
sum for completing some impnfoction, or Pnabling carriagf's to run over the line. It might have been char"cable 
to capital, but it was said to 1,e for Pnabli11g the Company to run the train. " 

712. And, therefore, for the purpose of keepiug the railway open? For keeping the railway open. 

Cross-examined by Sir Mordaunt Wells. 
713. Do you kn1Jw tl,at under the contract, with respect to the payment of interrst, in the event of the line not 

being complt-ted, the Governmt>nt of Tasmania can refuse to pay. I want to know whether, supposiiw the 
Tasmanian Government began to pay ll!,(aiu us soon as the line is completed, whether the whole of the interest ~hich 
is due undc•r the contract will be payable? Do you mean the interest for the periocl intervening? 
, - 714. I presume the payment of the interrst is suspended in consequence of the line not being finished; but 

when the line is finished you brgin to pay interest again? It has not been suspe11decl; it has 111Jt bee11 earned. 
- 715. But there has Leen so much intPrest in arrear? Pardon me; t.he in1ere-t is in arn•ar as to bondholders by 

the Company, but the Government owe no interest, inasmuch ns the Company have not earned it. 'J'h'.!y have not 
finished the line; thPy have ceased constructing, but huve 11ot fini~hed. 

: 716. Am I to understand then, that in the event of the Government of Tasmania beginning to pay reguhtrly the 
5 per cent. interest in respPct ot all bondholders, you begi11 then, and yo11 pay up the arrears, suppotiiug they have_ 
IJ_ot been received? If thPy have not been earned they cannot be claimed. 

717. But you must l111v1J had thq use of the rnilway all the time 1 On the contrary, tho railway is in such o. 
condition that I shall bring you evidence to show that passengers are positively afraid to go by it, nncl they u~e the 
(;ommon road alongside of it, and will not use it; and a g,•ntle111an will be culled who I expect ,,·ii} inform you that 
he has just travelled over it, and has induce1l a member ol the local ll'gisluture to go with him, and that this member 
told him that it was 011ly thA sPcond time he had ventured on sud1 an ill-construct,,d line. 
- 718. But the bondholders lent their monry upon a represPntution that wus made with the consent of the 

'l'asmnniau (;ovc·rnment, that a certain amount of interest wo1ild be paid to thPin 1 Conditionally. 
719. Do not you think that um!er this nnangement with the Tas111a11ian Government the hondholclers would be 

entitled to recc,ive from the Tnsmanian Gover11ment the guaranteed iritPrest in o.rrear 1 '!'he Company will be 
entitl"d to receive that interrst. al. the moment the line is pronounced complete accordi11g to contract. 

7:10. Then the bondholders are not to receive an,· intt'rest? The Governnwnt havereallr nothing to do with the 
bondholclrrs. The Government undnto'lk to pay the Com pan~• a sum Pqual to 5 per cent. ujior, £650.000 on certain 
concli1ions. The great condition under that is, thnt the liue ~hall be completed and opened for traffic in a satisfactory 
m11nner, and also that they are to pay that sum during construct.ion, but from the rno111e11t construction 
ceast'S until the mome!lt the line is opened and pronounced finished according to coI11ract, the Go\·crnment is uot 
liublr.. 

721. That is your view of the responsibility of the T11smanian Government in respect of this pro.•pectus 1 Oh, 
no; the Tasmanian Government are not in uny way responsiule for that prospectus, which I think is o. prospectus 
included. 

7:!2. Quite so. Under the Act of Parliament, 33 Viet. & 34 Viet. c. 13, there is a kind of Parliamentary recogni-
tion of the tnms of the contrnct entered into with the l,onclholders -- · 

Chairman.] I do not think it is worth while going into that. The contract is pnrt of the prospectus, 

Cross-examined by Mr. Fletcher. 

7:13. Is this the first time tl,at any representations ha,·e been made on hehalf of the Government by you as their 
agent here tu the Company? There barn b,•eu none whatever. . 

724. The r<'presentations of the Governmer,t hav(:J been marle, as the printed correspondence will show, direct to_ 
the Company's ager.t on the spot.? '\Ve, as the represe11tutives here, did not enter into the arrangeme11ts of the. 
Company. We had nothing to do with those arrungeme11ts. 

725. Was >1ny representation made l,y you, 11l!ti11g under your instructions from the Tasmanian Governmrnt with:. 
respect to this Bill, to the Company; you h,,ve never addressed the co,11pany personally with regard to this Bill?. I 
have have had a perso11nl communication, not of my seeking, with the r,hairmun and one or two_ gentlemen, directors 
<?f the company, on the subject; beyond that, none. · 
. 726. When was that 1 It was I think after the Bill had left the Lords, 

• Sic in orig. 
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727; When did you, first of all, become acquainted with this Bill? After it had left the Lor1Js, not before. 
728. Who called your attention to it? I really cannot say who called my attention to it. I think I was Jed to, 

it•either hy seein~ my:aelf or having bren told by one of my staff that there was a paragraph in the· "'rimes"· to sav 
that something had been passed; that. the·Lords had passed this. • ·, 

72Y. In coming to-day to give your evidence are you acting Pntirely on your own re•ponsibility as Crown Agent 
for the Colonie•s, or in pursuance of instructions rrceivetl respecting this Bill fi·om the Government? In pursuance· 
of general instructions to protect their interP.st and character in respect of this Bill. · · 

730. In respect generally, yµu mean? In respect of the c.lisputetl point between the Government and· the 
Company. 

731. Thnt is to say, probably as regards the amount necessary to put the.line in order?- Everything which 
concerns th1dr int.rrest in the mntter. 

732. But yon had no special instructions with regard to this Bill? No, there was no possible time fo1· that. 
Chnirman.J It takes four months to get an answer. 

733. Mr. Fletcher.] What are your objections to this Bill in principle now? As I have alrea1Jy stated to the·· 
Committee my objections are; first, that the i,rovision is i11.,ufficient. , 

734. Prnvisiou for what? For completi11g the line in ar.cordance with the agreemPnt betwer>n the Company·and 
the Govnnment. Tha1. is one ol\jPction. The next obj,,ction I make on behalf of'ihe Gover11mPnt is that the adminis­
tration of thP line hns lieen far froir. satisfactory in the past, anrl in order to get the line complewd by the use of the• 
money now intended to he borrowed it is necessitry to give those who have a real and g;reat interest in the line a share· 
in its administration. Hitherto the fiction has existed that shareholders who hnd invlc'stetl no money in the concern 
comparatively are governing a body who had found nil the morH'Y which created the propPrty. · 

735. The shareholders found nearly £400,00ll out of £100,000? I have never heard it stated or sre.n that the_ 
shareholders furnished a penny of money. 'fhe £400,000 of sharPs, the ordinary shares, I think, were assigned by· 
contract to the con1ractors, altl,ough tliey appPar to Jra,·e h"rl prefrrrnce ~lrnrcs notwithstunding, to a considerable, 
amount, but the shares have been £150,000 ordinary shares only, ai:id £:!44,000, 

: 7d6. Without going any further into dctuils, there is no distinction as regards the shares held by the debenture· 
holders and the onlinary shares; they all came in the same way? Debenture holders paid ·mo1111y. 'l'he shareholders, 
as far as I can learn, have not paid any. Certainly advances may have Leen made by institutions on the shares, and 
they have an interest in them. 

737. But surely the ordinary slmres were given, as stipnlated in thr. contract set out in the prospectus, to the' 
contractors for payment of the works, instead of cash, were they not? 'l'he estimated cost of the works, I believe, 
originally was £650,000, and it was on that data that tlie guar:intee was given. The Government were informed by 
experts that nothing like that amount has bet>n' expended, and I .find in a report made by the company's engineer,_ 
that he' states that, an enormous (I think he used the word "enormous") portion of that £650,000 was raised for· 
fin_ancing the company in Loudon. Therefore the money paid by the debentnre holtlers more than suffices for pay­
ment of the work done, 

738. Am I to understnrnl that a large sum out of the £050,000 nominal capital authorised to be raised has been 
oxpended in finance which has Jed you to the belief tlmt the money has not been properly expended, or an adequate·· 
sum exprandell, on the railway? I do not say it has not been properly expended, but it may not have Leen necessary 
to expend that large sum on finance. " 

739. I am assuming that it is spent on finnnce; have you any information on the subject? I have the informa­
tion of your engineer. I ·find on page 13 Mr. Charles Grant, in reply to the report of the engineer, states that ont of 
the £650,000, 133 miles of its length had averaged £4887 per mile. In entering into t_he contract an enormous 
expenditure was incurred in rai~ing capital. The sum an1ilable for works ant.of that-gnarant<'e, that is, out of the 
£650,000, ,,,as £4000 a mile. If you take the difference between £4000 and £4887, which the £650,000 would give· 
you, you will have a sum ot' something like £177,000 as having been paid for what your manager calls raising the· 
capital ,vhich wa$ guaranteed by the Government. 

740. Not £170,000 in raising a capital of £6,'lO,OOO; is that what you suirgest? That is wlmt I suggest. 
741. I,: that. the supposition on which yon come here, that £170,000 has been spent in financing the £650,000 

nominal capital? I take the words of your eugineer that it has been so. He suys so here in very clear and distinct· 
words. 

742,. Of the £650,000 the issue price was £92 10s., which won Id amount to £48,000 m1t of the £650,000 to begin· 
with'? · Quite so, and if yon deduct that from the amount of the difference between £4800 and £J.OOO, I think yoa will 
find it will leave yon still--

. 743. Let me give you the fignres; £48,000, representing the issue price of £92 10s., comes first of all? Yes.· 
7 44. £3:!,000 for cost of management at home and abroatl ; I am speaking of the whole cost? We are speaking 

of' raising capital at the outset. ' 
745. I do not think vou have had the informati,lu supplied to you. I tell yon frankly what sums have come out_ 

of the £650,000. Taking off. £48,000 would reduce the nominal Cbpital to be raised to £012,000 instead of £650,000. · 
-Thereabouts. 

746. 'l'aking off £30,000 as tlie cost o1 management, engineering, and staff in London and Tasmania during the· 
five years that have elapsed since the raising of the money, that would be £78,000 altogether, and £25,000 expressly'· 
recognised by your GovPrnment as to be paid for €xpenses of staffing the new Company under your contract with 
the Company ; £25,000 more to be deducted, that would make £103,uoo to come off the £650,000. Now I will give 
you the fiJ!ures; £15,00~ is the _amount paid to M_r. Aluert Gr~nt, b~ing the ordinary 2A per cent, commission--

Sir l'\fordaunt ..,,. ells obJected to the question as not bemg ev1dPnce. . 
Sir Henry Holland.] I understand that is the statement of their own engineer; you do not go so far as to 

say that that is correct or incorrect ? 
Mr. Fletcher.] I was only endeavouring to aid the Committee by giving the exact figures. 
Chairman.] I do not think, Mr. Fl~tcher, we should take your figures out of your own mouth. What you 

haYe said is, that supposing things were so would t.hat have accounted for it. I do not think it is worth: 
anything tons. If you we.re to say to the witness, "Supposing that the discount and all other expenses· 
amonnt to (as you put it) £118,000, would that merely satisfy the difference between £4800 a mile and £4000 
a mile" and he could say·" Yes" or "No." 

747. Mr'. Fletcher.J Taking off £118,000 from the £650,000, would that account for the difference pointed,ont 
for costs by the engineer? I cannot say that is the exact difference-, but the difference between £4000 and £4800 · 
and something which Mr. Grant speaks of, applietl to the number of miles, would give you the amount. · 

Mr. Michael.] It leaves £GO,OOO still unaccounted for. 
Mr. Fletcher.] \IY e are prepared to give tire figures now if the Committee think fit. 
Sir Mordaunt Wells.] But you ha\'e closed your case. 
Chairman.] 'l'he witness has given a figure und stated it at £17,000, which struck me ns a mistake; you arc·· 

entitled to say to him would the £118,000 preliminary expenses and discount amo,unt to £170,_000. 
Mr. fletcher.] I did put the question, and I understand that that is what the witness is endeavouring to­

show. 
Witness.] £4887.a mile Rpplied to 133 miles. -
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748. Mr. Fletche~.J You lmve made a mistake, have you not; it should be £120,000. I have-not carried it out 

~n fig-ures. 
749. That explains the whole thing. Have you ever hnd called to your attention this amount of money expended 

on the line; the amount published by the Tasmanian Government 1 I have seen the account. . 
750. DoPs that show a sum of nearly £800,000 expended upon the railway as per voucher? It would appear to 

do so; £723,000. ('rhe voucher was handed to the ChuJrman.) . 
751. That shows a sum greatly in excess of the £050,000? Certainly. 
752. And that has been published by your Government? I prPsume so. 

Chairman.] You should not put that in his mouth. That is an account ~igned by the engineer of the 
. . company. It is not published authoritatively as the expenditure; merely as a claim of the company. 

753. Mr. Fletcher.l It is so, no doubt, but I want tu know whether the witness can tell me whether this account 
submitted to us by the Government has ever been questioned in any way? It has not come to my knowledge. 

754. I only want to call attention to this. That is not a statement made by our agent, because the first item fa 
an actual cash expenditure_ on railway as previously shown, on vouchers for payment. (To the Witness.) Have you 
in any way been: advised as to the amount that, according to the contention of your Government, you have taken to 
place this line in order, in· accordance with the terms of your original contract with tho company ? I have no 
authoritative information upon the snhject. Your own eugineer, I am given to understand, and the gentlemen who 
will give evidence Lefore the Committee, have named not less than £100,000, and I find that is generally uccepted in 
~he Colony. 

755. Have you any information, or any sum furnished by any agent of your Govornment, stating the opinion of 
your agent as to the amount that would be required? Nothing official. . 

756. And you are aware that it is a ·very disputed point between the company and_ your Government as to the 
amount it would take to carry out the terms of your contract 1 I do not know that there is a dispute a~ to the 
amount. The dispute between the Government and the Company is ns t.o the sufficiency of the work clone. The 
company contend thnt they have completed the line. 'l'be Government, supported by the opinion of three or four 
expert3, say that they have not completed it, and that it is in a most dangerous state. That is the contention a~ I 
understand it. 

757. But has it not heen worked at the rate of speed ever since March, 1876, which the Government stipulo.ted 
for? I do not know whether it has been regularly worked during that period. I mny tell you that two or three days 
prior to the journey of the gentleman who will give evidence here wns made, the train ran off the roils; and had it 
not been fortunately that the passengers objected to it, there might have been great damage done. 

758. Do let us understand ; does your Government represent to you that it has not been copstructecl in accordance 
with the contract, or that having been constructed in accordance with the contract it is found to be a faulty and 
deficient railway; wl1ich? That it has never been constructed in accordance with the contract; and the experts 
have pronounced that most emphatically. 

759. You are referring to the report of tlie three engineers, and the reply of our engineer to that criticism? Yes. 
760. And is 1hat all the information and instruction you have-from your Government? I-have no instructions 

from the Government beyoncl that of protecting their interests generally. 
761. If this Bill pa5se~, whatever money is laid out on the line you must see that it must be an improvement to 

that extent, at any rate? I presume so. 
76:2. And you have never had supplied to you by your own a~ents any sum as carried out by the contract? No. 
703. And that is still an open question, and you are not supplied with any definite opinion thereon? Nothing 

definite. 
764. What reason have you suggested that the debentHre holders should give up 1 per cent. instead of 10s., and 

raise £100,000 instead of £50,000? I am not quite suggesting that. I am sugge;ting that the Bill could give power 
to the debenture holders to raise it; but they need not do so unless the money is wanted. 

765. Is there any chance of making the debenture holders concede this hulf per cent. 7 I think so, as the only 
means of getting the interest on their debentures. . 

766. Ii:i the~ face of advice from their own agents·and in the absence of any sum nominated by your own-agents 
IS. to the aniount required? I do not know who the agents of the debenture holders are. 

767. 'l'hey are the agents of the Company? I look upon it that the interests of the Company and the interests of 
the debenture holders are very largely distiuct. 

. 768. May I take it that the ouly objection you have to the principle of this Bill is, that you would rather see 
them empowered to raise £100 than £50 7 I would rather see them empowered to raise sufficient money to 
accomplish the object in view. · 

769. Hnve you any otlier objection to the Bill besides that? Those suggestions that I have already given to the 
Committee; that of givin:r the debenture holders a more derided share in the Government in future. 

770. Do you not think the giving the debenture holders power to vote more than they have at present would give 
them a consirlerable power over the line? If that vote is sufficient to control the shareholders, yes ; if not, no. 

771. But, as 1 unclerstnnd, the debenture holders exceed in amount the ordinary shareholders to a considerable 
extent? The debenture bolclers should be allowed to exercise power proportionate to the stake they have at issue ; I 
ask.nothing- more.. · 

772. Chairman.] I should lilrn to ask you one or two questions; and I win do so very shortly. You wish, in the 
interest of the colony, and of the colony only, two things. One, that it shall be rnornlly :certain that sufficient 
capital will be raised to put the line into efficient order; and the other, that the management of the line should L,e 
more in the hands of those who are chiefly interested, and less in the hands of those who, in your view, have 
mismanaged it iu pnst times. Is that solely what you want-? To that I would add the desire that the Government 
should be represented by one official director. 

7i3. Now, you have not been cross-examined on that point by the other side. The Government themselves, 
with their eyes open, having made a contract with the Company, knowing well the constitution of that Company, 
ancl that contract not having be.en satisfactory to them, why should they now say that they are entitled to this 
addi1ional consideration, which they do not ask for in the first instance, because they have a contingent liability 
which is very large, and can only be reduced by putting that line into thorough working order 7 The liabilities will 
be reduced by the earning, of the line, if the line can be put in a position to earn something~ 

'i-74. That is perfectly true, that that state of things existed when the contract was made; and if the Government 
failed to take the precaution which in prudence they could have taken at the time, why should we here give them 
that additional security? 1:or the benefit of those who found the money to·carry out this work. 

775. That is to say you ask that, not in the interests of the Government, or to make up for some omission on 
their part, when they made the contract, but solely in the interests of' the bondholders 7 Quite so. 

770. But yon appear here in the interest of the Government? 'l'he interests of the bondholders are the interests 
of the Government. The community at large will benefit by completing the line, and the only way of ·c·ompleting 
the line is to rai~e the capital; it is only through 'the bondholders that capital can be raised ; therefore, the community 
at larg-e can only be benefited l,y giving power to the bondholders to enable them to complete the·Jine. 

777. Then you think the bondholders should have better security for their own interests, and that there should 
be the appointment of a Government director, in addition to the-other directors whom they arc to elect•? I do not 
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for a moment contend that the Government has any interest in the niatt(lr. The Government !ms a)ready paid scinie 
£100,000 for the construction of the work, and has got a contingent liauility extending over 32 years, so that it 
cannot be said to be ,vithout any interest in the success of the Company. . .. 

778. Bµt I ask· you iii what respect they have now a larger contingent interest than they had originally; why 
should we arnend their contract when they failed originally to take 'this? 'l'hat is a question for th'e Co~mittee to 
decide. Iain 'not h'ere to appro've of the steps originally taken by the Government to get the railway constructed. It 
is one which new communities comi:I1only adopt, and in years past it was not uncom1i:ion in this cou11try. The colonies 
Ji.ave now begun to find out that it is a mi~taken way of getting their railways constructed, and they have discontinued 
~ . 

. 779:. And you ask us here to take advantage of this Bill to amend it? I ask iiotbing but 'what is to the interest 
of all ·con'cefried-. . . , . 

780. I think I quite understand on what grounds you make that prorosal? The interest, I should say, of the 
Government, if I were advocating them, would be to defeat this Bill, if it is possible, altogether: I do not a<lvor.'ate 
that for ·a m'orne'nt,- I say, '' Amend the Bill so 'as to give to those who found the money the power of exercising their 
right." · 
. , 781. Mr. Arthu·r Mills.] So far as your evidence goes you are not fighting the battle of the bondholders, you are 

fighting the battle of the Governme11t? I am fighting the battle of the community represented by the Government, 
and endeavonring to get a useful railway. · . . 

782. C.bairnian.] But the Government have not suggested to you that they want to have a representative on the 
board? No. · 

7_83. Then we must take it as your own idea? An idea that is found in other colonies to work well. 
784. Shall sou be prepared to propose to us·tbe precise forms of amendi:uent? . . 

M1·. Michael.] We shall be prepared to bring up a series of clauses, the principal of which the witness has 
'sketched out to you. . . . .. 

785. Mr. Bruce.] You told us you had not heard of this Bill until after it had J!One through the Lords 1 I heard 
that the'r.on1pany was seeking to get the debenture holders to unite with the,'n in getting powers to raise capital. This 
I .understood fir,t could have been done without an Act, but afterwards I believe it was found an Act was necessary. 
The first occasion on ,vhicb J was aware of the contents of the Bill was after it hrid passed the Lords. · . 

786. · Had you hot communication with the promoters afterwards upon the subject; after you had heard it?. 
None except ~ith the chairman m1d one or t\VO others.· I believe the secretary and two directors came to me, and I 
told them th'en wl\at I tell you now, that the only object of the Government was to give to debenture holders or those 
who bad created the property the power of management. . · 

787. Did you give tl1em notice of your intention of corning to this Committee? When they c·ame to me they 
were nlre'a'~y ·owai·e of it. ' 

788. But you neVoi.· gave them ihforrnation as to what your proposals were to be 7 I told them distinctly that 
all I wanted was to secure the completion of the line. I was not then in a position to say that £5u,OOU minus the 
debts would not do that, qut from information I have received since I have reason to believe tha't that is totally 
insufficient; 'the1'efo'i'e I did ·not name any amount, but I told them the object vlas to promote that which would 
facilitate the completion of the work. . 

789. We ·have heai•d that often cn·o·ugh; you bad a dispute with the Company ·at that time; have you ever 
taken any means to sil't'tle that dispute? That dispute is·carrierl on in th0; colony, but hot through me. _· 

790. You do not know whether any means have been taken in the colony to settle it? I cannot answer you 
that satis"facto'rily. l.'c'ah tell you that·the Colonial Government have been constantly urging the completion of the 
line. Th'e conitJai::ty ·allege, I believe, that it is completed, and the e,.:'perts called irt agree with the Government. 

791·. Th'eirthe ·only ·ste'1i, as far as you see, that the Government has taken, has been to call in certain gentlemen, 
whom you call experts, to give a reJJort on the line, which says on:e thing and the repo·rt of the Company's e·ngin·eer 
say's ano'thei·, 1hut ·thei'e ·bas been no means taken to reconcile those statem'ents or to prove them, have thei·e? I 
think you will find there has been more than one e:irnmination of the line. . 

792. There have been tvvo examinations, but there has been no at.temp't made to bring that dispute to a 
settle!'nent? I ·an'I not a1vare. I 'do not see how the dispute can be b1·ought to a settlement unless we can complete 
the line. · 

793. They say certain sums a1·e required to ·complete or improve tlie line, but you c_annot give in any statement 
of what the sum is which the Govemrnent want to expend? 'l'he Government, I think very properly, abstained 
from naming any sum. They say they want the work done, no matter what the cost is. The line is to be put in 
the condition in which the contract prescribes. . 

794. I u"ride1;stand you that that means in a condition that satisfied the engineers they employ, not the others; , 
was any umpire pr,oposed? I am not aware. I should say if the Company had reliance in their assertions that tl1e 
line is 'com·pJe'ted, 'they \fotlld have bee·n the first to suggest submit.ting to an umpire. 

795. I merely mention it because it seems we are in some difficulty here as to the point raised by the assertions 
made by the Company, and those gentlemen make other assertions, and we have nothing that we can trust? --­

Mr. Fletcher.] And we have not, because we have never been furnished with any H(!Cotrnt. 
796. Mr. Bruce.] I a'sked, in the last question, whether they ever made any application for an umpire? I 

am ii ot it \\'a fo. 
797; Mi·. Arthur Mills.] w·as the Co'mp'any consulted at all in reference to this selection? The Government_ 

of Victqria w~~. I believe,. consulted by the Government of Tasmania to select an engineer in whom they bad 
thorough con'fideii'ce, fo orde'i· that the Govern·rnent of 'l'asrnariia might not be supposed to be biassed in selecting ;i . 
man of their own choice, and this gentleman was sent down ; but other three gentlemen were subsequently ~ent, and 
they were selected, I believe, by three of the 'Colonial Governments, and we may suppose he was most impartially 
selected. 

798. When these engineers were selected, was there any attempt made to get the concurrence of the Compl\ny 
in the selection? We have no evidence of tha't. The Governments of South Australia, Queensland, and New South 
Wales selected the gentlemen that were appointed. 

799. 'Sir Heni.'y Holland.] Asshming that the other amendments that you Lave suggested were made in the 
Bill, do .you still.think that the £50,000 is so very much under the amount that would be required that it ·would be 
useless· io p:ri>'ceed ·,vi'th the Bill? I believe so. · 

800 .. Do. you not think that if the other amendments were made, and if the Bill were passed, the Company 
g'etting'.tbi~ £50;000, and getting to, a certain extent out of their difficulties, meeting to a certain extent their ; 
debtors, and also the demands of the Tasmanian Government, they '".oultl then be in .a condition either to raise 
another 'su~n of 'nioz'iey·by corning to Parliament, or by issuing some of ·their unissued shares? I think the chairman 
of th.e Cgmmittee wil~ give you the best evideuce as to the probable value ·of their shares in a case of that kind, but 
I should haraiy ·e,x'pect tha't he would be able to raise any capital after spending- a portion of this £50,000, and 
finding i't 'inad.eqtiafo, be'c'a'use of the t1Iifinished condition of the line. . 

801. I quite u'n1lerstan<l there would he rnme difficulty, now the Bill has advanced so far in altering it so far as 
to raise £JOO,OOO, instead of £50,UOO, but I ,vant to know whether it would not be better to go on with ~his BilJ, 
assuming'tbe·'otber •i\.rirendments were ·adopted, ·and if tlio £50,000 were got, would not that put the Company in a 
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botter comlit.ion, and onablo thrm to go on? Otherwise, if the Bill is not p,tssed it seems agreed on all hanrls there 
,must be liquida•ion? Tho sooner it cnmes to that the better, unless they can raise money enough to finish the line. 

802. Mr. Bruce.] Th11t nIPans they should raise money enough to finish the line according to your idea? 
_According lo tlrn ideas of' the practical men who have been callPCI in, or if it is retcrrod to some other en;,!'inecrs 
,agreed upon between the two P"rties, it woul,I be acconli11g to their iueas. · 
· 803. Chnirmnn.] I suppose yo11 notice that the en;,dneers who havo bePn called in have said that certain 
,_expenditure may bi, necessary beyond what is insisteu upo11 by the contruct? Yes. 

804. Fo1· iustnnct!, they have eoml'lained, I am speaking- from memory, of the weight of the rnils, thrrngh the 
rails actually put in are the rails provi,led in the contract? 1 imagine that no expenuiture involvet.l from those 
causes would be required unde1· the contract by the Government. 

805. At n11y rate, if' the Govl•rnment. hitvc made a contrnct injudicious in theae respects. nnd which requirrs VJ bo 
11uppfomented by fur1he1: expenditure, it is uot for them to ,a_1· hero thnt the company is bound to make all that 

.exp,,nditure before they will mnke a fur1her arrangement wi1h tht>m? Not the least. 'J'he company are only 
required, and the Government can only require them, to fulfil the condi1ions of their contract. The rails ha\'e been 
objected to, not simply '"'Cause of 1lwir WPigbt, the (fovr.r11ment having bP.en awurn that they were only 40 lh. rail~, 
\mt thPy have lwen oLjectt>d to brcause tlwy were of bud manufacture; a number of them were rrjr.cted liy the 
Indian Govn11mpnt, with tlw Ir11lian Government ~till upon thrm whr>n they were inspecteu; therefore they yielded 
to a drgrc•e of wear and tear whicl1 they would not otlwrwise have done. 

806. But the point I \\'ish to have clearly from you,,fa that it does not follow becanse certain engineers have said 
a certain cx11cnditurri must be incurred on the railway, therefore the whole of tl,at expenditure ought to Le iucurreµ. 
on the c11ntrnl·t 7 No. 

807. 'J'he inquiry has been nrndP, what wns to happen if the Go\'ernmenl. and the Company do not agree, and if 
the Go,·rrnmcnt 1wr~i~t in refusing to pay them £:J:2,500 a year, which tlwy nre bound to pay. I ~uppose the 
remedy is i11 the 'l'as11mnia11 Suprnne Ct>urt? · I premme so, but I may say 1hat tlrn Govorrnmmt will not obj!ict to 
nny rc•asonuhle mod,_. of sell ling- the thing. If the company Wl'l'll cont,•nt to jnin the Government in sc.-lecting- some 
~!llinent enginrer who ~houhl decide the question, and un engineer ouly can do it, I fancy they 11 ould Le met fully 
and willingly by the Gnver11m1•nt. 
· 811tl. 1 would say that the t .. rms of the contract Wl'rri ~uch, tlrnt any fresh contra.et can be Fettled through a suit 
in the Supreme Court ,,f' 'l'asmmdn; tlw Gov(•rurnent do not stand in the pusition of being absolute musters of the 

.Company so that the Compa1,y have no rPmcdy? Certui11ly not. · 
809. Whatever ca11 Le referred to arLitration; the con:ra.ct seems to be vei·y yague on that; is only an outside 

remedy 7 Y,-a. · 
81U. Mr. Herscltell.] Thrre is no oustncle 1o taking it to the S11prPme Court? None. 

· Mr. Pletcher.] We distinctl,v offi,red in SeptPmber to rPfor it and withdraw the action thPn penrling, which 
was followed I,~, the le1ter of tl,10 14th of April. in which they sny ,they hope that will be a final solut1011. 

Mr. H r.rs1•l11•ll.] Do you mean an action had been commenced? 
Mr. l]letcher.] Yes, 
Sir 1-1 enry I I olland. l One of the MembPrs of the GoY('rnmPnt snii.l he thought the Government was 

inclinecl to arLitra1e, all() they ~uid they were ready to withdl'l1W their cluim. 
Mr. Fletcher.] Then comes the letter of 1he 141h, in which thr.y them,elves, in nnswer to ou1· chairnmn, 

said 1hey !roped they would come to a fi11al anrl satisfactoi·y solution of the point in issue. · 
· W it11t'SS.] I ,vas uot a wan: of the existence of that letter. 

[The Witness withdrew. 
Sir Mordaunt. Wrlls sni,I it had been sug~r.sted by Mr. Michael that clauses would be brougl1t up wh:ch 

would necc•~sarily involve a material altl!rution in the Bill, aud 1,eforo the case weut on nny further he ought 
_to kw,w what th!'se claus,·s wrre, othPrwi,e he harl an iml'orfoet case. 

Alter some di~cus~iou the Chairman said rho Committee 11ere of opinion that these were matters of detail, 
whi1·h could well he di~cussed when tlw claus&s were Lrought forward. 

Sir Mordaunt Wells then addressed the Committee on behalf of tl1e bonr.!holders. 
[ Adjourned till To-morrow, at Tweh-e o'clock. 

Fnrn.tY, 2:!ND juNE, 1877. 

Sir Mordaunt \Yrlls was further heard to address the Committee in ·support of the Petition of James Huy and 
others ngnimt the Bill. · 

l\l r. P(•mbroke Stephens stated that lie would examine Mr. Williams on behalf of Mr. Saunders, who was not 
now present.. 

Mr. Henry Jones Williams, sworn; Examined by Mr. Pembroke Stephens. 

811. Are you thti G1meral 81•crerary of' the Standard Life Assurance Company? I am. 
812. ls that 11 company with large 1ra11sactions, and with powers ot app11i11tmg managers aud trustees? Yes. 
813. Thore arP, I belicve, three trustees of the Staudard Company, who act for them, and who have peti.ioncd 

in due form? Yes. 
- . 814. Ami you arc well acquainted with the proceedings of the Company, and arc in a position to state what has 

passrd upon 1his Bill? Yes. · 
815. What is the amount of honds held by your Company? £33,500 now. 
81 G. \\' ere the Lonrls rPgularly taken up and paid for hy your Company? They were original bonds, 
817. ,viiat. was it that i11duc~d the Standard Company to do so? Au i11vt'S_trnent. 
818. Had tlwy before 1hem at the timP the prospectus of I he Hailwuy Company? Yes. 
819. That !S thll prospPctus which has been aln~ady put in? Y,·s, tire prospectus already put in. 
8:!0. N11w upon that, as we know, you receivnl interest fur a certain time when it ceased? Up to the 1st ot 

A11ril last yPar. · 
821. Tlmt. cPssation led, of course, to communications between persons who wore interested in the Railway 

Cornpnny? Yes, · 
822. In the month of Or,tobcr last were sugge8tiuns made to you in reference to the unfortunate position of 

thing-a whic·h Imel arisen? Y,·s. · 
· -ti~:J. Hae! 1 he rlirecrors oft.he Railway Company interviews with you on the subject_? Yes; _I was a member of 

n commitlPll appointed to co11li•r with them. _ 
824. Were any repr .. s,•ntation, put ueforo you ns to the amount of money which it would be desirable to raise 

for the purposes of tlrn Corn puny 1 It w;1s discussed by the committee, generally, and the directors of' the Company. 
8:?5. A11t.l from 1he information thPn before you, what sum was mentioned as what would be desiraLle _to obtain? 

Various sums wr•re mentioned, but it was presumed that £50,IJO0 would be ample. , 
82G. Eor what purpose w.as that Bum of £50,000 required? Partly to complete the railway on the terms 



supposed to be reqt1ired by the Government, and partly to pay the arrears of interest and other matters which had 
been suspPnrfod. ' 

. 827. Was it part of the consideration at that time that the raising of this sum would place the Company in a 
better position· to deal with tht! Government? Clt>arly; it was supposed to lie for that chief object in so tl1.1ing. 
· 82::!. And with a view to the resumption of tlrn payment of interest under the coHtract? Yes,, because the 

interest was sus1,ended till the contract was completed to the satisfartion ot' the Government. · 
· 820. Was the main ol,j,,ct frt all these negociatious to complete the line and satbfy the .Government, and get.a 

reneweil payment of the guarantee? Yes. 
830, Wer" any representations madP. to yoµ as to the possibility of procPedings heing taken i.o win,! up the 

Company? Yes, it was discussed generally that such a thing would be very likely, the Company having no funds 
to fall Lack upon. . 

831. Do you remember any suggestion or statPment being made to you by the Chairman of the Company? It 
was suggested gc•nerally at a committee i11 the first rnst.ance that some bondhol<for or other should endeavour to, i',l 
fact, prott'ct the i111erests of the whole Comptlny gcnerallv, by filing a petition for the sake of simply preventing 
others from doing it. • 
· 832. The Standard Company, I believP_, ,lid not themselves take any steps with that objPct; they did nnt them-

seh·es prP~e11t any petition to the Court ot Chancery? They did subsequently. Mr. Campbell presented it first, 
and t.Jrn Company subsequently; vrac1ic:ally, the same thing. 

833. Now, a petiiio11 was prrsPntcrl Ly Mr. Campbell, separately, whom I reprernnt? Yes. 
- . . 83-l-. Were his bonds h,,ld a.nd paitl Jor by him eutirely apart from his connection with the Standard Company? 
Enttrely; he was a hol,for before the Standard Company was. 
· 836. As n personal invest,i,ent he hPld bonds of his own? As a wrsonal investment. 

830. He happrned also to be one oi the members of the Standard Compa11y, but his investment in respect of 
which he pPtitioned was tiis own inve~tnient? Quite so; and I be!ieve prior to that of the Standard Company. 

f:37. Was there a meeting- of shareholders and debenture-holders on the 7th of Decemper, as we lmve heard'? 
I believe so. I was nut present, but I believe so. 

838. Was tlwre a circular put before that meeting which became tlie basis of' the Bill which was .afterward3 
illtroduced? Yes. · · · 

839. As for as you conlrl a~certain at that tim11, was the Bill based upon, all the information which was then 
before the parties? The Rill was uot ihen tramrd at the time of this circular. 

· 810. 'l'hat, of course, would be the 7tl, of Dec,·mber, nnd the I3ill would he lorlgPCl some time later_; l,ut what 
I.mean is this, was the Bill the result of the information which then existed; it was not kept back from any person 
in any way? No. · · · · 

841. I um told the meeting wns on the 7th, and that afterwards on the 10th, there was a circular sent round 
• embodying the rrsolutions passer! aucl explain in.!! what was done? Yes. 

. 8~2. And n~ the result ol that the Bill was framed upon those lines? The original Bill. 
· · 843. And we:-e the dir,•ctors of the Company assenting parties to the Bill, and taking part in and knowing nil 

about the nezocintions? Yes. 
844. Aud the first movement was that Mr. Clements appeared on the scene some two months later, in February? 

Yes. , 
845; Did the Standard Company, at the time they took part in the~e .procrl'dings, brma fide believe that the Bill 

would be introduced and carried through by the directors in the shape in which it had been originally produced? 
Ye~ . . · . 

810. And was it with tlint beliefancl expectation thnt they entered into the mnt!er? Yes. 
. 8~7. Now, taking it very shortly, ·you have seen the amendments of course which have now beeome the altereil 

Bill? y t'S. , . • 

8.18. y,,u have probably formed an opinion with regard to those amendments? Yes. . 
849. Will you Le good enough to express it? The two olijPctions that I consi,ler the stronge,t against the Bill . 

are that, the coupons being funded, any outsidt> cre..iitor, if the money \\'aS not sutticicmt. conlil step in a11d apply for 
liquidation; while the ho11dholders, ourselv1,s, of course, amongst them, would Le absolutely precluclet! from so 
doing. The other point is, as to the money 10 lie rahed, the £5ll,OOO; I personally wus uever of opinion that it 
,fould be suffici~nt t:,r all purposes to rt!sume tho guara111ee; but under the _circumstances, with nothi"g, in .my 
opinion, but liquidation as an nlterr,ative, and knowing the great Jrn<,Wlf'dge in railwa_,. matters of the Chairman of 
the Hailwuy Company, and his Lrlief in tl1Pir own Engi)J.el'r am! his estimate, I thought that it was the best alterna­
tive of the two, hoping that the £50,00tJ migh_t be suffident for the purpose; b111. the grPat object of all being that 
the Railway musr. be kept going by the Coml'any, an,J there being no fun,Js at the back of it, that even asmmi,,g the 
£50,0UU were sufficient to restore the guarantPe, the very tir~t br~uk in the eo11ti11uou, running of the railway, or 
deficiency of ·any kind, would still have t<J he mmle up by the bondholders. thern b,-ing no funds of the Compu11y to·· 
fall back upo11; and ther1•fore, although it was ussented·to as the ol'iginal Bill, it was ~till with great hesitation, as, in 
fact, the least of two evils. . . . 

. 85_0. I was just, coming to that; have tlie Standard Company been asked from time to time to assent to thess 
altera11011s? Yes. 

851. Have they steadfustly refusrd to do so? They have. 
· 85~. D;d they consider that they had made as bondltoltlcrs very large concessions in assenting to the original. 

Bill? Thev did. 
85!3. A·nd was it as a part of a g1mernl arrangement embodied in the Bill that they gave that consent? Yes. 
8;'.;4. Not as a naked co11sent to the reduction of inti,ri,st, but as part of the g,1neral arrangement embodiet.l i11 the 

Bill? Yes, for the purpose of securing the payment of the interest again. . 
85~. Did you at all consider that it woult.l he open to any person to take advantage of that concession made by 

you as1rnrt of the gPneral arra11gt>me11t, and apply it tor other ancl different purposes? No, it did not ocrur 10 me. 
Chairman. J Your question was, "What are your objections to the amendments in the present LJill .?" and 

the witness ltas gone for from thar, • 
Mr. Pembroke l:;teplwns.] You have exr,lainetl, I think, your feeling with regard to the coupons; now will 

you tur11 your attention to the qmistion of th1t voting. 
Chairman.] I think it would be better to come from Mr. Williams. He said that he had several objections; 

he rold us one; will he give us I he others. 
Mr. Pembfoke Steplwus j Will ~·ou kindly give, in order, the rest of your .objectiotis. Thi~ is the Bill as 

it cam_e fro~ the House of Lords (handing a copy of the nm to th~ Witness). Will you tell the Committee 
your object1011s to thut Bill. · 

856. Mr. ·v enables. l ls that pt•per in your hands n Hst of your objections? Yes; thC're are only two. 
85i. You do not know them without. reading them? Yes, l do; you may have my paper, if' you likr.. 
858. Chairman.] Now what is your second objection? The second objection is the mode in which tlu! power.or 

the ap1,lieation of the money to be raised is provided for. By that as !,understand i11 the event of the debts being 
larger thnn are supposed, or were SUJ'J>••scd by the Hailway Company, the l;ulk of it might be applied to pay the 
delits, instead of the bulk of it being put in to the railway itselt; and thereby defeat the object of renewing the 
~ ' .. 
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Governmi•nt guarantee ; the real object of raising the money being to resun:ie the ·Government guarantee. Tho~ 
are all the objections I have. . 

· 859. Mr. Pembroke Stephens.] Those are you'r two main obJections to the .Bill I uncierstO:nd you. Now_ would 
the Standard Company have originally joined in ·a Bill fo'r tlie purp'ose of.raising m'oney at the cxpc11se of the bond­
holders, merely for the 1mrpose of paying outside debts as 'distin_guished from expenditure fo corn plcte the line? No. 

, 860. You are aware, are you not, that fo the Bill as originally deposited, the pciiver of vciting by the bondholcicrs 
was distinct? In the original Bill, Yes. 

861. And absolute? Yes. _ _ , .. , . _ . , . . _ . 
862. That they were to have that power, and thn't was part of the general arrangement? Yes. 
863, And-you have heard Sir Penrose Julyan say that he also'concurs in that opinion; now will yc;m·give your 

view as regards the change which is made by the amended Bill; would. you think that it would be better that the 
power of voting should be distinct, o·r conditional, as now p'ro·posed? That it should be distinct on the part of the 
bondholders, that they should have the pow'er as we presumed they ,vould origin'nlly have. At present that power 
rests with the shareholders to say to what degree or extent·; I mean by the amended Bill. 

864. Is it the fact that the Bill, as originally. deposited, was one complete scheme, whereas the Bill, as now 
before the Committee, is a Bill by which, as we see in Clause 2-. --

'Mr. Venables. That is your opinion; I should like to have Mr. Willirtms's. 
Chairman.] .":e are very ai;ix,ious to get these ans1vers rathP.r froni M'r. Willio:ms than from counsel. Mi-.· 

Wilfotms told us he 'had only t,vo objectio_ns 'to the Bill.; you are going to ·a third. . , 
: '865. Mr. Pembroke Stephens.'] I think he meant l\vo ·rn:ain objections. ('ro th<l Witness.) Ha\i'e you considered 

the effect.of Clause 2, and the words "to determine upon ·0:11 oi- any 'of the things hereinafter in this sectio11 riuin-
tioned ?" Yes. . 

'866. Will you give ydui- opinion upon that i!S compared ,'dtli ti-ie orig'innf BI!? ,I 'am \:iiiund to say, that J; did 
i;iot think tlie ·votin'g power'of such great 'impor'tunce as I·am now iriclined· to ·att'a:ch to it since the 'ri1eeting of this 
Co'ili'Iriitiee. . . . , 

. 867. Will you explain what has led you to that conclusion? The evideilce o'f Sir Penrose Julyan yesterday liid 
nie greatly- to that. - . . 

. 868. You have hearcl my lear_n(:]d friend Sir Moruaunt Wells' observations with regard to the position of 'the 
Cofupany and to the ,vant of funds? Yes. . . · 

869. It is a fact, is it not, that tjiey·nave, outside \vhat .they Hia'y get, oufside'/i.ny arrangements which the'y may 
make with thid:iondhold·ers, no funds whatever? That, I believe, strictly to br. the'case; . , 

·970, Wus that'J:esult'of their legal°position pi.'esen't'to.-the mintl ·of your Co.mpo.ny ,vlien they considered the 
original questions as to winding·up 1 . Yes, . , -' .. , . , .. . , , . , . . . · · 

· 871'. Was it ,vithin the scope of the ComlJlittee and the geriU!:]rµen who were iieti11g wJ!~n it was s1.1ggestedlhat 
a petition should be taken _by the bondholders 'to prevent. 'the possibility of 'action by- all on'tsidA 'creditor? It was. 

87_2. At the time when 'the 'p_etttio'n \vas put upon the file of the Court of_ Chancery, it ,va:s distinctly 'the view 
of'tlie Railway Company themselves thiit that ,vould be an expedient course \vith a 'vie,y to prevent ari'y risk of 
winding up by outside creditor~? By i).DY creditors. . . . ,· , _ _ . .. . . . . . 
· . 873. Assuming that this Bill'passed in its ameriiled_ shape, and 'the pmver of any petitioning by the bondhold~rs 

wer,e taken away by the suspension of their claim for two year8, hav~ you c,onside~ed wjiat the effect of thut _)v.ould 
be.as reverting'to 'theposition'of things last year? Yes, I 'believe tluit if'thn:t ,vere the case 'the Com·pany wi:iuld be 
in •liquidation immediately. . . 

874. Of course the danger against which the Company desired to guard last year would be revived now urider 
their own Bill ? I believe so. , 

, '875. Chairman.] You mean when you say "'iinmedfately," immerliately on the agreement being 'completed'? 
I imagine that if some Bill does not pass there is nothing but Iiquidati9n. , 

.. 876. When you said" immediately," you mean immediately on the agreement being completed that brought the 
Act into operation? Yes. · . 

· 877. Mr. Pembroke Stephi3ris.] ,Ihelie~·.e the i~t~~r which ,vis ridt read ·at the 'meeting cif the bondholders 
alid shareholders emanated, did it not, from your Company?_ , It did. . . . , . , 

· '878. It was written at your instance'; ·and Was it desired that it should 'go befo~e 'that meeting ·as the·expressfon 
o'f ·your views as bondholdei;s? Yes. . , 

879. I believe the letter ·was written in duplicate, 'and r:ierit to 'the Secreta1;v as ,veil ·as 'the Chairman? Yes. . 
· 880._ The Chairman may have 'ohly<received his copy shortly before the meeting'; but was the letter sent in good 

time to the Secretary ? It was. . -
Mr. Venables.] The time is given; _it ~n:s te~'o'clock oh Mi?nday foorn'ing an_d the_'meetiri&" ,vas at 12. . ... 

881. ·Mr. Pembroke Stephens.] Your Company attached· great impor~nnce to that letter, which was not put 
before the meeting? We did. 

882. Did you hope and 'expect \~heh you 'wrote tli:at letter-' -· 
Mr. Venables.] Mr. Williams did not write it. · ' · . . 

883. Mr. Pembroke Stephens, l Wh~n the f'ompariy'authorised and 'forwarded that lett.er, did 'thef hope that it 
wquld have an influence upon the decision of the meeting? .. They did. . , : . . 

. !384. ls it true, as suggested, that the Company were in any way represented at 'that 'meeting? Not the 
Staiidnrd Company. . - . 

885. They forwarded the letter officially, with a request that it might be read; they believed that it would be· 
read,an'd they did not attend? ·our·solicitor forwarded it, · 

Cross-examined by Mr. Venables.· 
886. You say 'the Standard Company 'were not ,repres~p.ted at t110 meeting; were .you there ·yourself? No. 
887. Nor anybody o~ ~ehalf of th~, Company? No, 'n'ot tp my Knowledge. 
888. You do not know what happened? Not on the'occasion of the meeting1 , 

_ 889. You do not happen to know whether some of the views in the letter were urged ·by ·other ,people 'in the 
course of discussion? I ,vas not there aricl cannotsn:y. - . . 

890. You said that you did not originally attach much importance. to 'the question of 'votes ? Not so much as 
since the meeting·of the 'i:ommittee. · , 

891. Until yesterday you wou~d have raised only two objections to the alterations· in the Bill till you heard Sir 
Penrose Julyan's opinion yesterday? I think so. . .. 

892 • .Because I find 't~is 'in the Houie of Lords; yoii were asked at page 28,. at Que·sdon 424, "You jvould then 
be in a position to negociate pn fair. term~ if you,t_h~uirht i! desirable for the sa_le of ·the Railway to ·the Tasmanian 
Government, would you no~? A. 'l}Iider the c;mgrnal' ,Bill, Yes." And then lower down, "Q. Would. you not 
urider the present Bill be in that position? .A. No, besiqe_s t4e bondholders a:ro not to 'have votes in the 'second _Bill 
to the same extent as they are riow voting." . You did'ra/se 'the 'question for what it was 'worth in the House of 
Lords? What you asked mejmit now was what my vie,'v at present is. . 

893. I understood you to 'say·tp.at till yesterday 'you aid :not .attach any 'importance to the question of ~otes ?-
. Chairman.J Ile·said, "I did n·ot thirik it as-iinpi>rtarit'as I do now." · · 



Mr. Venables.] It is fromilo disrespect to Mr. Williams that I do not ask him more questions, because I 
think it is nqw a mntter of argument. . · 

893.* Chairman.] I have a few questions to ask you; do we understand that, so far aR is proposed to detach half 
per cent. from tbe present 5. per cent. to reduce it ro 4! per cent. without any direct consideration, that, if the Bill 
were restored to its original shape, you do not objeet to it? We do not object to it. · 

894. Do I understand also that you do not o~ject to the pre-prefcrel).ce of such a sum as may he necessary t!) 
your present preference, £650,000 bonds ( of which you hold part), if in other respects the securities in the original 
Bil,l ~re given to the pre-preference, whatever sum it may be necessary to put before the £650,000? That last 
question of the £100,000 came so sudclenly upon us-- · 

895. I was going to follow that up in 3, moment? So far as the £50,000 is concerned, we have no ohjcction. 
. 89!,. You said, I think, in the early part of your evidence, that you were impressed with the prol>able necessity 
of this being more than £50,000? I hnve always felt so myself. · · 
· 897. If it should be found necessary to insert in this Bill power to go beyond £50,000, if the securities in the 

. original Bill are givel!, would you be satisfied? If we could get any indication that it would be sufficient to restore 
the guarantee of the Government; that is our difficulty. · 

898. If powel' were given to create pre-preference of a larger sum than £50,000, say £100,000, and you were 
satisfied that that would restore the finaucial position of the Company, you woul4 not, on principle, object to that? 
No. 

'· 899. And you would not object to its being left to three-fourths of the bondholders to assent to that? No. 
9_00. With respect to the powers of the bondholders to elect, do I understand you that you would be satisfied to 

give them votes ab~olutely, and that you would not require the condition, which Sir Penrose Julyan suggested 
yesterday, that they should separately elect a certain 11umber of directors ? No. . · 

901. You would be satisfied with the provi::ion of the original Bill 1 Yes, with the provision of the original Bill. 
902. Then, taking it altogether, the original Bill would satisfy you, although the sum to be pre-preferred were 

greater, if you were satisfied that that would put the Company straight? Yes, it thoroughly satisfied that it would· 
s.atisfy the Government, apd they would resume their guarantee in consequence thereof: . . · 

903. You would not require that the Government should both resume their guarantee and pay off the amoun~ 
which they have refused to pay during the non-efficiency of the line 7 There has been some misunderstanding oii 
th~t. It was believed by ourselves, and I believe by the Railway Company that it was merely suspended, and that· 
it would be repaid when the line was put in thorough order. 

904. But now you have heard the contract and correspondence read, I presume you see that that is out of 
the question? Quite so; and it makes me the more diffident about the Bill passing at all, because the Railway· 
Company are still bound t_o keep it going, and if this money is invested properly in payment of all-the debts and 
J;'!)Stori11g the line, there is no fund to fall back upon by which the line can he dealt with and kept in order. 

905. Supposing you were satisfied as to the restoring of the financial position of the Company by a proper 
amount being raised, and by the contract being in hands satisfactory to the bondholders in the way you liave 
expressed, would you then insist upon the condition that the coupons should not be funded? I would. 

906. Even then? Even then, 
907. Even although you were entirely satisfied as to the financial position of the Company? Even although 

that was the case. · · 
· · 908. Mr. Arthur Mills.] Yesterday Mr. Clements was asked this at Question 465: "ls it not your judgment 

that if the Bill is passed, as framer!, there would Im a reasonable probabiffty or certainty of getting the money;" 
and Mr. Clements said in reply, "My own clients, the Anglo-Italian Bank, have promised that if the Bill does pass, 
as it stands, they will find p;irt of it; and I have no reasonable doubt that the remainder will be found without serious 
difficulty." In reference to the concluding part of that answer, do you agree with Mr. Clements? Not at all ; I· 
think there would be great difficulty. · · 

909. Mr. Bruce,l You say you would require in order to be satisfied with this Bill, to be satisfied that the sum 
so raised would fill the requirements of the Government; have you any knowledge what the requirements of tlJ.e 
Government are? No; 

910. The Government has never favoured you with any statement of that1 Never; nothing but what we had 
heard yesterday, anrl I may say that the railway company equally do not know. 

911. Chairman.] I pre~ume that if the Bill passed in such a state as that you would be willing to accept it, or, 
if it passed at all before the agreement was made between the three-fourtl;s of the b_ondholders and the share­
holders, you, as a bondholder, would wish to be satisfied in some shape as to the vie_ws of the Government 7 Yes. 

912. Sir Henry Hollancl. 1 Have_ you seen some amendments which have been suggested by Sir Penrose 
Julyan 1 l saw them hurriedly this morning. · 

913. Have you had- an opportunity to make up your mind as to whether they would be desirable or not? I 
should like a little more time so to do. · 

' ['l'he Witness withdrew. 
_ In answer to a question from the Chairman (who stated that one of the seven Members of the Committee 
was abroad), Counsel assented to _the quorum being four. · 

Mr. Edgar Christmas Harvie, sworn.; Examined by Sir Mordaµnt Wells. 
914. You are one or'the firm of M inet, Smith, & Harvie, se,licitors? I am. 
915. And you are solicitors to the Standard Life Assurance Company 1 We are. 
91 (;l. Have yon had the conduct of the opposition to this Bill? I have. 
917. And are you thoroughly acquainted with all the matters connected with it? I am. . 
918. Now, I will not go over any of the facts stated by the last witness; did you, on behalf of the Stan.dard Life 

Office, negociate with the solicitors representing the directors, in reference to the original-Bill deposited? ,v_e did. 
919. There was a meeting; was there not, on the 7th of December? There was a meeting on the 7th 'of, 

Decembe_r; but the negociatiom which you speak of on the deposi red Bill took place a few days afterwards. · 
920. Now, as represer,ting the Standard Officp, nnd having the responsibility of conducting the case, d_id you, on 

behalf of your clients, agree substantially with the ·contents of that Bill? With the contents of the Bill, as originally­
. deposited, yes, ~"e did. 

921. And did that Bill receive the full assent of the directors of the railway company 7 I believe so. 
922. I believe that there were one or two unimportant alterations suggested on the· one side and the othe:r? One 

was an important alteration; it was the provision for application of the money; I mean some addition, which was 
a,cccpted to be intro(luced into the Bill. · ' · . 

923. But "there were some other immaterial alterations, wliich made the Bill more workable 7 Yes. 
924. Did the Standard Life OfficP, in conjunction with others, form a working committee, representing the 

bondholders interested 7 The secretary of the Stnndard Life Assurance .Company formed one of. a committee of 
conference, whieh in the earlier p!)rt of the year was instituted to assist the railway directors in their deliberations 
and in thdr correspondence with the Colony. · · · · 

925. Mr. Venables.] The secretary is Mr. Williams? Mr. Williams. 
926. Sir Mordaunt Wl)ll,s.] .Will you state, if you ·please, shortly what took place in reference to the petition 
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that was presented for the winding up of this Compnny? You mean before it was presPnted? I was instructed 
that wbrn the railway company found that it was almost hopeless to olitain any funrls to put tlie line in order, to 
satisfy the Government and revive the :rnarnntee, liquidatiolJ sremed to be inevitable, and the ruilway director! 
sugge,ted to ,Jw Stand,,rd Company, us being the largest bondbolders and responsible people, that they should file a 
petiti,m in the Court of Chancery to wind them up. 

· 027. That petition was pre;;Pnll'd 7 N n, the Standar,l Company liesitnted to do that; but Mr. Campbell, one of 
their directors, who was·J1imsPlf' an in1lependent bondholder for £2000, did so. 
. !J28. But it was with the npproval, was it not. oft.he Standard Life Assurnnce Company? With 1lrn approval 
ot' tlie ~tundril'd Life Assurance Compuny, am! wl1ich in fact met a point which was desired by the chairman of the 
railwa~• company. _ . . 

029. You were in constant cr>mmunication with tlrn directors and the ~olicitors of the comrany; what was the 
object in putting the Standard Office, or lV!r. Campbell, in motion, in reference to this liquidatio11? The object wns, 
l.umlersrood, to prevent out,i,le creditors from 1loing so, and iretting the liquidation into .I heir own hands. 

9:lO. So thut you were acting in ~trict harmony with the dir1•cto1·s 7 We Wl'rP, in dtJing so. 
!J31. Now, then, a Petition was pre~ented i11 the Rolls Court? Ye~, in the Muster ot'tl11• !lolls'~ Court. 
032. Then whnt took placP 7 Before the day for rPturning it wus rPached. a meeting of shareholders and 

debenture holders was convened, and he!,! nt C1!nnon-~tr1•et Hotel on the 7th of DPccm bPr, and I was present 
unofficially there; the liquidation was tleprrcated. nnrl resolutions were pa8sed which, I think, are in evidence 
already, and the meeting expn,ssctl a wish that application ~hould be made to Parliament for powers to rni~e a sum 
not exceeding £50,000, which wns the limit ~luted by the directors as being sufficie11t to put the line in working 
orqei·, and to rntisfy the Tasmanian Governmc•nt. Shortly alter that meeting had broken up the solicitors of the 
promoters met me, anrl w,i a!!Tred to suspend our petitiou for the period of six months, to enable the Bill to be 
passed, the pnrticulars of which bave nlready been beforp, the Committee. 

933. And that wos assented to by Mr. Campbell? Thut was asseute<l to by Mr. Campbell on the terms already 
mentioned. 

93-l. Now you nfterwarcls 1·rceived a circular, clicl you not, which is ~et out at page 36 in the evirlence of the 
Hou~e of Lord~, d9ted the 16th of February; I do not know whether [ am quite correct; did you receive a print of 
the Bill IJPfore receiving the circular; I mPan before tliis circular uf the 12th of Febrn11ry, you had receiveu a print 
of the BiJJ which ·was deposited? That was 1wo months before. The circular of the 16th of February that you refer 
to, wns d1P. ol'igin of the scheme of the shareholdrrs. 

035. Up to the date of the circulnr rverything had gone on quietly and lmrmoniously in reference to that 
deposited Bill?· It had up to the 12th of' Felmrnry. 

936. lr. seemed, di<l it not, to be ncceptrrl by all parties; there was no opposition to it? So far as I understood. 
937. What was the date of the Wharncliffe meeting? I do not remember; bnt tliis circular ha<l no reference, BO 

for as we are concerned, to the ·wharncliffe meeting. 
!)38. Up to the time of the Whnrr,cliffe meeting things had gone on l1armoniously? I believe so. 
!J39. Is .Mr. Venablrs correct in saying that it wus at the instance of' tlmt meeti11g th11t the shareholders'· 

comrnittn• was appointed, and the circular issued 7 I·hm·e no knowledge one wny or the otner. 
Mr. Venables.J Mr. Clements has proved that, and nobody disputes it, 
Sir Mordaunt-Wells.] On recei\'ing this circular did you also receive the Bill as amencled? Yes, I" think 

we clid; as proposed to be amended. 
940. You fou11<l, of cour~r, that the policy indicated by that circular and the amendment in the Bill was 

diametrically opposed to that Bill as deposited? It was. 
9H. Did you find these three substantial alterations; first of all the mode in wl1ich the bondholders were to· 

vote? Thnt was one. 
942. The finding oftlie coupons and the waiving of r he principal? That was another. 

· 943. And the application of the money, the £50,000? Y l'S, that was another. 
944. And did you also find a matnial alteration in reference to a power to give the sharehol1lcrs a certain portion 

of the profits in the event cfa ~ale? Yes, tl1Pre was. 
945. Have you, always rcprPsenting the Standard Office, o~jected strongly to the principle of having the coupons 

funded, and" the claim for payment of the principal waive<l? We always have. 
946. On what grounds? On the grounds tlJut the rights of the company as bondholuers would be forfoitecl, or 

at all eve1,ts seriously pr~judiced, particularly with reference to :\1r, Campbell as a petitioner in the Court of 
Chancery to wind up the Company. 
· Clrnirman. j Jn the interest of brevity I mo kc a suggestion to you; would you mind asking the witness 

whethel' he heard what you said in )"Our speech, and whe1her you described it'accurately; we have hacl it from· 
Mr. Williams and from your uwn· speech, nncl in the letter; it is over and over again the same thing; each of 
us understands it; you could put it, does the witnc,ss agrre with Mr. Williams 7 · 

Sir Mordaunt Wells.] :But this witness, who is a professional man, goes into many questions which Mr. 
Williams does not. • 

Chairman.] But we have had the same story so often, and there does not seem to be any dispute as to the 
facts. 

Sir Mordaunt Wells.] Of course I am bound to follow in thP- course suggested by the Committee. (To the 
witness.) I will pass over sevrral eireumstunces which I was going into in reference to what took pince nft1•r the 
is~uing of that circular and the letter that Wt1S srnt; but it did end in thi3, did it not; k11owi11g that the 
meeting was to be held, you framed the letter, did you 11ot, on the instruc'tions of the Standard Office? Yes. 

947. And that is the letter which has been placed before the Committee this morning? Yes, the letter of the 
14th ot April.. . _ 

948. Now I read a portion of that letter, but thnt letter was intended, was it not, to give information to the body 
of bondholders as to what you considned to be their rights and privileges? It was intended to give them more 
information than the circular of the 10th of April, to which that letter was an answer, appeared to give to the bond-· 
holders. 

049. Now jnst tell the Committee shortly what course you took; you received the circular and what course did 
you take in sending that letter? We received the circular and wrote that answer, ·rn that lhe objections of our clients 
might fully appear in writing, and sent the lette,· to the secr,•tary at 10 o'clock on Monday morning- by hnnd, an<l 
sent n copy to the chairman with a special request, both to the secretary and the chairman, that the letter might be 
read to the meeting. 

950. Besii.les the letter being sent was tliere a private letter addressed both "to the secretary and to the ch1tirman "!' 
No, the letter to the secretary was the original letter itself, ending, "We beg that you will read it to the meeting on 
Monday next before any resolution he proposdd, and we will rely on your doing so; " nn<l then a copy of thnt letter 
wos sent in a separate letter addressed to the eliuirman, a separate letter from me enclosing a copy and requesting 
that the original might be read. · ·· 

051. Of course there was plenty of lime to have had the letter read? If there was not, there would have been· 
ample time to say to us that there had been no time, and thnt we. had better attend the meeting personally, which we 
certainly should have done, had we had .the slightest idea that the_ letter would.not be read. 



,_952. · :Youiacte~ in_-~~r.mony·with the:directors, -~nd,did not thi!1k-that theJe~ter ,would ,be kept ,back'? ·¥e~. 
· 953 •. The -readmg:of the iletter ,;w,ould have-occupied some :10 -mmutes ? :It m1ght ,have been .read for •what 1t ,was 

worth. · 
. '954. ,¥ou •know ,the ,feeling,of,~everal of the bondholders who ·had. approved ,of_ the, d(lposited Bill, -:and. you had 

every reason to hope that the letter would have a very material influence upon the feelings of that meeting? -Lhave 
·.:no:doubt of,that. · 

:955. And· the ·,bondholders knew, .tha,Uhe Standard Office took a -,prominent ,position in the, .matter? .I believe 
they did. 

956. I want to caU your attention to one or two passages in that letter, which I have not gone into myself: "As 
-.r,;Jgards .one-fourth .of the .debenture holders and stockholders, who may object to the making of an agreement con­
.teu;iplated .by .the -Bill, .. the Bill as amended-is not simply an enabling one, as the circular states, ·but a binding one 
when the agreement is made. Your circular states that 'the amendments· have been reduced in substance to two, .but 
.th~y.are .in.fact ,f?ur? all .of which m?re or less affect the. deben_ture holders." _ ··Wh_at is your jutlgment -in reference, 
a_s a matter of prmmple, to the fu~dmg of the coupons; mdepe~dently of the e~~ct 1t may have upon Mr. Campbell'.s 
nght? The effect would be.as.agamst all bondholder~, who-are rn the same pos1t1011 as mol'.\gagees, who advance their 
money on security, that although their interest is suspended, yet the payment of their principal.is waived, and in case 

,.liquidation.should-ensue,.or other mattersintervene, the railway company would ,not ,be in default as.against the 
·bondholders, and thP bondholders could not come to the Court for the protection of their rights, as they other.wise 
,could ,under .the :Present,circumstances. · 

-9?7.· It ,would affect them materially as .regards their rights as creditors, :would it not? ·certainly;, very 
_mnte~rally. ,· 

958. That ·you expressed, of course, in .the ""letter. Now I call your attention to the second point. ·'"-T,he 
. ,shareholders ar.e to ,have.a proportion of the_ proceerls of the sale of the railway, and the proportion is to be determined 
•l?y .the-.agreement." .The original Bill deposited did not -contain any such provision that the shareholders were,,to 

,,have,any,,prqportion? No, :it did not. _ 
959. Did,:you,consider, as-representing the 'Standard· Office, 'that it was a very prejudicial alteration giving the 

.shareholders,an interest which they,.would no_t"h~ve according to 'the ordinary operation of .the law? Yes, because:it 
would make the net amount of assets to be 'd1str1buted among the ·bondholders so much ·less. _ 

960. , You ,would, .as mortgagees, of course .takB precedence of the other. shareholders? We should conterid . .so ; we 
should take precedence of ordinary creditors . 

. 961. ·,Now.I will.take _you ,to another point, which is this: "It is proposed to e:x;pend the £50,000 not oilly''in the 
.. equipment.of the:line, but in discharging all the.liabilities of ,the Company generally." You added, did you.not, an 
',amendment.to the .Bill that,was deposited in reference-to the mode in which the money should be paid 7 · Yes. 
_ 962. W,ill<you .state, if you please, to the .Committee, the reason why you stated in the deposited Bill that it wa~ 
, -to ,be ",to the satisfaction .of tlie, Government of Tasmania 7" · The reason -I did so was, because the main ,object" of 
the measure was to construct-the line, and to put it in such order.as would enable.the _guarantee of the Tasmanian 
Government,to,be revived; and;in the .first.instance, when the deposited Bill was sent to us for approval, we .made a 

,Sl!ggestion ,that-the money should he deposited in the hands of ,trustees who would see to the dne application of it; 
· but that was objected to, and as the next best thing to do it occurred to me, that the framing of the clause in that ,way 
-:would. best meet the-.circurnstances of-the ease. It says that the Bill should state in terms that the money should be 
expended in completing the line to the satisfaction of the Government ofTasmania,- pursuant to the cont!'act. 

963 . .At.that :time .wer~. you under the belief.that the outside debts of the Company did not exceed £10,000? · I 
think.so, certainly,not more. I.did not.hear of any larger sum. 

,-964. ,0f-course, -in-asRenting to .the £50,000 anrl framing the 'Bill, there was a vei;-y important question for you to 
consider, what would be the amount of outside creditors to participate 'in that £50,000 7 Yes. 

965. Your_ clients did not object to .the creditors to the amount of £10,000 being _paid? I think not. 
966. Then,.supposing the outside creditors to receive £10,000 ,were you.then under the impression that £40,000 

.would .be,suflicienUo put the-line in working order, and .to bring back the payment of the interest? I personally 
i;had.nomeans-of.judging of that, because it.would be an engineer's question. · I have heard Mr. Williams say that-in 
:,his opinion £50,000 ,woulrl scarcely have been enough ; but we were assured by the Railway Company that it worild 
.,be a great,deal 1more-than enough, and .I heard the chairman on more than one occasion say so, and that was accepteil. 

9.67.-I say you were under the im,pi-ession ,that:£40,000 would be_ -su'flicient to,put the.line in order? On the 
faith of what the chairman said, certainly. 

:968. Now l,will take you,to another,point,. which"is this: "It is proposed to _give-the· Company power.(if they 
.,think,fit,,but not.otherwise) to confer on the debenture,holders and stockholders a power,to vote;" now you required, 
'did you not, and your requirement is specified in ,the deposited ·Bill, an absolut~ _power of votin1f? Yes. · 

969. In fact, you required, did_you not, that·yom• right of voting should be put on the same basis as the right of 
,,voting of ordinary.shareholders 7 That.was so. 'fhe principle of giving an absolute power to vote was stated at .the 
meeting of the 7.th, of ,Decem her., .called in. consequence of. M-r. · Campbell's pe~ition, and forms part of the ,resolutions ; 
,but, ·-with your-permission, I will read-the.resolutions proposed at that meeting: ·" That in 'the present position and 

,,prospect ofaffairs,between the.Tasmanian Government and t~e 'Com?any, 'it would be highly injurious to the'interests 
ofthe holders of the debenture bonds of the Company and its creditors generally, as.well as the shareholders, that 
any order should be made for winding up the Company. That the directors he ·authorised to apply for Parliamentary 
powers to carry out an arrangement. by which ,tlie Company-may, with the consent of two-thirds in value of the 
bondholders, represented in person or by proxy,,at a special meeting, be empowered to raise, as a first charg·e on, the 
earnings of the Company, a sum not exceeding.fifty thousand pounds, u~on,~uch terms as the dii:ectors may think fit, 

, and further ,to confer. on -the debenture holders of the Company powers of votmg on equal terms with the shareholders." 
9'i0.' ,Did .you, consider that substantially the bondholders were really the 'Company in this case, as ,regards the 

-amount,of money ,that had been found? They so considered themselves, I shoul::I say, because ·that was an _essential 
part of the proposal to raise the £50,000 that they should- ha,e an absolute power to -vote, and that was the.main 
inducement to give up,the 10s. per cent. to form a-fund for interest.on the £50;000. · 

,97-1. -But,now that:You.know more of the,history of this Company than we did when ·the Bill was,in·th(j House 
of,Lords, do . .you see anything in relation to that Compal\y which o~ght to deprive the bondholders of that absolute 
power of voting wl\ich fa in the deposited Bill? No, I s~ould say from information that has come out during-tliis 
inquiry, the absolute.power of voting to the b~nd~olde1:s_ 1s all _the more necessary. .. . -

-972 ... we know ,now pretty well the constitution ot the body of shareholders; that is one 'thmg you know more 
about now than you did before 7 Yes. . 

973,. You also·,know now more.in reference-.to the debts? Yes. 
974. And you see,. do you, not;'.now.a great~r importa:i:10e •in having th~t power in r~gard to dea]ing with any 

·llllm of-money-that,may be empowered in this Bill to be raised? Yes, certamly. 
. ,,97.5.- Dci_, :you see a!so, on looking at ,the evidence given- by the ag~nt of the· Tasmanian G:overnmelit, the 
importance of a body bemg formed that may have the confidence, to a certarn extent, of the Tasmaman Government 
ju dealing:with ,this, question ? Yes, I did. 

,976. You,peard-,the,evidence expressive of an opinion of'the want of confidence in the-mo-ae·in ,vhich the railwa,y 
had hitherto been managed? Yes, I think ,-it was so:stated .by .Sir :Penrose Julyan. 
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977. ·Taking all these circumstances, which have been now disclosed "for the.firet time before this Committee; do all 

.those circumstances lead you to the opinion ·of adhering to the principle embodied in that Bill that was deposited in 
the first in.stance? Do you mean to the whole Bill? 

· . 978. To the deposited Bill as to the power of voting? Certainly, as to the power of voting; the absolute power 
' ~of voting in the first instance. 

. 979. __ Do those circumstances which have been disclosed strengthen or weaken your opinion as to the importance 
of the bondholrlers having the power in their hands of dealing with money that is to be raised? 'fhey strengthen 
my opinion certainly. 

· , Cross-examined by Mr. Venables. 
980. I see that on behalf of your clients you assented, in the course of the negotiations, to a certain share of the 

assets, in the event of a sale going to the shareholders, did you not? We did not formally assent, but we intimated 
'that we did not oppose; it never reached negotiation. 

981. Then you practically assented ? If our other objections bad been conceded we should probably hav 
assented. 

982. You did, in fact, assent to the principle that they should, in such case, have a share of the assets? No; 
not as apart from the rest of the scheme. . 

983. I do not consider you bound to it, except as part of the scheme, but as part of the scheme you assented to 
their having a share? Only in so far as may appear by this letter ot the 14th of April, where you will see it is 

. mentioned as a part of the whole srheme where we said this; it is at page 49 of the Evidence in the House of Lords. 
-You •will see that the question is nsked: "Why should this proportion be left to the Company and three-fourrhs of 

, the debenture and stockholders to determine?" If the principle of allowing some proportion to the sharelwldcr's, 
and we do 11ot oppose it, be conceded; the limit of the proportion ought at least to be named in the Bill. 

. 984. Now will you turn to Question 620. I quote that passage, or part of it, _and then ask you this question, 
·"You adhere to that; you admit the prin<iiple that the shareholders ought to have some proportion if it is sold?" 
And you answer, "The Standard Assurance Company have not dissented from it, and I think if the Bill, as a whole, 
and the clnuseg were agreed to, or the principle of the original Bill assented to, they would be disposed to allow· 

·something." That is what you said, and what you would repeat now? I had forgotten this, but thatquite confirms 
what I have been endeavouring to express to you now. ·· 

985. Now you p•it in the original Bill that the money was to be applied to complete the line to the satisfaction 
of the Tasmanian Government, did you not? Yes. 

986. Were you under the impression then that the Government were entitled to an absolute power of requiring 
you to satisfy them; under the co11tract behveen the Company and the Government, were you under the impression 
that you were bound to complete the line to the ~atisfactiou of the Government? As I read the clause, it appeared 
to me that the Government would not pay the guaranteed interest until the line were put in order to their satistaction. 

987. Where is that in the contrar,t; I do not find it; will you point it out where it is that you are required to 
·complete it to thP satisfaction of'the Government? I allude to Clause No. 6 in the contract. 

988. I think you will find that Clause 6 is the only clause bearing on the question? 'l'hat is the one I refer to. 
· 989. And where is there anything about the satisfaction of the Government? I do not see it expressed in terms, 

but it may mPan so. 
990. Consequently you propose to give the Government a power which under the contract they have not, to 

require tlw thi11g to be completed to their satisfaction? Not necessarily so. , 
991. You did not object, you say, to the payment of £1U,000; what £10,000 did you mean; I suppose you 

mean in round numbers? I mean the same £10,000 11s has been referred to so many times during this inquiry. 
992. Were you aware of the existence of the debts "in 'l'asmania? I might have been aware of it from information. 
993. But were you aware of it? Not specially. 
994. I think I may suggest that you were aware of it specially? I am speakin(J' from memory. 
995. Did you not draw Mr. Campbell's petition for winding up to the Court of Chancery? Yes. 

. 996. Now, in the 7th and last paragraph of that petition you say, "The said Company have no menns of payin(J' 

. the interest due, and to accrue due, on the ~aid debenture bonds, nor any of its debts. Your petitioner has received. 
from the said Company an account of t.he liabilities of the said Company, of which the following is a copy;" and 
here is thr copy. I will read any other part ofit you like, but what I want to call your attention to is this, among 
· thP' liabilities: "Actual liabilities in Tasmania at date of lust advices, 2nd October, 1876, £8200." "Advance received 
from Government si11ce opening of the railway, £3500?" Yes. · . 

997. Then how do you mean that you were not aware of that £8000, and that £3000 7 You arc referring to 
'special figures which lrnve been furnisherl by the Secretary of the Railway Company. ·I cannot be expected to carry 
my memo,·y so far as that, and for the moment I <lid not think of it when the question was asked. 
. 998. But having in your petition copied out the statement of liabilities ( I do not ·mean that you did it with your 
. own hnnd) furnished to you by the Company, surely you were aware that there was, whether you remembered 
· the actual figures or not, a large amount due in Tasmania? I concluded that there must be some debts. 
. 999. I will hand it to you, Sir, and you will find there a large sum of £24,000 for debenture interest, which is, 
of course, among their liabilities; you will also find a little over £10,000 in .Bngland, or about that, and those two 

'items which I mentioned in 'fasmania--
Chairman.J The date is the 9th of December. . 
Mr. Ve11ables.7 Yes, the Bill was not deposited till the eiid of December. 
Cliairman.J The liabilities are dated the 23rd of November. 

Re-examined by Sir Mordaunt Wells. 
l 000. I suppose the statPment contained in the petition had reference to the indebtedness of the Company with 

a viPW of founding the grounds for the winding up? I thiuk so. If I recollect rightly that statement that Mr. 
Venables hus cross-examined me upon was furnished by the Secretary of the Railway Company to ns. I am 

'sp·eaking from memory, liut I think so. · 
1001. The £10,0U0 had relation to the English debts? I think so. · 

, 1002. Of course, the que~r.ion with respect to the amount of indebtedness, if I may call it so, involved in the 
. £25,000, h:is berome almost immater_ial, looking !l,t the large slims which are now required for _putting the line in 
·order? Comparatively so. · 

, 1003. I mean you entertained, and others entertained, a view that some £30,000 or £40,000 would be 
suffii,ient to satisfy tl,e Tasmanian Government; it then became, of ·course, ·a matter of.importance us to the amount 
of tbe outside creditors? Yes. , · 

. 11104. You were th~n acting in concert with the directors in reference to the winding up? At that period. 
1005. I mean when the petition·was presented? Yes, w~ were communicating with them. 
1006. I mean tl1ey approved of what was going on in relerence to the winding up? I cannot say that they 

· approved, but we knew very well that they suggested to us originally to do it, and it arose out of that suggestio_n 
· that the petition was filed, and therefore they ·could not have objected to it. 
. 1007. I will ju~t ask you one other question, which is this : do you approve of the evidence· which is given liy 
·Mr. Williams in reference· to the scheme which be is willing· to sanction; did that further advance at all the 
provisions of the deposited Bill? .As suggested by Sir Penrose-Julyan? 
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,_ .. ·-1008. Yes· •. You approve of the deposited Bill, and whatever the -debts may .be you see the necessity of the 
bondholders being represented? Certainly. _ , 

:1009. Sir Henry Holland.]_. After heering the evidence that has been given before us, do- you think that the 
sum of £100,000 might be properly inserted in the Bill, and usefully inserted, instead of £50,000? If-merely 

·:permissive. 
1010 .. In the amended Bill, which is permissive, you think it is desirable that the bondholders should be 

·empowered to raise £100,000, instead of £,50,000? No doubt, ifit is conclusive in the minds of the Committee that 
,£50,000 is insufficient, it would be better to enlarge the powers and make it £100,000. 

IOU. I am not asking you about the minds of the Committee, but your opinion after having heard .the 
evidence? I think so . 

.- 1012. Do you consider still that absolute power should be given to the debenture holders; that power of course 
if given absolutely would enable them to overrule the shareholders ? Quite so. I think so still, _ -
_ · 1013. Do you go so far as to consider ;;he body of shareholders as a sham body having no real interest at all'! 

'.I would not be prepared to say that from my own knowledge. · . 
· 1014. You inserted in the first Bill, in the original Bill which I understand you prepared, the words on 
·" Capital Account" in the clause, that relates to the distribution of the money that is raised? Yes. 

1015. Those words, as you are aware, are omitted in the amended Bill? Yes. 
1016. I want to know your reason for inserting them in the first Bill, and whether you object to their omission 

in the second? Yes, because the items of the debt, which come under the head of capital account, can easily be 
·arrived at, and it will limit the expenditure; whereas, the omission of those words would enable that money, if 
·raised, to be expended by the directors in payment of all sums, whether on capital or revenue account. 

1017. Therefore, you object to the omission of those words? Yes. 
· 1018. Then with respect to the insertion of the ·words "to the sat~sfaction of the. Colonial Government;'' 
assuming even that the Government had not under contract a right to demand that the work should be constructed 
according to their satisfaction, did you consider that the main object of this Bill being to get, in the interest of the 
Company, the Government to pay the guaranteed interest as soon as possible, it might be desirable, even though the 

·Colonial Government have not a strict right, to give them the power of being satisfied of the railway being put in 
·-good·order 7 Quite so. _ 

1019. That it would lead them the more readily to come to some agreement with you as to the arrears of 
:·guaranteed interest 7 That was the main object in the measure. 

109-0. Chairman,l Perhaps on that last poi11t we are justified in taking that as a suggestion; did you meal!, 
"completing the works to the satisfaction or the Government of Tasmania;" did you not rather mean completing 

.them to the satisfaction of the contract with the Goverument of Tasmania 7 It was meant with regard to the penal 
·clause, No. 6, being.suspended, or not put in force. 

1021. What you meant was, not so much that the Government should express in writing their satisfaction, as 
that the contract with them should be satisfied 7 Certainly, that was the meaning entirely; not to give them any 

'greater power than they had before, but to satisfy the terms of the contract. 
· · 1022. You did not wish to import a ne\V condition into the contract which the Government should, in .writing, 
'state that they were satisfied? Certainly not. . 

1023. You ·have expressed the opinion that, if in other respects the Bill were satisfactory, you would like the 
.margin of' £50,000, that is what could be raised upon 10s. per cent,, carried further, so that if necessary £100,000 
could be raised ? Yes. • 

1024. Have you well considered whether that would be jnst to the one-fourth who would not have to assent, 
inasmuch as no consideration was given for that 7 Speaking personally, the time has been so short that I have not 
had an opportunity of consulting with the Standard Life Assurance Company upon that; but from the evidence that 
has been given, and from the suggestions which have been thrown out by Sir Penrose Julyan, we were willing, .jf 

,the Bill was satisfactory to us in oth~r respe,Jts, and those objectionable clauses which have been referred to that 
would tie the bondholders' hands were struck out, that rather than oppose it altogether we would assent to thl,lt 

·margin. . -· 
1025. ThPre are precedents for trnnsacdons very similar to these in which bondholders have sacrificed-a certain 

·-amount of their interest, but they have generally done so, receiving in exchange a security representing the funded 
value of what they sacrificed; are you prepared to say that it would be just to the bondholders, the Bill being 

·)satisfactory in other respects, to sacrifice so much as a fifth of their whole interest without that interest being in anv 
, shape funded? I can only say so for the whole body of the bondholders ; but represe11ting the company I think that 
· by way of concession, and with a view to thB ultimate object in view being carried out, if necessary, . they must 
submit. 

1026. You confirm, therefore, what Mr. Williams said on that 7 Quite so. 
1027, Mr. Bruce.] I will ask you a question in reference to an answer you gave to Sir Henry Holland; you 

said that you prefer the original Bill as confining the expenditure of money to debts incurred on capital account? 
,Yes. 

1028. Npw it has been in evidence befor:i us that during a certain period the company have lost money in the 
working of the line, the earlier period, and that a debt has been incurred which is not certainly a capital debt; how 
would you propose to meet that? I think it could be met by a provision in the Bill limiting the application of the 

cmoney raised-to ·expenditure on liabilities generally, so that it was within the sanction of the bondholders, who will 
have had powers to vote conferred upon them, to say within what limits money shall be expended generally.; ,I 

·mean you would not confine it to debts on capital account? . If the limits could be given. .. 
1029. Chairman.] Would not this be the result, that after all the precautions a creditor of that kind might come 

·in·and vote and put the company in liquidation? Yes. 
1030, For instanc·e, this very ,bank in He-hart Town which would have no security except the chance of the 

company some day opening it at 5 per cent. 7 Yes. . 
: · 1031. M-r. Bruce.] I suppose your idea is, that under proper control, a control satisfactory to yourself, you 
tliink it ·would be desirable to have powers to put the company in a sound position as far as it is necessary to·do so"? -
Yes, quite so. [The Witness withdrew. 

Mr. George Scott Freeman, sworn; Examined by Mr. Saunders. 
1032. You are the Secretary of the General Life and Fire Assurance Company? . I am. 
1033. Who carry on business in the City, I believe? At 62, King William-street. 
1034. A.re you the fortunate or unfortunate holders of £10,000 in these· perpetual· bonds of the Tasmanian 

Company 7 We are. - · · 
,,. 1035. And of,course as holder of those bonds you have had to take into consideration the financial _position _of 
the Company'? Yes. · 
· 1036. Have you given your best consideration both to the Bill which was deposited in December :last, and also 
to the .present" Bill with the amendments sanctioned by the House of Lords.? · Yes, we have. 
'· · 10;37, Now taking them generally;· first may I ask you to which you give the ·preference· as likely. to put the 
Company' in a sourid' financial position without doing injustice to the bondholders ? We .desire the:debenture hold!)rs 
o be protected, and not io lose any of their guarantees which they at present possess. 
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· '1038. -Now yo·u were willing to make·certain sacrifices for the purpose'of-putting.the'Company, I·may say, on 
its legs again ? We were. · 
· 1_039. 'W.erethose sacrifices represented ~y·the Bill of·'Deceniber'last? We·were asked ·to forego the ·half per 
·cent. mterest. 

1040. We have had them so often repeated; I was only going to ask you, those were represented by the iBill .of 
cDecerriher last? 'They were. 

1041. And you were prepared, an·d would·beprepared·now, to give·your sanction.·to ·some such Bill carrying 
out the objects of that Bill of ·December-last? To a ·great:extent .I think we should. · Certainly the ·evidence I .hav.e 
··henrd since we have been 'in this room'has in-some measure altered my opinion,as·to trusting parties:whom ·before I 
had implfoit confidence in. · 
· ·10~2. You·.have not•the same con-fidence now in·the Board·which you bad at that time? I am afraid i[ can 
hardly say I have. 

1043. -Do you ·look upon it as a sine qua non, "in the first instancP., · that the· 'Sum of money to be ,raised :by the 
sacrifice of some portion of the interest of the debenture holr.lers·should ·be a ·sum· of money·sufficient to satisfy all 
•pressing demands, and also to put the Company 'into a •position to ·claim. the guarantee? Yes, but the sum now 
named is so much in excess ·of what it .was, that it would open quite •a different. q~estion, ,and would require con­
sideration as to the course which my· bom'd would think well to ,adopt. 

Chairman.] May I make'a suggestion to you that I made before, :that you should :ask the Witness: "Did 
··you·hearwhnt l\fr. Harvie and'Mr. Williams said,and.-do you genernlly·agree with them-?" 

1044. Mr. Saunders:] I will adopt that simpliciter if you ·wish, and .this gentleman shall swallow everything 
5aid in examination and cross-examination. (To the Witness.) Do you accept ·simpliciter·nll that was said,; were 
you in the room first ? Yes, I was. 

104G. Do you entirely endorse all that was saicl 'by ·both Mr. Willinms·and Mr. Harvie? All the -leading ,points; 
•1111-the suggestions that they made as to the carrying on •of the'business:r do,-quite. 

Cross-examined by Mr. Venables. 
1046. ·r understood you to say that your opinion on certain points had been changed ·by·wbat you bad .beard, in 

this ~oom; what \~·ere the points on which your opinion has been changed 7 The r~ports that ·,~~ beard :at the 
meetmg were so chfferent to what we ·have now put before us;· I 'have no doi1bt the•chmrman ·was mrsmformed. 

1047. You have not yet come to what the point was; ·what·was the·point on ·which you changed ·your opinion? 
,In the 'first-place, the chairman told us that £7000 would be quite sufficient to clear alBiabilities in this country. 

1048. When did he tell·you so? At the public ·meeting . 
. 1049. The circ~lar shows £10,000? 'It was £7000 in _this country_; and ·£3000 in Australia, ~t tbe mectin~ lsay. 
1050. The Chmrman has never been asked about this; the Chmrman must ·have spoken, I ~hould think, ·m 

·accordance with the circular, which says £10,000? 
Sir 'Mordaunt Wells.] ''l'hat ·circular came from the shareholders' committee. 
Mr. Venables.] Here it is signed by the secretary of the company, and in this cirnular which .preceded t~e 

meeting, the secretary ·of course representing the chairman, says that there ,are debts on open account m 
England to the amount of about £10,000. The chairman was never asked;- but tliis gentleman has clearly 
misapprehended the matter. 

Witness,l No; ·at that meeting in December I asked the chairman -myself what tbe·debts were'in England, 
and what they were across tbe water, and he told me that he believed £7000 would be-quite sufficient ·to meet 
every liability in' England, and that £3000 would 'be suffident to meet the liabilities >in Australia. 

Mr. Venables.7 That was last December? 'It·:was in -December at a·meeting. 
1051. But now will" you tell me is that what. you mean that has changed your opinion? That 'the,chairman has 

.. acted under wrong information, and ·given us information that is ncit-strictly·correct. 
10-52. You have had the information since, which ·is confirmed now by the evidence that the debts in England on 

open account are Momething less than £10,000. :Yes. , 
1053. Is the difference between what you suppose it to have been, £7000 and £10,000; what so changed your 

opinion 7 No; and this very important point; the chairman represented to us that the ·railway was in good and 
thorough repair, and that ·a very little ·or ·very sma:11 sum· would enable it ·to meet all .the requiremeuts of the 

::Colonial Government. 
1054. I think what the chairman has always said was to meet'the contracts and nottbe requirements that.might 

-·be made by the Colonial Government; what have you·heard in evidence in this room, except .that frpm £10,000 ,to 
£15,000 will be enough to complete that railway 'in -accordance ·with the contract? I have ·heard in this room that 
£100,000 will be required. 

1056. 'l'hat is to say, you heard Sir Penrose J ulyan say that he heard-somebody else ·say .that a,certain third 
_person said it woulll be £100,000? I heard ·Sir Penrose-Julyan say that two,or three experts had ·examined the 
railway. and that they had valued the repairs at a much higher sum than ·before. 

1056. If you refer to the evidence, you will find that all that Sir Penrose Julyan said was that Sir William 
'·Gregor~• said that Mr. Grant said that to do what the Government engineers·wanted would cost £'1001000; was not 
·that all that you heard? No, I did not hear so·much·as you say. 

1057. Sir Penrose Julyan said that Sir 'William Gregory -would 'tell you that the Company's engineer, Mr. 
Grant, "informed liim that at 'least £100,000 would· be. required to fulfil th1 conditions which ,the Government 

·require." Now, supposing all that gossip had been evidence, were you not aware-that-the Company's engineer•hiu 
said that the requisitions of the Government were quite unreasonable, and that, on the contrary, £10,000 to £15,000 
would do· all that was necessary? I heard the Chairman of the Board say so at one of the meetings. 

1058. Say that the engineer had said so; did you hear the· secretary giving evidence in this ·room ·that the 
report from ·tl,e engineer in Tasmania was that £'10,000 to £15;000 would do all that was -necessary to s11tisfy the 
term of the contract? I did not hear the whole of the secretary's evidence. 

1059. Let me call your attention to this, that in both casPs it·comes to what 'Mr: Grant said or. thought; and 
·-what Mr. Grant said was that from £10,000 to £15,000 ,would -do it, ·but it 1might be £100,000 to do what the 
·Government required? Yes, but that assertion is not supported I understand. 

1060. Have you any-other.evidence which you have heard in 'this room that affects your opinion? I think the 
efforts of tbe Board to weaken the security of the-debenture holders are not-such as would .inspire me with confidence 
in the Board. 

1061. But you-have known·that·for several months? .Yes, .that is true. 
1062. Therefore, what you have heard in this room refers to what you have already mentioned? Yes. 
1063. In the House of Lords I -see in answer to .the last question that was ·put ·to -you in your examination-in­

chief is, "Yon do not want to throw out altogether a Bill for raising this £50,000, but what you want is that the 
,original Bill should .be ·carried." .This is your answer, "Yes, ·or that some compr.imise if you please should be 
made, or that some agreement should be come to; so that there should not be ,liquidation?" Yes, precisely _ 

1064 .. Are you still of opinion thatthere should not be liquidation ; that .it is desirable that there should be no 
-liquidation? I think :that I would rather have liquidation thnn that the.Bill-now sought to be obtained should pass. 
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Resexamii.'\ecl by Mr. Saunders. 
1065. Liquidation is not, of course, a desirable thing, but you would like any Bill still which would effectually 

prevent liquidation? I should like'liquidation rather than the debenture-holders be weakened to the extent I think 
. they would be by the passing of this Bill. -

1066. Now, taking into account what has been given in evidence, and the extracts read yesterday from the 
engineers, and one letter read yesterday for the first time, the letter of the 21st of February, what would be the 
position of your Company, supposing the· £50,000 were raised on the terms proposed in this Bill, and after all it 
did not turn out it was enough to satisfy the requirements of the contract, and that Sir Penrose Julyan was right, 
and that £100,000 was wanted-- . 

Mr. Venables.] Sir Penrose Julyan nowhere expresses an opinion that it would cost £100,000 or any 
other sum. 

Mr. Saunders.] The con.clnsion which Sir Pmrose Julyan came to was this, that £100,000 would be 
required. . 

Chairman.] You can shape the question so as to bring that out. 
1067. Mr. Saunders (to the Witness),l Suppose Sir Penrose Julyan, from whatever source he arrived at that 

conviction, is right, and £100,000 is actuafly required for the purpose of getting the guarantee back--
Sir Henry Holland. J Sir Penrose J ulyan never pledged himself in any way to any sum. 
Mr. Venables.] At Question 755 he is asked, "Have you any information, or any sum furnished by any 

agent of your Government, stating the opinion of your agent as to the amount that would be required. 
A. Nothing official." 

Sir Mordaunt Wells.] ~ir William Gregory's evidence was tendered to the Committee as to the condition 
of the line, but an intimation W4S made by the Committee that they did not wish him to be called. 

1068. Mr. Saunders (to the Witness).] I will put the &ame question in another way: Suppose £fi0,000 is not 
1 

sufficient for the purpose of putting the line into a good position and getting the guarantee, but that we will say 
£70,000 or £100,000, or £120,00ll is wanterl, would this £50,000 be money entirely thrown away, and would 
liquidation be stiil necessary? I understood that the Bill would give permission to raise any sum that might be 
necessary np to £100,000. 

1069. I say supposing the Bill was passed in the form in which the Promoters are asking it should pass, and 
that £50,000 were raised, and that were ineffectual, would not that put the bondholders in_a worse position, because 
£50,000 would have been raised and liquidation still become necessary? Certainly; if it were a pre-preference. 

1070. So that it is a sine qutl non, that whatever is raised it should be a sufficient sum? Yes. 
[The Witness withdrew. 

Mr. Henry Willan, sworn; Examined by Sir Mordaunt Wells. 
1071. YOU are a holder of debenture bonds to the extent of £6000? I am. 
1072. Have you beei:i in the room during the examination of Mr. Williams and Mr. Harvie? Yes. 
1073. And do you generally concur in the evidence which those gentlemen have given? Yes, I do. 
1074-. Upon the questions which have been raised in reference to the original deposit of the Bill; and the Bill 

now before the Committee? I do. 
1075. And you have also heard the new evidence in reference to the state of the line, and you heard Sir Penrose 

Julyan examined? I did. 
· 1076. And do you concur in the evidence given by those two gentlemen? I do. 

Cross-examined by Mr. Yenables. 
107'7. Are you of opinion that, supposing the Bill had been passed, as you originally approved it, it would have 

been practicable to raise the £50,000 ? I think it would. . 
lOiS. -Are you of opinion that it would be practicable to raise it under the Bill as now before the Committee? 

I think not, because the shareholders would have taken the placo of the bondholders. 
1079. Did you hear the evidence of Mr. Clements on that subject as to the Anglo-Italian Bank? Yes, I <lid. 
1080. And you differ from him as to the intentions of the Anglo-Italian Bank? I do, entirely. 
108 I. Do you know anything about them'/ No, 
1082. And Mr. Clements does? Yes. 
1083. Anti you differ from him? Simply because they_ are shareholders. 
1084. Let me call your attention to this answer of yours at Question 469, in the House of Lords: "And who" 

(namely, the debenture-holders) " are willing to rnise further money. A. Yes, I believe if the first Bill passed the 
£50,000 would be raised immediately, because it is not likely that anybody would go ii1to liquidation when there is a 
chance of the line working and going en as it is now. We get newspapers over from Tasmania saying the line is 
improving in its traffic, and it is not at all likely anybody would attempt to liquidate the thing." Do you hold to 
that opinion now? Things have altered very much. 

1085. In what way? We considered then that so little money was wanted to put the line in order, but now we 
find a sum so enormous--

1086. What is this enormous sum? You talked of £50,000 being sufficient to pay the debts off, and to put the 
line in sufficient order to satisfy the Tasmanian Government; it came out yesterday in evidence that you must have 
£100,000. . 

Mr. Venables.] I will not go through all that again. 

Re-examined by Sir Mordaunt Wells. 
1087. At all events, you heard in this room, did you not, evidence that satisfied your mind that more money 

would be required than what had been previously suggested? Decidedly. 
1088. And even supposing the whole amount of that money was not to be required, still there was a large 

amount, or a large increase upon the sum tliat was originally suggested? Yes. 
1089. Has that had an influence on your judgment in refereuce to the amount of monr.y to be raised? Yes, it 

has altered my opinion very much. 
[The Witness withdrew. 

Mr. Michael.J I do not wish to intervene in any way, but I should like the Committee to understand that 
Sir Penrose Julyan did not at all mean to say that £100,000 would be required, or to pledge· himself in any 
way, but merely that he meant that powers should be taken to raise that sum. 

Chairman.] I think we have that quite (·learlfbrfore u~. 
Sir Mordaimt Wells.] The Committee will do me the justice to say that, in arguing my case, I did not put 

it on £100,000; I said I will take it at £50,000, or whatever it may be. 
Mr. Saunders.] All I meant in the questiqn was something more than £50,001), · 
Sir Mordaunt Wells.] Now, Sir, there is a large bondholder, a Mr. Herring, who had originally signedt 

but now is opposed to the Bill; I proposed to call him; he is not at this moment present, 
Chairman.] Perlrnps Mr, Venables can admit what you want to prove. 

/ 
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Mr. Venables.] We linve had no notice, of withdrawal; so,I cannot facilitate the matter. All we know is-

that he assented to our scheme, and, we have had no notice of withdrawal. . 
Chairman.] We will assume that. he has gone away,, and that he had intencled to be examined by Sir· 

Mordaunt Wells. - . 
!\Jr. Venables.] There is one thing that any of the witnesses can tell us, how much this inclividual, Mr. 

Herring, b_olds, and I will take my learned friend Sir Mordaun_t Wells' statemen_t on that. 
Sir Mordaunt Wells.] £2500. 
Sir Mordaunt Wells·stated that that was_ his case against the Bill. 

Mr. Pembroke S,tepliens was. heard to address the Committee in support of the petition of Robert Orr 
Campbell against the Bill. 

Mr. Venables was heard in reply. 
The Committee-room was cleared. 
After a short time the Counsel and 1mrties were called_ in. 
The Chairman stated that the Committee had resolved to pass the Preamble of the Bill, subject to certain 

amendments as to which they hoped the parties would agree before the next meeting. 'l'hey thought that the· 
whole proceeding should be by agreement between the shareholders and the bondholders: that the Bill should 
be permissive throughout, and that the whole of the new state of things should be embodied in an agreement 
between the Company and three-fourths of the bondholders; that that three-fourths should be expressed in 
two ways, both by votes personally given or by proxy at a general mHeting of the bondholders called for 
that purpose; and when the agreement had been so adopted that it should then be put into writing and 
executed in the_ way proposed in the first part of the seconrl section. The Committee thought with reference· 
to the• second line of Sub-section A. to Clause 2, that the maximum there should be 20s. and not I Os., and 
that the maximum in line 9 shoulrl be £100,000 and not £50,000. · They thought .that that expenditure 
should only be applied to completing the railway and so forth, in satisfaction of the contract with the 
Gnvei:nment of Tasmania (not to the satisfaction of the ·Government of Tasmania), and in discharging the 
liabilities of the Company, omitting the words "on capital account." 'l'he Committee disagreed entirely 
with the opporients of the. Bill as to the funding of the coupons; and they thought instead of Clause 5. 
standing as it did simply, that all bond and stock holders should vote together, and that all bondholders 
should be shai;eh_olders; that a proportion of the board, not less than one-half, should be elected by the 
bondholders, but that for all other purposes the bond and shareholders should vote together. 'l'hey thought 
.that with referencA to Sub-section D, in Clause 2, that if the proceeds of any. sale, after discharging the 
proper Iiabilitie~, produced more than 80 per cent. of the debenture capital, the excess over 80 per 
cent. might under the agr~ement be divided between the debenture and share capital; that as the debenture· 
shareholders sacrificed one-filth as a maximum of their income, they should not b.e called upon to mcrifice­
more than one-fifth of their principal in the event of their being paid off under a sale to the Government. 
They thought that Section 4 ought to be omitted altogether, as being outside the objects of the Bill. 

:Mr. Venables inquired whether the clauses whfoh were not now permissive should be included in the 
permissive part, and turned into sub-sections. 

The Chairman said that would be so, with tl1e exception of clauses 3 nnd 6. 
Mr. Venables inquired whether the Committee intended Clause 5 to be struck out. 
The Chairman stated that the Committee thought that Clause 5 should b,e part of the agreement, that 

Clause 4 should be struck out altogether, and that Clause 3 should be so amended as to be something between­
what it was in the original Bill and what it was in the present. They did not propose to give the Government 
of Tasmania the appointment of a director. 

[Adjourned to Wednesday, at Two o'clock, 

J'AMES DAR?!AUD, 
GOVERNIIENT l'RINTER1 TASllIANU. 


